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To the President of the Senate and the
Speaker of the House of Representatives

This report presents the results of our efforts to audit the Principal
Financial Statements of the U.S. Customs Service for fiscal year 1993.
These statements represent the second year of Customs’ implementation
of the financial statement reporting requirements of the Chief Financial
Officers Act of 1990 (Public Law 101-576). As part of our work, we also
evaluated Customs’ internal controls and its compliance with laws and
regulations related to the financial statements.

During fiscal year 1993, Customs took several meaningful steps toward
addressing recommendations resulting from our efforts to audit the fiscal
year 1992 statements. Most importantly, Customs began a program
intended to reliably measure compliance with trade laws, developed a
methodology for accurately reporting its $900 million in accounts
receivable and, for the first time, conducted a nationwide inventory of its
seized assets.

More substantial improvements will be needed to develop meaningful and
reliable financial management information and establish a sound internal
control structure. Consequently, we are unable to express an opinion on
Customs’ fiscal year 1993 Principal Financial Statements. The “Significant
Matters” section of this report identifies Customs’ serious financial
management and control problems and describes the adverse impact of
these problems on Customs’ ability to effectively carry out its trade and
enforcement missions. Our report also describes the status of Customs’
actions to correct the problems and contains recommendations to help
Customs continue its efforts to resolve these long-standing and difficult
problems and strengthen its financial management operations.

We are sending copies of this report to the Commissioner of Customs, the
Secretary of the Treasury, the Director of the Office of Management and
Budget, the Chairmen and Ranking Minority Members of the Senate
Committee on Governmental Affairs and the House Committee on
Government Operations, and other interested congressional committees.
Copies will be made available to others upon request.
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This report was prepared under the direction of Gregory M. Holloway,
Director, Civil Audits, who may be reached on (202) 512-9510. Other major
contributors are listed in appendix IV.

YA, Brstls

Charles A. Bowsher
Comptroller General
of the United States
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To the Commisstoner of the U.S. Customs Service

In accordance with the Chief Financial Officers (CFo) Act of 1990, the U.S.
Customs Service prepared the accompanying Principal Financial
Statements for the fiscal years ended September 30, 1993 and 1992. In
accordance with the CFo Act, we elected to perform an audit of these
statements and related internal controls, as we did for fiscal year 1992.
Based on our efforts to audit Customs’ fiscal year 1992 Principal Financial
Statements, we issued six reports containing 54 recommendations for
improving Customs’ financial management and internal controls.
Appendix Il lists these reports and identifies the status of the
recommendations contained in them.

In response to these reports, Customs’ officials expressed their
commitment to developing meaningful and reliable financial management
information and in establishing a sound internal control structure. During
fiscal year 1993, Customs took several important steps toward addressing
recommendations from our reports on the fiscal year 1992 statements.

Customs began a program intended to reliably measure the trade
community’s compliance with trade laws based on inspections of
statistically valid randem samples of imported goods and related import
documents. In 1993, Customs tested goods from five
industries—automobile, automated data processing, fiberboard,
telecommunications, and steel—and found that, in several cases,
compliance rates were much lower than it previously assumed. Because
these tests covered relatively few commodities and were limited to
selected ports and covered only 45-60 day periods, the results cannot be
used to estimate overall compliance for the year. However, Customs
expanded the scope of the program during fiscal year 1994 to cover other
aspects of the import process, including tests of manifest and bill of lading
accuracy and completeness, and even broader national coverage is
planned for fiscal year 1995.

Customs developed and applied a methodology for accurately reporting its
$900 million in accounts receivable. In addition, the agency reorganized its
debt collection unit, formalized its collection procedures, and aggressively
pursued collection of delinquent receivables—especially the $165 million
in receivables that was more than 3 years old. According to Customs, this
effort resulted in collections of $31.6 million.
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Customs conducted the first nationwide physical inventory of its seized
assets, which include firearms, thousands of pounds of illegal narcotics,
millions of dollars in cash, and various types of other goods. Customs
studied and evaluated the adequacy of its physical safeguards over seized
property and currency at 21 medjum-to high-volume storage facilities.
Further, it constructed new facilities in two districts and developed plans
for renovations at other facilities.

Customs conducted a comprehensive physical inventory of equipment
recorded in its Property Information Management System, which accounts
for approximately 83 percent of the recorded value of property, and
initiated monthly reconciliations between its accounting and logistical
records.

Customs fully cooperated with us during our fiscal year 1993 audit and has
continued its progress towards developing reliable information. For
instance, the Commissioner met with us monthly to respond to our
findings and to obtain prompt advice on how to correct the problems.
Acting on our findings, the Commissioner has initiated steps, including
hiring a qualified cro, to establish a financial management leadership team
to help correct Customs’ major weaknesses.

These actions are significant, but more substantial changes and progress
are needed if Customs’ management and other users of its financial
statements and other financial reports are to have the reliable information
they need to make informed decisions. For instance, more reliable
information could assist Customs and the Congress in assessing whether
there could be significant benefits from expanding resources provided by
the Congress commensurate with the continuing growth in imports.

We found that serious and pervasive weaknesses in key internal controls
and systems have diminished Customs’ ability to report reliable financial
information and effectively carry out its mission. Specifically, for fiscal
year 1993, these weaknesses affected Customs’ ability to

reasonably ensure that carriers, importers, and their agents complied with
laws intended to ensure fair trade practices and protect the American
people from unsafe and illegal imported goods;

control, manage, and report the results of its enforcement efforts,
including accountability and stewardship over the tons of illegal drugs and
millions of dollars of cash and property seized or used in its enforcement
efforts;

adequately control the use and reporting of its operating funds; and
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Summary of Results

« adequately protect the sensitive data maintained in its automated systems
from unauthorized access and modification.

These problems are the result of years of inadequate financial
management leadership that have led to deficient financial management
systems that do not facilitate financial reporting and control. Most will
require long-term efforts to effectively plan and implement solutions that
will address the long-standing root causes. The Commissioner of Customs
has expressed a strong personal coramitment to resolving these problems
and recognizes that a significant and sustained effort by Customs’
management will be required.

In the short period of time that has elapsed since we reported the results
of our work for fiscal year 1992, Customs was unable to resolve all the
critical problems we identified. Consequently, the following results of our
audit of the fiscal year 1993 statements are basically the same as those
reported for fiscal year 1992.

+ We were unable to express an opinion on the reliability of Customs’ fiscal
year 1993 and 1992 Principal Financial Statements because of the lack of
reliable financial information, inadequate financial systems and processes,
and an ineffective internal control structure. Further, we concluded that
important financial management information reported in fiscal years 1993
and 1992 by Customs internally for management purposes and externally
to the Congress, the Office of Management and Budget (oMB), and others
was also based on incomplete or unreliable data.

» In our opinion, internal controls were not properly designed and
implemented to effectively safeguard assets, provide a reasonable basis for
determining material compliance with laws governing the use of budget
authority and other relevant laws and regulations, and assure that there
were no material misstatements in the Principal Financial Statements.

« We were also unable to give any assurance on the reliability of the
information contained in the Overview to the Principal Statements,
because a significant amount of this information came from many of the
same financial management systems and was subject to the same poor
internal control structure. The section of the statements entitled
“Supplemental Financial Management Information” contained only a

listing of Customs’ reportable funds and no financial data.

« Our tests for compliance with selected provisions of laws and regulations
disclosed no material instances of noncompliance.
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Complex Control
Environment and
Mission

The following sections of this report provide details on the unique control
environment in which Customs operates and on the specific control issues
we identified. The section entitled, “Complex Control Environment and
Mission,” provides perspective on the broad scope of Custorns’ mission
and the high-risk nature of its operations. This section is followed by the
“Significant Matters” section which identifies critical control weaknesses
in four areas: trade compliance, enforcement, administrative operations,
which includes financial reporting, and computer security; and describes
actions being taken by Customs to correct weaknesses, promote better
financial management, and strengthen its controls.

Customs operates in an extremely challenging environment. Its diverse
mission includes collecting duties, taxes, and fees on imports; enforcing
laws intended to prevent unfair trade practices; and protecting public
health by interdicting narcotics and other hazardous goods before they
enter the country. Customs is also the initial source of information for
trade statistics on imports used in monitoring and formulating trade
policy.

Customs is responsible for monitoring a tremendous volume of import
activity—for fiscal year 1993, Customs reported that approximately

$550 billion of merchandise consisting of over 800 commodity
classifications was imported and that it processed over 27 million import
entries and 450 million passengers. Customs also reported that it searched
282,600 passengers and over a million containers for contraband.

In addition to monitoring passengers and cargo at ports of entry, Customs
maintains a deterrent to narcotics smuggling through its air and marine
interdiction program and an active investigative program that conducted
over 100 individual undercover operations during fiscal year 1993.
Through this investigative program, Customs also combats money
laundering.

As aresult of Customs’ investigative and inspection programs, it annually
reports seizures of property, including thousands of pounds of drugs and
millions of dollars of currency. In many instances, Customs is responsible
for taking possession of the seized items and processing the related cases.
However, sometimes, other agencies participating in the seizure with
Customs carry out these responsibilities.
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Customs efforts are supported by an extensive network of automated
systems that must be protected from unauthorized access and
modification. Maintaining the security of these systems is especially
challenging because they are used by thousands of Customs’ and other
agencies’ employees and trade community members to transmit, maintain,
and report data. The security of these systems is critical because they
incorporate many of the trade and enforcement controls that Customs has
instituted and because they contain a great deal of sensitive information.

External conditions greatly affect Customs’ control environment. The
volume of imports has more than doubled between 1980 and 1993, from
$253 billion to $650 billion, making it impractical for Customs to observe
and inspect all shipments. Also, federal laws allow importers to transfer
goods from their original ports of entry to other locations within the
United States prior to the assessment of duties. This increases the risk of
trade violations because it is not practical for Customs to closely monitor
the movement of goods within the United States to ensure that they are
not unloaded, substituted, or augmented in transit. Recent trade
agreements, such as the North American Free Trade Agreement (NAFTA),
also have increased the number and complexity of trade provisions that
Customs is to enforce. Further, U.S. and foreign businesses have become
more interdependent, and Customs faces increased pressure to facilitate
and avoid obstructing the movement of goods across international
borders.

The growth in imports is likely to continue, outpacing any growth in
Customs' resources and forcing Customs to further reduce its monitoring
of carriers, importers, and their agents in its enforcement of trade laws. At
the same time, this growth offers increased opportunities for smuggling
and other illegal trade practices. Finally, criminal organizations that
smuggle narcotics and launder the proceeds generated by smuggling and
trade fraud continue to develop more sophisticated means of concealing
such activities.

Another challenge facing Customs is that many of its financial systems
were developed years ago primarily to meet program administration
objectives and were not designed to provide the reliable financial
information needed to effectively and efficiently manage and report on an
operation its size. Consequently, efforts to retrieve this information are
labor intensive and error prone. Also, over the last few years, Customs has
experienced frequent turnover in its top financial management positions.
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Significant Matters

Further, Customs’ operations are decentralized and involve a complex
field structure consisting of offices located throughout the United States
and in many foreign countries. This structure includes about 19,000
employees located at Customs’ Washington, D.C., headquarters, its
National Data Center in Virginia, its National Finance and National
Logistics Centers in Indianapolis, 7 regional offices, 44 district offices, 300
ports of entry, 29 Special Agent in Charge offices, and 131 Special Agent
Enforcement offices.

Because Customs operates in an inherently high-risk control environment,
it is imperative that Customs have well-designed and properly
implemented internal control and financial reporting structures to enable
it to report reliable financial management information and efficiently and
effectively accomplish its mission. Such structures should include a risk
assessment process which (1) targets high-risk cargo and passengers and
(2) includes representative selections for cargo and passenger inspections
that allow Customs to estimate compliance and more effectively apply its
resources to the areas of highest risk.

Policies and procedures also should be in place to reasonably ensure that

all imported goods are declared on manifests and entry documents,

only those goods that have been approved for release actually enter U.S.
commerce,

the applicable duties and taxes are assessed and collected on goods that
are transported between ports prior to the goods’ release,

fines and penailties are assessed and paid, and

only valid refunds of duties are paid.

In addition, Customs’ financial management systems and controls should
ensure that property and illegal drugs seized by Customs or used in its
undercover operations are adequately accounted for and safeguarded, that
data maintained in its automated systems are protected from unauthorized
access and modification, and that reliable financial information can be
reported on a timely basis.

Our audit identified widespread deficiencies in Customs’ internal controls
and hundreds of millions of dollars in finrancial statement errors. Because
the impact of the control weaknesses go far beyond the reliability of
Customs’ financial statements, we expanded our work to determine the
effect of these weaknesses on Customs’ mission related operations in
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Major Improvements
Needed to Strengthen
Customs’ Ability to
Ensure Compliance
With Trade Laws

addition to their impact on the statements. We found that although
Customs had many programs in place to inspect imported cargo, examine
related documentation, and investigate and take action against illegal
activities, such as drug smuggling, many critical controls were not
adequate to reasonably ensure that Customs was fulfilling its mission.
Specifically, Customs had not implemented controls, systems, and
processes to reasonably ensure

overall compliance with trade laws and that duties, taxes, and fees on
imports were properly assessed and collected, and refunds of such
amounts were valid,;

that property and illegal drugs seized by Customs or used in its undercover
operations were adequately safeguarded from loss, misuse, or theft and
accurately recorded, valued, and reported;

that all financial activity that occurred during the year was completely and
accurately summarized in the core financial system, properly supported,
and reported in a timely manner; and

that sensitive data maintained in its automated systems were adequately
protected from unauthorized access and modification.

Customs’ programs for inspecting goods entering the United States did not
provide reasonable assurance that carriers, importers, and their agents
complied with laws intended to ensure fair trade practices and protect the
American people from unsafe and illegal imported goods. As a result,
revenue owed to the federal government may not have been identified and
quotas and other legal restrictions may have been violated. Moreover,
trade statistics, which are an important economic measure and play a
significant role in the negotiation of trade agreements, may not be reliable.
Our tests of revenue transactions showed that the $21.6 billion that
Customs reported as custodial revenues for fiscal year 1993 was reliable
and properly classified among duties, taxes, fees, and other types of
collections. However, Customs cannot be reasonably assured that this
figure includes all of the revenues that it should have collected during that
year.

This lack of assurance stems from several factors. Most importantly,
Customs did not have a means to reliably measure overall compliance with
trade laws and, thereby, determine the effectiveness of this part of its
operations. Specific areas of weak control that we identified were
Customs’ inability to
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reasonably ensure that all imported goods were declared on manifests and
entry documents,

reasonably ensure that only those goods that had been approved for
release actually entered U.S. commerce,

monitor the disposition of goods that were moved to other ports or to
warehouses or foreign trade zones prior to assessment of duties, and
verify the appropriateness of duty refunds, referred to as drawbacks.

These deficiencies were substantially the same as those we reported for
fiscal year 1992. Customs has taken some steps to address them, but more
time is needed to determine the effectiveness of these measures. For
example, during fiscal year 1993, Customs successfully piloted a
compliance measurement program on a very limited basis and expects to
have a broad-based compliance measurement program in place by the
start of fiscal year 1995. However, implementation of new procedures
intended to improve Customs’ monitoring of goods transferred among
ports was slowed due to software coding errors. Also, improved controls
over refunds of duties are not likely to be implemented for several years
because they are being developed as part of a much broader, multi-year
system development effort.

Efforts to Measure
Compliance Began in
Fiscal Year 1993

As it did in fiscal year 1992, Customs focused its fiscal year 1993
inspection efforts on high-risk shipments in an effort to release low-risk
shipments as expeditiously as possible, The criteria for selecting these
shipments were based primarily on Customs’ experience in identifying
violators. For example, shipments for first-time importers and previous
violators were likely to be inspected. However, as a result of these
procedures, most shipments were not inspected at all—according to
Customs, about 92 percent of imported cargo was released without
examination during fiscal year 1993. And, because the shipments selected
did not constitute a representative sample of all shipments, the results of
the related inspections could not be used to estimate overall compliance
with trade laws.

In response to our September 1992 report,! Customs began developing a
compliance measurement program during fiscal year 1993 and began tests
of representative samples of imported goods in April of that year. From
April through September 1993, these tests were applied to five types of
goods at a few large ports of entry for 45- to 60-day periods. For each test,

}Customs Service: Trade Enforcement Activities Impaired by Management Problems
(GAO/GGD-92-123, September 24, 1392).
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Customs randomly selected line items of goods identified on importers’
entry documents and then examined the related goods and supporting
documentation to determine if compliance requirements were met; for
example, to determine if the goods had been properly marked and
reported. Although some of the goods were found to be highly compliant
with the specific requirements of trade laws and regulations, some types of
goods, such as auto parts, were determined to be much less compliant
than Customs had previously assumed.

Because of their limited coverage, the results of these tests cannot be used
to estimate overall compliance for fiscal year 1993. However, they were
useful in demonstrating to Customs the value of accurately measuring
compliance rather than relying on perceptions of compliance. Also, they
provided Customs a means of refining its sampling and testing
methodology and served as a means of training Customs personnel at the
district and port level for future testing efforts.

Customs’ compliance measurement tests were expanded during fiscal year
1994 to other aspects of the entry process, including tests of manifest
completeness. Some of these efforts were under way or had not yet begun
at the close of our review in April 1994. During fiscal year 1995, Customs
plans to begin nationwide, year-long tests of all major categories of goods.
If these tests are carried out successfully, they should provide objective
data that will help Customs ensure that it is making the best use of its
limited inspection and audit resources. In addition, the results will allow
Customs to determine to what extent it is assessing and collecting all of
the revenue due on imports entering the United States.

Controls Over the
Completeness of Manifests
Were Weak

As we reported for fiscal year 1992, Customs has no agencywide
requirements for observing the unloading of carriers and determining that
manifests are complete. As a result, Customs did not have reasonable
assurance that it was aware of all goods arriving at ports of entry and
entering U.S. commerce. At the 12 ports we visited to discuss and test the
processing of imported goods, we found that shipments generally were not
counted and compared to the manifest unless they were being searched
for narcotics or other illegal goods.” These searches, referred to as landed
quantity verifications, were performed by the districts’ Contraband
Enforcement Teams at the discretion of each Customs district.

2At one seaport, officials told us that bulk shipments, such as oil arriving in oil tankers, were routinely
measured and tested.
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According to Customs officials in five districts and documentation
obtained during our visits to these districts, it was not uncommon for
Customs personnel to find unmanifested cargo containers and containers
with no seals or with broken seals. For example, an inspector’s notes on a
May 1993 landed quantity verification at the port of Boston listed four
containers that were unloaded but were not documented on the manifest
and one that was not sealed. According to the inspector’s notes, these
containers were set aside and held for further inspection and a seal was
placed on the unsealed container. The reports we obtained showed that
similar discrepancies were found during landed quantity verifications in
other districts.

Districts also performed audits of selected carrier manifests, referred to as
carrier post audits. Reports from these audits for fiscal year 1993 identified
numerous discrepancies between the carriers’ manifests and the
importers’ entry documents. However, because these audits were
conducted months after the carrier’s arrival, they would not have
identified goods that had purposely been omitted from both the manifest
and related entry documents.

For fiscal year 1992, we recommended that Customs develop a strategy for
inspecting a random sample of carriers that could be used to help ensure
that cargo delivered was completely identified on related manifests.
During early fiscal year 1994, Customs developed a plan to perform such
tests on a random sample of carriers at nine ports of entry. This test was
under way at the close of our review in April 1994,

Controls Over Releases at
Ports of Entry Were Weak

For fiscal year 1993, we examined Customs’ controls over the release of
goods more closely than we had for fiscal year 1992, and we identified
serious weaknesses in Customs’ ability to ensure that carriers released
only goods that Customs had approved for release. These weaknesses,
especially in combination with the weak controls over manifest
completeness, increased the risk that unassessed dutiable or illegal goods
could be entering U.S. commerce undetected by Customs.

Most importantly, Customs was not taking advantage of the capabilities of
its Automated Manifest System (aMs) for monitoring the release of goods.
AMS, which is part of Customs’ larger Automated Commercial System (Acs)
and is under the direction of Customs’ Office of Inspection and Control,
allows carriers to submit their manifests electronically as a series of bill of
lading records. According to Customs, during fiscal year 1993, ams
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received and maintained manifest data for about 77 percent of sea bills of
lading and about 19 percent of air bills. AMS provides port personnel
advance notice of goods that are about to arrive, a means of notifying
carriers electronically when goods have been approved for release, and a
means of identifying goods that have not been released by the system.

If goods are to be immediately entered into U.S. commerce, an importer or
its agent files with Customs an “entry/immediate delivery” form, which
describes the goods to be released. Customs may review these documents
and may choose to inspect the related goods before approving their
release. Many shipments that Customs has determined present a low risk
of violating trade laws are approved for release in AMS automatically when
AMS matches data reported on manifests and entry documents. In other
cases, Customs inspectors indicate that the goods have been approved for
release by entering approval into AMS or by stamping, and sometimes
signing, the paper entry form. Carriers may turn goods over to importers
or their agents when either AMS shows that release has been approved or a
stamped or signed entry form is presented. According to Customs
directives, carriers using AMs are also required to verify that the goods
have been released in AMS. Accordingly, when Customs inspectors approve
release from an AMS participant on a paper entry fortn, they are also to
enter approval data into AMS.

By keeping release data in AMS accurate, Customs could use the system to
readily identify and investigate those shipments that have not been
released in AMS after the prescribed period. However, we found that AMS
was not fulfilling this control function because information in AMs was
unreliable, erroneously showing many items had not been approved for
release when supporting documents showed otherwise. In addition,
Customs was not investigating discrepancies, such as shipments that AMs
indicated had not been released after a reasonable period.

We reviewed 88 judgmentally selected aMs bills of lading and found that 26
had not been properly accounted for in the system. Although the carriers
had the documentation to support Customs’ authorization for release of
these shipments, this information was not accurately reflected in AmMs. In
14 cases, aMs did not indicate Customs’ authorization for release. In 11
cases, AMS’ record of quantities reported on the manifest and quantities
released did not match. In two cases, including one of those mentioned
above, AMS showed that the goods were being held by Customs, when
actually they had been released.
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Our tests showed that these discrepancies occurred because (1} Customs
personnel either did not enter release information into AMS or entered it
twice or (2) carriers, brokers, and Customs personnel entered inconsistent
Or erroneous quantities into Ams. For example, for one of the bills of lading
we tested, a carrier identified a shipment on its manifest as consisting of 2
pallets of goods, while the broker reported the same shipment on entry
documents as 120 cartons of goods, resulting in a discrepancy in AMS. In
another instance, Customs personnel entered release information for the
same merchandise twice, creating a double count of the quantities
released. Customs had not investigated the discrepancies associated with
the items we reviewed until prompted to do so by our audit, which took
place between 5 months and 14 months after the goods had arrived at the
ports.

For the shipments that are not reported through ams, Customs has no
means of routinely monitoring release. In these cases, Customs relied on
carrier post audits to examine manifests and entry documents and
determine if goods were properly reported and released. Customs does not
maintain statistics on the percentage of aMs or non-AMs shipments subject
to carrier post audits. However, reports submitted to Customs
headquarters from district offices show that post audits have discovered
numerous instances where goods had been released without Customs’
approval.

Customs Did Not
Adequately Monitor Goods
Moved to Other Ports Prior
to Their Release

In addition to weaknesses in controls over goods immediately released
into commerce, weaknesses in Customs' ability to monitor goods that
were moved to other locations prior to their release continued in fiscal
year 1993. The most serious control weaknesses we identified were related
to Customs’ ability to effectively monitor shipments of goods transported
among ports prior to the goods’ release. Customs does not have
nationwide statistics on the percentage of such transfers; but, at two of the
busiest locations, officials told us that over half of the goods unladen were
transferred to other ports prior to being exported or released. The
difficulties in monitoring such shipments, referred to as in-bond transfers,
and the lack of an effective monitoring system increased the risk that
goods could have been diverted before duties and taxes were assessed and
that goods that were supposed to be exported remained in the United
States without Customs’ knowledge.

Under the provisions of the United States Code, Title 19, Sections 1552 and
1553, an importer may transport foreign merchandise (1) from the initial
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U.S. port of entry (port of origin) to another port (port of destination)
where duties and taxes are paid when the merchandise is released into the
commerce of the United States or {2) through the United States for
exportation to another foreign country without the payment of duty. This
allows importers to delay the payment of duties and taxes until the
merchandise reaches its ultimate destination or to bypass the payment of
duties and taxes when exporting foreign merchandise. It is Customs’
responsibility to monitor the movement and disposition of such shipments
in order to ensure that the applicable duties and taxes are collected at the
port of destination or that the merchandise is exported. However, such
monitoring is difficult because, once trucks and rail cars have entered the
United States, it is not practical for Customs to observe their movements
to ensure that cargo is not unloaded, substituted, or augmented before
arriving at the destination port.

For fiscal year 1992, we reported that the system designed to monitor
in-bond transfers was of limited effectiveness because Customs personnel
did not consistently (1) record departure and arrival data and

(2) investigate overdue shipments to determine what had happened to the
related goods. We found that the same control problems existed during
fiscal year 1993 and that controls in one area had been weakened.

As part of our review of a judgmentally selected sample of bills of lading,
we traced the movement of in-bond transfers related to 69 bills of lading
and discussed in-bond procedures at 12 ports. Because some shipments
were divided, the 69 bills of lading we reviewed involved 87 in-bond
transfers. Of these 87 transfers, we found that departure, arrival, or export
data were incomplete for 26, because either Customs personnel or carriers
had not entered complete data. As a result, Customs could not readily
determine the disposition of the related merchandise. Only after reviewing
related documentation maintained by Customs and the carriers and
questioning Customs personne] were we able to determine that each of
these had arrived at its destination and that those released into U.S.
commerce had been reported to Customs.

Further, officials at 3 of the 12 ports we visited told us that they did not
investigate and resolve overdue shipments, resulting from manually
submitted in-bond data, because the related reports were unreliable and
time-consuming to resolve. Resolution of overdue shipments entailed
contacting the carrier and the destination port for information regarding
the status of the shipment, verifying delivery documents and records, and
issuing warning letters or assessing fines when appropriate. An official at
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one port told us that the volume of overdue shipments and the time
required to resolve them was overwhelming, in part because the report
does not identify the carrier, thus requiring Customs personnel to retrieve
supporting hard copy documentation to obtain this information.

Officials at three ports told us that they only investigated and resolved a
sample of overdue shipments because complete resolution was not
practical due to the volume of items on the reports. At one port, officials
said that, although each of their reports averaged about 175 overdue
shipments, they only resolved a sample of 20 shipments on each report. A
local memorandum issued by officials at this port stated that even
resolving a sample of only 20 shipments was not cost-effective due to the
effort needed to retrieve and research documents. At another port,
Customs personnel told us that they attempted to investigate only about a
b percent sample of an average 200 to 300 overdue shipments listed on the
reports, after which they designated the rest as resolved regardless of
whether or not delivery of the merchandise had been verified.

The difficulty in resolving and monitoring the resolution of overdue
shipments was made even more difficult when, in April 1993, Customs
changed its cumulative monthly report on overdue shipments to a weekly,
noncumulative report. According to a Customs headquarters official and a
planning memorandum sent to Customs regional offices, this change was
made so that each Customs location could resolve the entire report on a
weekly basis, thus reducing the backlog of overdue in-bond shipments
prior to elimination of a manual segment of the in-bond system. However,
because overdue shipments appear on the report only once, the report is
not useful for monitoring the disposition of shipments that remain
unresolved after a week has elapsed. This increases the risk that some
overdue shipments may never be investigated and resolved.

As planned, Customs began implementing revised procedures for
monitoring in-bond transfers in October 1993; but as of April 1994, much
of the planned revision had not been completed due to software coding
errors. The revision is to eventually allow brokers to electronically
transmit in-bond data regardless of whether the importing carrier is
automated or not and ultimately eliminate the separate processing of
manually submitted data. In-bond transfers for which data are submitted
manually are processed and monitored separately from transfers for which
data are electronically submitted. However, because the system for
monitoring manually submitted transfers provides incomplete information,
personnel still must rely substantially on hard copy documents.
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Customs has recognized that, although complete implementation of its
improved in-bond monitoring procedures will help, it will not fully address
the difficulties in controlling in-bond transfers. At the close of our review,
Customs was planning compliance measurement tests that would help
determine the level of violations that actually occur for in-bond transfers.
Also, an In-Bond Task Force had been appointed and was considering
more fundamental changes to the processing of in-bond transfers which
may impact implementation of the revised procedures. Such changes,
including consideration of modifications to legal provisions that allow
in-bond transfers, may be appropriate since the cost of monitoring such
transfers and the risk of violations are likely to grow as international trade
increases.

Inadequate and
Inconsistent Controls Over
Goods Held in Warehouses
and Foreign Trade Zones

An importer may choose to store imported goods in a bonded warehouse
or transfer them to a foreign trade zone (FTz) before releasing them into
U.S. commerce and paying the related duties. Bonded warehouses are
facilities, regulated by Customs, that may be operated by independent
warehousing firms or by importers. According to Customs records, about
1,400 bonded warehouses were in operation nationwide during fiscal year
1993, and the duties on merchandise withdrawn from them accounted for
about 1.5 percent of the duties that Customs collected during fiscal year
1993. Foreign trade zones are geographic areas, designated in accordance
with the Foreign Trade Zone Act, to which merchants may bring domestic
or foreign merchandise for storage, exhibition, manipulation,
manufacturing, assembly, or other processing. According to the most
recent information available, in fiscal year 1992, 298 foreign trade zones
were in operation, and they received imported merchandise valued at
about $20 billion.

For fiscal year 1992, we reported that Customs did not adequately monitor
goods held in warehouses and F1zs because it did not require district
offices to maintain readily available records of warehouse and rrz
inventories or adequately enforce its requirements for spot checks of these
facilities. We found that the same conditions existed during fiscal year
1993. As a result, such releases may not have been completely and
promptly reported to Customs and related revenues may have been
delayed or lost. Control weaknesses regarding warehouses and Frzs are
discussed in greater detail in our report on Customs’ fiscal year 1992
controls over revenue.?

3Financial Management: Control Weaknesses Limited Customs’ Ability to Ensure That Duties Were
Properly Assessed (GAO/AIMD-94-38, March 7, 1994),
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For fiscal year 1992, we recornmended that Customs require district
offices to (1) maintain perpetual inventory records of goods held in
bonded warehouses and FTzs and (2) emphasize to district offices the
importance of spot checks of bonded warehouses and monitor this activity
to ensure that districts comply with headquarters directives. Customs
agreed to oversee the performance of spot checks, but questioned the
need for maintaining inventory records in light of its other priorities.

As of the close of our review in April 1994, Customs officials told us that
they were planning a compliance measurement test of warehouse
operations for fiscal year 1995 to determine the level of violations that
occur in this area. If this test is conducted in a way that provides a reliable
measure of compliance, its results will be an important factor in
considering the necessity of strengthening Customs’ controls over
warechouses. For this reason, we believe that it is appropriate for Customs
to delay implementation of our recommendation that it maintain a
perpetual inventory of imported goods held in warehouses until the results
of the compliance measurement test are known.

Customs has not developed any specific plans for testing compliance at
FTZs or for strengthening controls over rrzs. Therefore, we believe that our
previous recommendations regarding FTzs are still valid and that Customs
should begin implementing them.

Controls Over Drawback
Payments Remained Weak

The control weaknesses related to drawbacks that we identified for fiscal
year 1992 continued in fiscal year 1993. Drawbacks are refunds of duties
and taxes paid on imported goods that are subsequently exported or
destroyed.

Customs could not reliably detect and prevent duplicate and excessive
drawbacks because its automated system could not link drawback claims
to related import entries or maintain a cumulative record of the amount of
duty refunded and goods exported or destroyed for each entry. As a result,
Customs processed about 49,000 drawback claims, totaling approximately
$482 million, during fiscal year 1993 using manual procedures that were
ineffective, in part because one drawback claim could involve scores of
individual entries. In addition, these deficiencies in Customs’ accounting
for drawback payments precluded us from determining if all such
payments made during fiscal year 1993 were appropriate.
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Customs reviews and verifies drawback claims before they are finalized, a
process referred to as liquidation. However, based on our review of
drawback claims and discussions with staff responsible for processing
such claims, we determined that liquidators generally select a judgmental
sample of the entry summaries from the total summaries indicated on the
drawback claim for review. In general, the sample selected by liquidators
was not representative of the entire drawback claim.

We reviewed a representative sample of 55 drawback claims, of which 41
had been liquidated. For 17 of these liquidated claims, we found no
evidence that Customs personnel reviewing the claims had reviewed any
of the related entry summaries prior to liquidation of the drawback claim.
In addition, we could not determine if 11 of the remaining 24 claims had
been adequately reviewed because Customs had deleted information from
its automated records indicating which import entries had been requested
for review.

Also, Customs did not consistently maintain information needed to ensure
that accelerated payments were made only to approved claimants. About
80 percent of the amount Customs refunds as drawbacks is paid before
Customs reviews the claim. Customs regulations limit accelerated
payment to claimants who are not delinquent or otherwise remiss in
transactions with Customs and who have surety bond coverage that is
adequate to protect Customs if it is determined that the refund was
inappropriate. However, we found that files for 6 of the 24 accelerated
payments we reviewed did not contain Customs-required documentation
stating that the claimant had been approved for such payments. Control
weaknesses regarding drawbacks are discussed in greater detail in our
report on Customs’ fiscal year 1992 controls over revenue.*

Customs has acknowledged that weaknesses in controls over drawback
payments exist but delayed action to correct them until passage of the
Customs Modernization and Informed Compliance Act in late 1993 which
included statutory changes to the drawback law. In our report for fiscal
year 1992, we recommended that Customs develop a means to
automatically (1) verify drawback claims and (2) obtain historical
information on drawback claimants and bond sufficiency. As of April 1994,
Customs was in the process of revising drawback regulations to reflect
changes resulting from the new law and planned to design new automated
capabilities to address control weaknesses. However, the new regulations

‘Financial Management: Control Weaknesses Limited Customs’ Ability to Ensure That Duties Were
Properly Assessed (GAO/AIMD-94-38, March 7, 1994).
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Much Greater
Accountability
Needed for Seizure
and Undercover
Efforts

are not expected to be implemented until fiscal year 1995, and the other
improvements will take even longer because they require automation of
drawback processing, an effort that is planned as part of a much larger,
multi-year effort to redesign Customs primary computerized system, the
Automated Commercial System.

For fiscal year 1992, we also recommended that until Customs develops a
means of automatically verifying claims, Customs should require that
liquidators use representative sampling procedures for reviewing
drawbacks that relate to multiple entry summaries. Although Customs
agreed with this recommendation, as of April 1994, Customs planned to
issue this guidance as part of its other revisions to Customs regulations in
fiscal year 1995. In our evaluation of Customs’ comments on that
recommendation, we suggested that Customs consider issuing a memo
immediately providing guidance on approving drawback claims rather
than delaying until issuance of the larger revision. We believe that such an
approach would still be appropriate.

One of Customs’ primary responsibilities is preventing the entry of illegal
goods into the United States, including counterfeit items, goods that
violate trademark regulations, and other contraband. Customs is
authorized to seize property when reasonable cause exists to suggest that
laws for which Customs has enforcement authority were violated. The
seizure of property and illegal drugs is one of the more significant results
of many of Customs’ enforcement efforts. Customs also undertakes
authorized undercover operations to apprehend high-level criminals and
disrupt illegal activities. On occasion, Customs carries out its law
enforcement efforts with other agencies, including the Drug Enforcement
Administration and the U.S. Marshals Service.

During fiscal year 1993, Customs reported over 20,000 narcotics seizures,

10,129 arrests, and 5,619 convictions resulting from its enforcement
efforts. Table 1 shows a summary of the fiscal year 1993 narcotic seizures.
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Table 1: Narcotics Seized in Fiscal
Year 1993

Pounds seized (unless

Type of drug Number of seizures otherwise noted)
Marijuana 10,961 507,249
Cocaine 2,182 175,318
Hashish 1,529 26,089
Heroin 1,010 2,955
Opium 2,426 2,129
Morphine 11 20
Other 2,747 17,864,966°
aTablets.

The accountability and stewardship for the millions of dollars in cash and
property and the tons of drugs that Customs annually seizes involve
financial systems and controls to ensure that these items are adequately
safeguarded and accurately recorded, valued, and reported. The dollar
value and quantity of seized property and the weight of illegal drugs are
used as performance measures for Customs’ enforcement efforts by
Customs management, the Congress, and others.

Customs primarily uses two systems to account for and manage its
enforcement activities: (1) the Treasury Enforcement Communications
System (TECS IT), which is an enforcement database of operations that
contains information on the results of cases (e.g., arrests, convictions, and
seizures) and (2) the Customs Property Tracking System (cPTs), which is
an inventory system to help control and provide financial information for
the seized property that result from its enforcement efforts. In addition,
Customs has established policies and procedures designed to ensure that
seized property is transferred promptly to seizure custodians, weighed,
counted, and stored in designated locations until authorized for
disposition.

Our review showed that Customs’ accounting records to control, manage,
and report the results of its enforcement efforts were incomplete and
inaccurate. These records included

incorrect and unaccounted for quantities of drugs and other property,
incorrect location data for some seized items,

erroneous seized property values, and

seizures where Customs participated in the seizure with other agencies,
but did not take possession of the property.
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In addition, the records did not include amounts of drugs and currency
that are used in Customs’ undercover operations and contained
inaccuracies regarding advances and statistical information related to
these operations.

Until these accounting records are corrected and the proper controls and
management emphasis put in place, Customs will not be able to report
reliable information on these activities to Customs’ management and to
the appropriate congressional oversight committees. In addition, Customs
will not be able to properly assess the effectiveness of its enforcement
efforts, provide reliable information in its annual financial statements, and
meaningfully implement the Government Performance and Results Act.

The system that Customs uses to report seizure activities lists all seizures
in which Customs plays a role, regardless of whether Customs takes
possession of the property seized. Consequently, Customs’ reporting of
seizures to the Congress and others who oversee governmentwide drug
interdiction efforts is likely to include values and quantities for seizures
held by other agencies and, therefore, be overstated.

Customs did not exercise adequate accountability and stewardship over
tons of illegal drugs and millions of dollars of cash and property seized or
used in its enforcement efforts primarily because the policies and
procedures the agency established to control such items were not
consistently and effectively implemented. In many cases, Customs did not
properly weigh and count seized drugs and protect stored items, including
large quantities of drugs, by restricting access. In addition, in some
instances, Customs did not adequately monitor controlled deliveries.®
These problems have reduced the impact of Customs’ enforcement efforts
and led to the loss and theft of property and hundreds of pounds of drugs.
Customs is taking steps to correct these weaknesses, but more changes
are needed to shore up the controls in this area and to ensure that the
Congress and Customs’ management has reliable information.

8Controlled deliveries are authorized operations designed to retain the custody and control of the
drugs until arrests are effected. In such instances, an item that has been seized by Customs is allowed
to continue on its way, under the surveillance of a Customs agent. This is done with the anticipation
that other violators will be arrested and/or more items will be seized. The seized item is either

delivered by the original person from which it was seized, as a result of an agreement, or by an
undercover Customs agent.
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Financial Data Did Not
Facilitate Accountability
for Enforcement Efforts

The results of our fiscal year 1992 efforts to assess Customs' internal
controls showed that its inventory records used to control and manage
seized property and prepare agency financial reports were incomplete and
inaccurate.® Although Custors has taken steps to address some of our
recommendations from that audit, many of the problems reported for
fiscal year 1992 persisted in fiscal year 1993. cpTs and TECS Il do not
provide detailed financial and tracking information on enforcement
activity, and Customs’ personnel often input erroneous data into the
systems. In addition, we found that Customs’ accounting records
contained inaccurate and incomplete information relating to its
undercover operations.

According to Customs’ January 1989 acs Customs Property Tracking
System Handbook, cPTs is intended to provide a method of maintaining a
current and historical record of property from the time of seizure to the
time of disposition. However, we found that Customs was unable to
effectively extract a detailed financial history of its seizure activities from
CPTS because the system was not functioning as intended. As a result,
Customs was unable to reliably summarize and assess the results of such
enforcement efforts for any period of time. Customs attempted to
manually retrieve this information for fiscal year 1992 but its efforts were
labor intensive and error prone. We found that the reported fiscal year
1992 seizure activity amounts were significantly incorrect and incomplete.
For fiscal year 1993, Customs did not attempt to report such information
because of its systems limitations.

An important step in establishing accountability is determining the actual
quantities of items on hand. In response to a recommendation made
during our audit for fiscal year 1993, Customs conducted its first-ever
nationwide physical inventory of seized property, drugs, and currency in
February 1994. This significant effort, which was conducted by
approximately 200 Customs employees at over 100 storage facilities
located throughout the United States, was intended to establish an
accurate baseline for monitoring and reporting seizure activity that results
from Customs’ enforcement efforts. As a result of this inventory, Customs
was able to identify and correct many significant errors in the recorded
quantities and values of seized property.

In some cases, the records did not show thousands of pounds of drugs that
had been seized and were held in Customs’ vaults. In other instances, the

SFinancial Management: Customs’ Accountability For Seized Property and Special Operation Advances
Was Weak {GAO/AIMD-94-6, November 22, 1993).
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records showed thousands of pounds of drugs more than were on hand.
Discrepancies between inventory records and actual property on hand
increase the potential for loss or tampering without the agency's
knowledge. Table 2 shows a summary of the changes made to CPTs,
resulting from Customs physical inventory, because of instances where
(1) cpts records showed that no drugs were being held but drugs were
discovered during the physical inventory and (2) cpts records showed that
drugs were being held but no drugs were found.

Table 2: Selected Changes Made to
CPTS to Correct Recordkeeping
Discrepancies

Nu;::::ir‘;; Changes made o CPTS

Type of drug involved Pounds added Pounds deleted

Cocaine 11
17 2,620 51,676

Herain 12
9 167 409

Marijuana 16
20 9,181 65,804

Hashish 5
11 12 728

Opium 4
4 50 26

Customs’ initial efforts to resolve identified discrepancies showed
thousands of pounds of drugs as missing. However, subsequent
labor-intensive procedures, involving the review of over 100 case files,
resulted in all but 86 pounds of drugs being accounted for by Customs as
having been destroyed or transferred to another agency or to a different
Customs location prior to the inventory date. In several cases, we found
that the transfers were made more than 2 years ago, but the related
records had not been updated.

These discrepancies were primarily due to the following problems
involving inaccurate data entry to cpTs.

Seizing officers and seizure custodians lacked a proper understanding of
which items are to be accounted for in cPrs. For instance, even though
CPTSs is capable of separately tracking both drug samples’ and bulk
quantities of drugs seized, drug samples were not always distinguished or

"Customs’ directives provide that, with certain exceptions, saraples of seized drugs are to be tested for
type and purity. In some instances, the samples are sent to a laboratory and on return are held for
evidence for judicial proceedings. The bulk amount remaining from the original quantity seized is kept
in storage until its destruction is authorized.
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tracked separately from the bulk quantities of seized drugs. Thus, a sample
can remain on hand but unrecorded in inventory records when the bulk of
a seizure is destroyed.

« Seizure custodians did not always establish a new record in CPTS to
separately track the amount of a seizure remaining after a partial
destruction. cPTs is designed to show the entire amount of a drug seizure
as having been destroyed on the initial destruction date. However, local
environmental restrictions at some districts result in large bulk seizures
being destroyed over a period of time. In such instances, seizure
custodians must establish a new record for the remaining portion of the
drugs in cPTs because the system does not automatically do this.
Otherwise, seized drugs will remain on hand but not be recorded in cPTS
records.

« Seizure custodians did not always update cPTs data when seized drugs
were transferred to another agency, destroyed, or moved to a different

location.

Customs officials stated that these data entry problems were typically due
to a low priority being placed on accurately updating cpTs because of
workload and staff restraints and that a higher priority is now being placed
on properly performing these procedures.

The value of property recorded in CPTs as of the date of Customs’
nationwide physical inventory was overstated by millions of dollars

primarily because

+ seizing officers and seizure custodians did not always follow Customs’
procedures for valuing items in seized property records, including items
prohibited for sale in the United States for which no value is to be
recorded,

+ counterfeit items, which have no resale value to Customs, were assigned
values in CPTS, and

+ disposals of seized property were not promptly recorded in CPTS.

As of the date of the physical inventory, counterfeit items and items
prohibited for sale in the United states were recorded in cPTS at a total
value of $20.3 million. In addition, CPTs data incorrectly included items not
in Customs’ possession valued at $27.4 million and initial estimates of
values that were overstated by $15.7 million because the values had not
been adjusted when accurate assessments became available. Property
value errors can result in inaccurate inventory data on reports used to
develop performance indicators and manage seized property.
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Customs officials told us that, except for errors relating to counterfeit
items, these types of errors were primarily attributable to seizing officers’
inattention to or lack of awareness of Customs’ procedures. Regarding
seized counterfeit items, Customs officials told us that until the
administrative or judicial proceeding relating to the seizure has been
completed, counterfeit items held at contractor locations are required to
be insured. Nevertheless, counterfeit items have no resale value to
Customs and, therefore, should be valued at zero in Customs’ financial
statements. Regarding failure to update initial estimated values, we found
that even when appraisals or more accurate valuation information became
available, such information was typically placed in the case files, but cpTs
was not updated. Seizing officers and seizure custodians told us that
updating estimated values was a low priority.

For fiscal year 1992, we found that Customs’ inventory records were not
always promptly updated for transfers of seized property to other agencies
and forfeitures, Similar discrepancies were identified as a result of
Customs’ February 1994 physical inventory.

We found numerous fiscal year 1993 seizures of property and drugs
included in the inventory records that were actually seized by, or
transferred upon seizure to, another agency. When Customs’ data on
seized property activity include values for property and quantities of drugs
in the possession of other agencies, information used by the Congress and
others to oversee governmentwide drug interdiction efforts can be
overstated because data reported by the other agencies would likely
include values and quantities for the same seizures. This problem was
exemplified during a 1992 Customs’ budget hearing for fiscal year 1993
before the House Subcommittee on Appropriations. In a footnote to
statistics presented as part of the hearing that showed Customs'
percentage of federal agency narcotics seizures, Customs acknowledged
that the seizure quantities presented were incorrect due to significant
double-counting among agencies.

This problem has been partially addressed by the Department of Justice,
which has recognized that multiple reporting of narcotics seizures was a
problem common to all federal law enforcement agencies. Justice, through
the El Paso Intelligence Center, issues a unique Federal Drug
Identification Number to each federal agency seizure. This number
identifies the seizing agency and the amount of drugs seized in order to
provide an accurate measurement of federal drug seizures. The system,
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however, is external to Customs, and Customs does not take these data
into consideration when reporting its own seizure activities.

Although the recent physical inventory resulted in Customs identifying and
correcting many significant errors in the recorded values of seized
property, we found that some Customs’ locations did not effectively
perform the inventory procedures designed to ensure that all estimated
values were properly updated and that counterfeit or prohibited items
were not assigned a value. As a result, seized property balances reported
as of the physical inventory date in the notes to Customs’ financial
statements included erroneous values. For example, the originally
estimated value of $490,090 for 335 cartons of t-shirts was included in the
balance because cPTs had not been adjusted to the appraised value of
$147,527. Also, $123,590 for counterfeit brand-name leather handbags was
included in the balance even though such items are to be valued at zero.

In addition to inaccuracies in the seized property records, we found that
the accounting records contained inaccurate and incomplete information
relating to undercover operations. The highly sensitive nature of Customs’
undercover operations often makes it impractical for the activity of these
operations to be routinely reported in detail in the central accounting
records maintained by Customs. As a result, only the advances made by
Customs to these operations, summary information on the use of these
funds, and cash balances from operational proceeds held at fiscal year-end

are maintained in the accounting records.

For fiscal year 1392, we reported that advances made to undercover
operations were not reliably accounted for primarily because related
transactions were not promptly recorded in the accounting records. Our
fiscal year 1993 audit showed that, despite Customs’ implementation of a
quarterly reconciliation process for advances, amounts relating to the use
of funds advanced continued to be inaccurately reported.

Specifically, we found that 69 percent of the 83 advances outstanding as of
September 30, 1993, that we selected for testing at nine locations were
inaccurately recorded. For example, $2.2 million in unspent advances had
been erroneously expensed, $2 million in advances had been returned
prior to the fiscal year end but the recorded outstanding advance amount
had not been reduced, and $.8 million in advances had been charged to the
wrong location or expended prior to year end as far back as 1988, but the
recorded outstanding advance amount had not been reduced.
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Also, in three of the eight undercover operations we tested, some amounts
of drugs or currency were not reliably accounted for. For example, we
found an undercover operation which held up to 287 kilograms (631
pounds) of high-purity cocaine in a safe over a period of 8 months awaiting
controlled deliveries. This holding had not been reported in Customs’
accounting records nor in its monthly reports. For two other undercover
operations, we found a total of $31,600 of unrecorded cash which had
been recovered by Customs agents and held in safes as evidence. Over half
of this cash was from two advances of appropriated funds totaling
$482,000, all of which had been expensed in Customs’ accounting records.
The recovered portion had not been recorded because, according to
Customs agents, recording such information was a low priority.

Further, monthly reports containing summary statistical information on
undercover operations were incomplete and inaccurate. Of the undercover
operations that we tested, seven accumulated statistics on arrests,
indictments, convictions, and seizures. Of these, we found inaccuracies in
the 1993 Monthly Status and Financial Reports for all of them. For
example, the 1993 monthly reports for an undercover operation showed
3,866 pounds of cocaine seized; however, supporting case file
documentation indicated that 13,910 pounds of cocaine were seized. In
another instance, agents for an undercover operation could not support
the amounts of indictments that were reported in the 1993 monthly
reports. The agents told us that they derived the figures from the arrests
for the period because they presumed that an indictment occurred for
each arrest. These inaccuracies, which distort performance results
reported to Customs management and the Congress, were primarily due to
such information often being based on estimates and at times not recorded
promptly or not recorded at all because agents place recording such
information as a low priority.

This lack of accountability combined with the inherently risky nature of
these operations make them prone to unauthorized or illegal activity
occurring and going undetected or making detected illegal activity difficult
to prosecute. For example, we found that $300,000 of proceeds from an
undercover operation had been invested in two stock brokerage accounts
in the name of U.S. Customs since February 1993. The funds were invested
primarily in stocks, with about $100,000 held in an account authorized for
speculative investment. A Customs group supervisor told us that the
accounts were opened for the purpose of earning a higher rate of return
than was otherwise available for the operation’s commercial accounts, and
had been approved by the Office of Enforcement. However, district
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personnel were unable to provide written documentation supporting this
assertion. Subsequent to our inquiries, a Customs official told us that the
two accounts were transferred back to the operation’s commercial

accounts,

In addition to the risk cited above, accurate information on undercover
operations is needed to support internal management decisions and

congressional oversight.

Drugs and Property Seized
or Used in Enforcement
Efforts Were Not
Adequately Safeguarded

Our review showed that tons of illegal drugs and millions of dollars of cash
and property were vulnerable to theft and misappropriation because
Customs did not adequately safeguard this property. Customs’ problems in
adequately safeguarding drugs and property seized or used in its
enforcement efforts spanned key aspects of the seized property and
undercover operations, including inadequate monitoring of controlled
deliveries and poor physical security. These weaknesses showed that this
property is vulnerable to theft and loss and have actually led to the loss
and theft of property and hundreds of pounds of drugs.

As we reported for fiscal year 1992, many of Customs’ district offices held
large quantities of drugs, which required storage and safeguard from theft
and misuse. As of the inventory date, February 11, 1994, the 15 districts we
visited held an average of 24,000 pounds of drugs. Of these, 9 districts held
over 10,000 pounds of drugs, with the largest amount at one district
totaling about 106,000 pounds. This condition makes it especially
important that strict physical safeguards and limited access be maintained.

Acting on a recommendation made in our audit report for fiscal year 1992,
Customs has taken steps towards addressing its storage facility
safeguarding problems. However, for fiscal year 1993, we identified
physical safeguard weaknesses at 20 of the 21 facilities we visited. Also, at
16 of these facilities, unaccompanied seizure custodians had access to the
vaults. In addition, Customs had not established effective agencywide
policies and procedures stipulating how storage containers that hold
seized drugs must be sealed in order to deter unauthorized access into the
storage containers and to enable detection of such actions.

Department of Justice procedures require Customs to keep threshold
amounts® of drugs for evidence in court proceedings and are intended to

3Threshold amounts such as 2 kilograms {4.4 pounds) of heroin, were specified in Attorney General
Order 1256-88, effective April 14, 1988.
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prevent the warehousing of large quantities of seized drugs which are
unnecessary for due process in criminal cases. However, one of the
primary reasons given by Customs officials for the large amounts of drugs
being held was that, in general, Customs’ districts are required to carry out
U.S. Attorney offices’ instructions that drugs be held as evidence,
regardless of whether the threshold amounts are exceeded. A second
reason given was that local environmental restrictions in some geographic
areas make it difficult for district offices to promptly destroy narcotics.

Over the past several years, drugs and property have occasionally been
stolen from Customs storage facilities. For example, in fiscal year 1993,
Customs had 162 kilograms (356 pounds) of cocaine stolen from one of its
storage facilities. Customs officials stated that the thief cut the alarm
transmission line and entered the facility through an improperly secured
skylight in the roof. This case shows, as we pointed out for fiscal year
1992, the risks associated with Customs’ practice of storing large
quantities of narcotics in facilities that do not provide adequate security.

Customs has undertaken significant improvement efforts to strengthen
safeguards at its storage locations. Specifically, it has performed a study
and evaluation of the adequacy of its physical safeguards over seized
property and currency at 21 medium-to-high volume storage facilities. In

addition, Customs constructed new facilities in two districts and has plans
for renovations at other facilities.

In conducting our seized property inventory testing for our andits of
Custors’ fiscal year 1992 and 1993 financial statements, we found
numerous discrepancies between the quantities of drugs recorded in cPTs
and the quantities actually in Customs’ possession. Customs officials
stated, on several occasions, that the differences were due to seizing
officers estimating amounts as opposed to weighing items at the point of
seizure and Customs then not updating the recorded estimated amounts
when true weights were ultimately established. Customs stated that, due
to logistical considerations, it was often not feasible to weigh the items at
the point of seizure. Instead, the drugs were supposed to be weighed when
they were transferred to the custody of the seizure custodians. However,

we found that the estimates were often not corrected when true weights
were ultimately determined.

When seized drugs are controlled based on estimated rather than actual
weights, Customs cannot be assured that the entire quantity of drugs has
been placed under prescribed safeguards, thus creating opportunities for
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items to be misappropriated or stolen without detection. Seizure
custodians at several locations told us that estimated weights were not
always corrected because (1) in previous years, not all of the Customs
locations had scales or the scales were not large enough to accurately
weigh large bales or containers of seized drugs and (2} updating CPTS to
show actual weights was a low priority. During fiscal year 1993, Customs
bought and installed scales for such locations.

Table 3 shows a summary of the discrepancies in drug quantities identified
and corrected by Customs during the physical inventory reconciliation
process. Customs’ primary explanation for the differences was that the
enforcement officer’s original entry to the records was an estimate and
CPTS was not subsequently corrected for the true weight.

Table 3: Summary of Discrepancies in
Drug Quantities ldentified During
Customs’ February 1994 Physical
Inventory of Seized Assets

e

Number of
districts with Pounds  Pounds per
Type of drug discrepancies  Invenioried CPTS  Difference
Cocaine 15 25,181 41,860 (16,679)
Hashish 2 6,117 6,009 108
Heroin 9 228 187 41
Marijuana 18 68,217 73,221 (5,004)
Opium 2 151 43 97
Total 99,894 121,332 (21,438)

Note: Drugs classified as “other” and “unknown” {e.g., LSD) and quantities that could not be
converted into pounds (e.g., boxes) were not included in the summary.

In addition to the control weaknesses over the safeguarding of drugs held
in Customs’ storage locations, drugs used in undercover operations were
also not adequately safeguarded. In some instances, drugs have been
inadvertently lost because of inadequate surveillance procedures being
performed during controlled deliveries. Such occurrences, which can
endanger the public, are not routinely accounted for and reported by

Customs.

We discovered a few instances of quantities of drugs being lost during
controlled deliveries, all of which Customs officials stated were
inadvertent. Customs officials attributed the following two examples
involving the loss of large quantities of drugs to poor surveillance.

Page 34 GAO/AIMD-94-119 Customs’ 1993 Financial Statements



B-252376

Financial Reporting
and Administrative
Control
Improvements
Needed to Overcome
Inadequate Systems
and Staff Resources

One region of Customs, as part of a controiled delivery, lost 150 out of 300
kilograms (660 pounds) of cocaine that had been seized. This case is
currently under grand jury investigation. Customs accounting records did
not show the activity relating to these seized drugs. In its accounting
records, 300 kilograms were entered and subsequently deleted—we
determined this through reviewing the enforcement case file and not from
entries in the accounting records—and the 300 kilograms were re-entered
under a different seizure number giving the appearance that they were not
related.

Another region of Customs lost 100 kilograms (220 pounds) of cocaine as
part of a controlled delivery. This case is currently being investigated by
the Treasury Inspector General. An Inspector General official stated that it
is unclear whether the cocaine lost in this operation had ever been seized
or whether it was a shipment of drugs that was under Customs’
surveillance—not seized—when it was lost. We could not find this activity
in Customs’ seizures records at all.

In addition to the improvement efforts related to trade compliance and
seized assets, which were discussed earlier in this report, Customs has
made progress in five key areas to address deficiencies in its ability to
develop reliable financial statements and accurately account for its
administrative operations. However, Customs must still overcome many
fundamental problems that impair its ability to produce reliable financial
information for internal and external reports.

For Customs to prepare financial statements as mandated by the cro Act,
many accounting adjustments totaling billions of dollars were required,
some of which could not be supported. Also, Customs personnel had to
create several ad hoc routines that were labor-intensive and sometimes
resulted in incomplete and erroneous financial information. At the root of
these problems are (1) financial management systems that were poorly
designed or not designed to report financial results and performance
information and (2) limited resources devoted to Customs’ CFO leadership
team and an ineffective CFO structure. A sustained commitment by the
Commissioner and other senior managers will be required to develop the
systems and staff structure needed to efficiently produce reliable
statements on an ongoing basis.

Improvements During
Fiscal Year 1993

During fiscal year 1993, Customs undertook several efforts to better report
and manage its accounts receivables and insure itself against future losses.
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Accounts Receivable and Debt
Collection Improvements

In addition, it made improvements related to its accountability over fixed

assets, reporting on the use of its budgetary resources, and internal
controls assessments required by the Federal Managers' Financial Integrity

Act (FMFIA).

To more accurately report its fiscal year 1993 accounts receivable balance,
Customs developed accounting policies for defining valid accounts
receivable and developed a reliable methodology for determining the
collectibility of its receivables. This was a time-consuming effort that
involved careful consideration of the types of receivables Customs
accounts for and how to fairly report them, as well as the sources of data
available for developing reliable balances. As a result of this effort, the
accounts receivable balance that Customs reported for September 30,
1993, was much more reliable than that reported for September 30, 1992,
In addition, Customs is now in a better position to develop accurate and
comparable accounts receivable data for fiscal year 1994 and future years.

To better manage its receivables, Customs reorganized its debt collection
unit to optimize staff resources, formalized its collection procedures, and
made an effort to reduce the number of old receivables. Customs
investigated about 42,000 bills totaling approximately $165 million that
were more than 3 years old. As a result, Customs reported that as of
September 30, 1993, it cancelled $62.3 million due to court judgments or
because the receivables were determined to be erroneous, wrote off
$22.8 million that it determined were uncollectible, and collected

$31.6 million. The remaining balance was either being pursued or was
awaiting final determination regarding its collectibility.

Customs also took steps to reduce losses due to insufficient surety bonds.
Customs requires trade participants to obtain surety bonds to ensure that
Customs will be paid in the event that they cannot pay amounts that they
owe to Customs. In testing receivables, we reviewed a representative
saraple of 184 receivables for supplemental duties® valued at $14.7 million
that existed as of September 30, 1993, and found that 89 were fully or
partially uncollectible because the debtor could not pay and the surety
bonds either were insufficient or had expired. For 68 of the 89, the bond
amount did not cover the entire amount due, resulting in $4.9 million of
the total receivable amount that we tested that was uncollectible. For 21,
the bond had expired, resulting in $1.7 million that was uncollectible. In
addition, 11 of the 184 supplemental duty receivables tested were

9Supplemental duties are assessed when Customs reviews import documents and determines that an
importer owes more duties than were originally paid.
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Other Improvements

unsecured because the importer had not obtained a bond, as required by
Customs regulations, and, as a result, $507,000 was uncollectible.
However, about half of the receivables that we tested were more than 3
years old, and, therefore, the related bonds had been established several

years ago.

To reduce future losses due to inadequate bond coverage, Customs
implemented an automated bond liability module in ACS at the beginning of
fiscal year 1993. Customs’ new bond liability module provides information
on annual importer and broker activity that allows Customs personnel to
annually reassess the sufficiency of each importer/broker bond. If bonds
are reassessed annually as planned, this effort should reduce losses due to
bond insufficiency in the future. However, for fiscal year 1993, we found
that many bonds were still not sufficient to cover all of the amounts due to
Customs, and, as a result, Customs was unnecessarily exposed to the
potential loss of revenue.

We reviewed activity associated with a representative sample of 150 bonds
that were active during fiscal year 1993 and found that, for 8 percent,
amounts due to Customs exceeded the bond amount at some time during
the term of the bond. Similarly, we found that for the 24 accelerated
drawback claims that we reviewed, 3 of the claimants had exceeded their
bond coverage at least once during fiscal year 1993. In addition, we
reviewed the files for all bonds in the four largest bond activity categories
and determined that approximately 3 percent did not even meet the
minimum bond amount prescribed by Customs,

Customs officials told us that, in addition to implementation of the new
bond liability module, Customs’ Deputy Assistant Commissioner for the
Office of Management appointed a task force, in early fiscal year 1994, to
review the entire bonding process and recommend improvements. The
task force’s report and recommendations were not available for our
review as of April 1994. However, we believe that this comprehensive
review is a worthwhile step in improving Customs' controls over bond
sufficiency.

Customs took several steps to improve accountability over its fixed assets.
It conducted a comprehensive physical inventory of equipment recorded
in its Property Information Management System, which accounts for
approximately 85 percent of the recorded value of property, and initiated
monthly reconciliations between its accounting records and its logistical
records, which identify where fixed assets are located, These
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reconciliations were intended to help ensure that all activity was recorded
in both sets of records. However, because the two systems were not
integrated, Customs had to rely on time-consuming manual reconciliation
processes, and it could not fully reconcile the two systems as of
September 30, 1993. Customs also conducted a comprehensive study of
replacement costs for all property categories, which enabled a projection
of the timing and expected cost of replacing such items. Also, consistent
with the National Performance Review recommendations, Customs
initiated a study of vehicle fleet utilization. Preliminary results of this
study indicate that Customs’ fleet of 6,444 owned and leased vehicles may
exceed its estimated needs by as much as 1,200 vehicles, or 19 percent. As
a result, Customs is developing a strategy to reduce excess capacity.

Further, Customs produced a Consolidated Statement of Budgetary
Resources and Actual Expenses for fiscal year 1993 in the format required
by oMB. While this represents an improvement over the fiscal year 1992
disclosure, for fiscal year 1993, Customs was unable to report $1.6 billion
of its costs by budget program. In addition, there were discrepancies
between the total amount of actual program expenses reported in this
statement and the total amount of operating expenses reported on the
Consolidated Statement of Operations and Changes in Operating Net
Position. Custorus subsequently made revisions to eliminate this
discrepancy, and these amounts are equal on the statements
accompanying this report. However, we did not verify the propriety of the
changes because our fieldwork had been completed when the revised

budgetary statement was provided to us.

Finally, Customs instituted a comprehensive Federal Managers’ Financial
Integrity Act training program and began conducting mid-year reviews of
all current material weaknesses to ensure that corrective actions are

on-target and effective.

Core Financial Systems Do
Not Readily and Reliably
Provide Needed Financial
Information

As we reported for fiscal year 1992, Customs’ core financial systems,
which include its general ledger and related subsidiary ledgers, were
incomplete and included amounts that were in error or could not be
supported. It took Customs almost 6 months to “close out” its general
ledger and finalize its year-end financial statements for fiscal years 1992
and 1993. This occurred because Customs’ core financial systems did not

include all activity (transactions) that occurred during the period, and they
were not designed to properly summarize data as needed for the
statements. As a result, special computer programs had to be developed to
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extract needed information, some data had to be manually compiled, and
many adjustments had to be made after the reporting date.

Many of these difficulties stemmed from systems that were not integrated
because of the lack of an effective overall systems development strategy at
the time the systems were developed. For example, as we reported in
September 1992, to speed implementation, many subsidiary systems were
developed simultaneously with insufficient attention to whether data from
these multiple systems could be efficiently exchanged or summarized. This
inability to support financial reporting was further exacerbated by many of
the systems being designed primarily to monitor program activity with
insufficient emphasis on financial reporting. However, problems also
occurred because Customs’ day-to-day processes and internal controls did
not effectively and promptly identify discrepancies which required
investigation and adjustments to the accounting records.

As aresult of the lack of integrated systems and ineffective processes and
controls, amounts suramarized in Customs’ general ledger did not include
complete and accurate information on its fund balance with Treasury,
accounts receivable, aircraft parts inventory, fixed assets, accounts
payable, and net position. Specifically, for fiscal year 1993, we found the
following problems.

Customs had not resolved a $32 million backlog of unreconciled
differences between its records of cash receipts and Treasury’s records of
Customs’ cash receipts, even though at least 6 months had elapsed since
the differences were recorded. Of this amount, $16 million was over 1 year
old, and $4.4 million of the total was over 5 years old. As a result, Customs’
custodial revenues may be understated and other accounts may be
misstated.

Customs had not effectively resolved over $43 million of unidentified
interagency charges that had been recorded in a suspense account for at
least 6 months. Although Customs made an accounting adjustment to
report these charges as operating expenses in its financial statements,
these charges were not adequately researched to determine if they were
even properly chargeable to Customs. Our subsequent analysis of

$39 million of these charges showed that Customs' adjustment included
$6.8 million of erroneous charges and $3.6 million in credits to Customs
that should have been credited to another agency.

The major accounts receivable categories were not routinely recorded in
the general ledger, and, as a result, a labor-intensive effort was required to
determine what was owed to Customs as of September 30, 1993. For
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example, to develop a balance for its largest category of receivables—over
$750 million, or 80 percent of the balance at September 30, 1993—Customs
had to go through extensive ad hoc and manual routines to identify and
retrieve from its Automated Commercial System (acs) all unpaid items
where goods were released prior to fiscal year-end. Similar procedures
had to be performed for its other major categories of receivables to
determine what was owed. Also, because it was unsure of the reliability of
the receivables data retrieved, Customs had to perform detailed tests to
ensure that identified amounts were correct.

« Although Customs was eventually able to provide balances for its major
receivables, it could not provide a summary of the transactions that
accounted for the change in the accounts receivable balance between the
beginning and the end of the fiscal year. Such information would include,
at a minimum, for each major category of Customs’ accounts receivable
(1) total new receivables, (2) total collections of receivables, and (3) the
total amount written off as uncollectible.

» Customs could not support $54 million of amounts recorded as due from
other agencies under interagency agreements because it did not follow the
procedures it had developed to monitor detailed accounts receivable
activity. For example, Customs did not reconcile its interagency
agreement register—which provides a detailed list of outstanding
interagency agreements and tracks receivable activity—to the central
accounting records.

« Customs aircraft parts inventory records were not reliable for managing
and reporting purposes because Customs and its contractor, who is
responsible for maintaining the inventory, could not fully account for all
activity that occurred during the year.

« The fixed asset balance that Customs reported on its financial statements
excluded a significant portion of such assets because Customs had not
maintained records of their historical cost. These omitted assets were
estimated by Customs to be valued at about $300 million or 36 percent of
the value of fixed assets recorded; however, Customs had insufficient
support for this amount. After a few unsuccessful attempts to determine
these assets’ values, Customs decided to exclude these unsupported
amounts from the summary balance reported, rather than report an
unreliable amount. We concurred with this decision.

» To determine the amount of accounts payable to report on its financial
statements, Customs performed an extensive review of payments made
between October 1, 1993, and January 13, 1994, to identify what goods and
services paid for during that time were received prior to fiscal year-end
and thus should have been included in accounts payable and the related
expense accounts, This approach was extremely labor-intensive and slow.
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Accounts payable could not be readily determined based on year-end
account balances because existing systems do not record these
transactions in a timely manner. Because of limitations in Customs’
automated receiving report system, accounts payable are recorded only
when both the acquired goods or services and related invoices have been
received, as opposed to when the goods or services were received,
whether the invoice was received or not. Invoices were sometimes
received months after the goods or services and, therefore, the related
accounts payable were likewise recorded months later. This problem also
resulted in Customs’ operating expense accounts being understated and
budgetary accounts for undelivered orders—sometimes referred to as
unliquidated obligations—being overstated by $26 million at September 30,
1993.

In addition to the $26 million of net adjustments to record accounts
payable, unliquidated obligations required further reductions totaling
$107 million to correct intergovernmental accounts, adjust advances,
cancel unspent “M” account balances, and deobligate unneeded balances.
We identified $21 million of unliquidated obligations which should be
deobligated and returned to the U.S. Treasury. The need for Customs to
deobligate unneeded obligations was also reported by us last year.!
Customs’ Director of Contract Administration stated that staff were in the
process of a detailed review and outside confirmation of unliquidated
obligations in order to determine the amounts to be billed or deobligated.
Because Customs recorded unsupported amounts in many of its accounts
at year-end, rather than recording transactions throughout the year, the
resulting balances were not reliable. For example, Customs did not
routinely account for appropriations as they were expended and simply
calculated the amount needed to make the statement of operations
balance based on the amount of operating expenses not covered by
offsetting collections or other sources. In addition, for fiscal year 1993,
Customs artificially adjusted, or forced, many large amounts so that its
statements would balance, For example, about $100 million of unidentified
cash sources were included in the statement of cash flows and over

$122 million of unidentified net increases were made to operating net
position.

Customs plans to address some of the problems stemming from
unintegrated systems as part of a long-term system redesign project

Financial Management: Customs’ Accounting for Budgetary Resources Was Inadequate
(GAO/AIMD-94-23, December 14, 1993).
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intended to encompass the reengineering of Customs’ business practices
and allow Customs to better comply with new laws and regulations,
including the cFo Act. Initial planning for the project, commonly referred
to as “acs Redesign,” began in February 1993. Specific objectives include
integrating information systems and maximizing electronic interaction
among federal entities and trade participants. As of April 1994, the project
was still in the relatively early stages of development, with most efforts to
date focusing on identifying user needs. Until improved systems are
available, it is important that Customs carefully analyze and review all of
the information developed for its financial statements so that errors can be

minimized.

However, Acs Redesign will not directly address problems such as delays
in resolving unreconciled differences. In addition, the redesign scope does
not cover procurement-related problems, such as accounts payable
inaccuracies. The Commissioner recognizes these problems and stated in a
February 1994 letter to us that Customs will take appropriate action. The
Commissioner noted that Customs is currently prohibited from pursuing
procurement-related system enhancements pending a Department of the
Treasury study of a departmentwide procurement system.

Improvements Needed in
CFO Leadership and CFO
Structure

While some progress in improving financial management has been made, a
qualified cFo leadership team is needed to correct the major financial
management problems Customs faces. Customs’ officials stated that
financial management historically has held a lower priority than what was
viewed as the more urgent needs of its program operations—trade
compliance and contraband interdiction. As a result, in addition to the lack
of financial management considerations in system development that was
previously mentioned, the personnel assigned to the cFo function and the
cFo leadership team had little or no experience in developing the types of
financial statements required by the cFo Act. This problem is not unique to
Custorms since the cFo Act has only been in place for 3-1/2 years and most
federal agencies did not prepare comprehensive financial statements prior

to the act.

The current team has worked hard to implement improvements during
fiscal year 1993, but Customs has not dedicated sufficient resources to
developing complete and reliable financial statements that can be used by
Customs’ management, the Congress, and others to make informed
decisions. Sound financial management is and will become even more
critical for assessing Customs’ performance.
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The Commissioner of Customs has recognized that Customs still faces
major challenges in the financial management area and that a sustained
effort will be critical to achieving sound financial management at Customs.
In this regard, the Commissioner and the Deputy Commissioner have
demonstrated the vision and dedication to strengthening the CFO
leadership group. For example, Customs is currently seeking a cFo with
the experience and expertise to provide the leadership needed. However,
while this is an appropriate starting point, it will also take a sound support
team consisting of an appropriate number of skilled professionals to
produce an effective CFO structure.

Customs has about 190 staff at its national finance center in Indianapolis,
Indiana, and another 86 in headquarters in Washington, D.C.,, that are
under its cro. However, responsibility for compiling, testing, and
consolidating the data needed for its financial statements has primarily
been charged to a core of approximately 8 professionals detailed full-time
to the effort, assisted by another 19 people on a temporary basis. Although
these people are dedicated and hardworking, this level of resources
cannot address the complexities of implementing the cro Act for an
organization the size of Customs. The size and the magnitude of the
financial management problems facing Customs will require dedication of
significantly more staff than are currently assigned. Whether this
deficiency can be filled through existing personnel or will require outside
hiring is unknown.

Other Management Issues

Other operational matters came to our attention that did not affect our
ability to opine on the financial statements but that merit management’s
attention because they represent potential areas of waste or abuse within
Customs’ operations. These items were identified as part of our audit
procedures that were designed to understand the reasonableness of
reported amounts based on the nature of Customs operation. The
following provides a list of the more significant issues we identified.

Customs exercises inadequate oversight over the contractor that manages
its aircraft parts inventory. Customs’ minimal involvement in the
acquisition, receipt, issuance, and inventorying of aircraft parts increases
the potential for inventory to be stolen, destroyed, or temporarily diverted
without detection. Further, Customs’ reimbursements of more than

$42 million to the contractor could include costs for services that were
never actually rendered because the responsible Customs official
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approved payments without verifying the validity of the charges by
comparing them to the goods or services received.

Customs officials told us that they rely on the audit oversight efforts of the
Defense Contract Audit Agency to detect invalid charges. Although such
audits may provide some assurance to Customs, this does not relieve it of
its contract oversight responsibilities. In addition, as a result of our
inquiries over the increasing inventory amounts, the contractor performed
a study of Customs’ “stock”—which consists principally of all parts other
than engines and radar-related items—inventory levels and found that
approximately 95 percent of the stock inventory was suspected to be in
excess of program needs. This 95 percent excess was for about $35 million
or 33 percent of Customs’ overall inventory. The contractor did not
evaluate whether similar excesses existed for other items such as engines

and radar equipment parts.

Customs has taken steps towards addressing these problems and
preventing further accumulation of excess parts. As a result of this study,
Customs is proceeding with implementation of a centralized inventory
management plan to address the stock problem. This plan includes
implementing centralized inventory management and control, establishing
automated maximum stock levels based on an analysis of past usage, and
preparing lists of suspected overstocked items to determine if retention is

justified.

+ Customs maintains centralized property records for all equipment with a
value greater than $300 and records these amounts as assets in the general
ledger. However, about 92 percent of these equipment items have a value
less than the $5,000 threshold used by Customs and many other federal
agencies for financial reporting of fixed assets. Consequently, detailed
reviews of invoices and adjustments of accounting records are required to
reclassify property transactions that should have been recorded as
expenses. In addition, maintaining detailed records and performing
reconciliation procedures for these small dollar items—which represented
only 15 percent of the recorded value of equipment as of September 30,

1993—was a labor-intensive effort.

« Customs’ procurement process is delayed by cumbersome contract
reviews and approvals. Based on a sample of 32 contracts awarded during
fiscal year 1993, it took an average of 334 days—with a high of 791 days
and a low of 112—to process and award a contract. In this regard, the
National Performance Review found that federal procurement systems
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rely on rigid rules and procedures, extensive paperwork, detailed design
specifications, and multiple inspections and audits.

In Customs’ case, we found the following examples: a $1.5 million
minimum ($39 million maximum) contract took 708 days to award, partly
due to an 8-month delay in Customs’ internal legal review; approval of the
justification for other than full and open competition contributed to a
$105,200 contract taking over 6 months to be approved; and a $4 million
contract was awarded 5 months after agreement with the vendor was
reached due in part to Customs’ internal reviews and Treasury Department
review. Some of the procedures that Customs follows are stipulated by the
Federal Acquisition Regulations and are not within Customs’ control to
change. However, Customs and Treasury are in the process of reviewing
Customs' own procurement procedures in an attempt to identify
opportunities for streamlining the process.

Due to systems limitations, invoices for 87 percent of the dollars Customs
paid to vendors were processed manually, which is cumbersome and
increases opportunities for error. In addition, manual processing can be
slow and consume staff resources that could be used elsewhere.

Customs paid $46 million in “administratively uncontrollable overtime”
(AUO) to 3700 enforcement personnel during fiscal year 1993. Over

90 percent received the maximum 25 percent of base pay. We found that
for 23 of 25 employees in our random sample of Auo recipients, Customs
could not locate the required certification from the employees’ supervisors
regarding time worked. One employee had no documentation for overtime
worked. In addition, a Customs Office of Human Resources official told us
that their records did not show that AUC payments were made to two of the
AUO recipients in our sample.

Customs paid personnel compensation and benefits of almost $1.2 billion
to over 19,000 employees. We tested a representative sample of 92 payroll
checks and found that (1) thrift savings, life insurance, and health
insurance deduction authorizations were missing for 18 employees, or

20 percent of the sample we tested and (2) deductions differed from the
rates documented on the authorization forms provided to us for another 9
employees, or 10 percent of our sample. According to Customs officials,
the authorization documents were apparently never filed after the
computer records were updated. In addition, we found 13 payroll checks
were issued without proper approval or current authorization of pay. This
missing documentation was attributed to backlogs in filing authorization
of pay forms.
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These examples highlight some of the ways that reliable financial
management information can assist program managers and others in
assessing Customs' performance and in identifying areas in Customs’

operations that need to be evaluated.

Customs’ controls to prevent or detect unauthorized access and
Controls Over Access intentional or inadvertent unauthorized modifications to critical and

to Computer sensitive data and computer programs were ineffective. Customs officials
stated that a major contributing factor to this situation is that their primary

Programs and Data ‘ ,
concern has been to enhance customer service and expedite systems

Were Ineffective development efforts and that, as a result, system security has received less
attention. Specifically, we found that

« thousands of internal and external users had inappropriate access to
critically sensitive production programs and data files because Customs
had improperly implemented off-the-shelf access control software,

« some elements of Customs' data communications were inadequately
protected from unauthorized access,

« formal procedures had not been established for analyzing and
investigating apparent computer security violations, and

« no mechanism for routine independent assessments of Customs’
information management security program had been implemented.

Also, although Customs has conducted a series of studies regarding
recovery of its mainframe and telecommunications environment in the
event of a disaster, a comprehensive disaster recovery plan had not been

developed.

These system security problems compound the weaknesses previously
discussed in this report and jeopardize the security and reliability of the
operations that are central to Customs’ mission, including the systems and
criteria used to monitor the payment of duties, fees, and taxes; identify
high-risk import shipments; and account for seized goods and drugs and
law enforcement operations. In addition, they could result in inappropriate

disclosure of sensitive importer information.

These weaknesses are especially disturbing because most of them were
identified and reported to Customs in a 1989 risk assessment. According to
the responsible officials, sotne corrective actions were taken in response
to that assessment, and Customs, believing that the weaknesses had been
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Conclusions

adequately addressed, certified, in 1992, that Customs’ three sensitive
systems conformed to federal computer security guidelines. Such
certifications are required every 3 years by oMB Circular A-130 to support
accreditation of federal systems containing sensitive information.
However, our findings show that the weaknesses we identified were not
adequately addressed. Therefore, in our opinion, Customs’ accreditation of
its sensitive systems, which was based on these certifications, is not valid.

Because of their very sensitive nature, we plan to report our detailed
findings and recommendations regarding the security of Customs’
automated systems separately in a letter with limited distribution. We
discussed the weaknesses informally with Customs’ top management and,
during the course of the review, worked with Customs technical staff to
identify corrective actions for specific deficiencies. In addition, Customs’
management has expressed its commitment to correct all deficiencies and
has requested our assistance in evaluating planned corrective actions as
they are established.

The second financial audit at Customs showed that most of the serious
financial management problems that existed during fiscal year 1992 still
existed during fiscal year 1993. The audit also showed that most of these
problems had a significant detrimental effect on the efficiency and
effectiveness of Customs’ mission-related programs as well as on the
reliability of its financial statements. Internal controls were not designed
and implemented to effectively ensure compliance with trade laws,
safeguard assets, or provide useful and reliable information needed to
manage Customs operations.

Customs took several significant steps to improve its internal control
structure and its ability to report more reliable financial information for
fiscal year 1993. However, many of its efforts to correct identified
deficiencies are in the early stages of development and are not likely to be
implemented for several years. As a result, it will take a significant and
sustained commitment by Customs’ management to build on efforts now
under way to develop new systems and institute effective controls. In
these cases, it is important that Customs take interim steps to address its
weaknesses so that it can fulfill the reporting requirements of the cro Act
and minimize opportunities for violations of trade laws without undue
delay.
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-
Recommendations

We reaffirm the recommendations resulting from our audit of Customs’
fiscal year 1992 financial statements regarding Customs’ controls over
(1) the movement and disposition of imported goods, (2) approval of
drawback claims, (3) seized assets, (4) property and weapons, (b) use of
and accounting for its operating funds, and (6) reporting under FMFIA.
These recommendations and the status of Customs’ responses are
summarized in appendix II. In addition, we are making the following new
recommendations as a result of our review of Customs’ internal controls

during fiscal year 1993.

We recommend that the Commissioner direct the Assistant Commissioner
for Inspection and Control to

« require personnel at ports of entry to maintain accurate and up-to-date
data in AMS and to routinely investigate all shipments that have not been
released by the end of a prescribed period and

» distribute written guidance emphasizing to district offices the importance
of maintaining accurate data on in-bond shipments and monitor the
districts to ensure they comply with headquarters directives requiring the
entry of in-bond departure and arrival data and the resolution of overdue

shipments.

We recommend that the Commissioner of Customs direct the Chief
Financial Officer, in conjunction with the Assistant Commissioner for
Enforcement and other appropriate officials, to develop and maintain an
appropriately secure accounting system to record all of the essential
activity that occurs in undercover operations.

We recommmend that the Commissioner direct the Chief Financial Officer
in conjunction with other appropriate officials to

promptly review all reconciliations of budget clearing accounts and
suspense accounts, verify that all discrepancies are fully researched and
properly resolved, and identify and propose for write-off any

unreconcilable amounts;
where Customs has the authority to do so, eliminate any unnecessary

procurement reviews identified in Customs’ assessment of such processes;
monitor implementation of the policies and procedures identified in
Customs’ centralized inventory management plan to ensure that aircraft
parts inventory levels do not exceed program needs;

develop procedures to account for annual changes to aircraft materials

and parts inventory records;
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« determine the relative costs and benefits of using the Property Information

Management System to maintain accountability only for items with a value
over $5,000 and consider delegating record-keeping responsibility for
small value items to field personnel. Appropriate centralized controls,
such as monitoring levels of repairs and maintenance expense and
conducting periodic inventories, should still be maintained. In addition,
the distinction between asset purchases and expense items should occur
when the item is requested and the local property officer checks for
availability, not by accounting personnel after the invoice is received.
complete the study of utilization and distribution of Customs’ vehicle fleet
and coordinate with the General Services Administration to dispose of
excess assets and implement a policy to ensure effective use of vehicles
retained,;

review, in conjunction with the Director of Human Resources and the
Office of Enforcement, administratively uncontrollable overtime charges
to ensure that ongoing payments at the maximum rate are justified; and
review and update documentation supporting personnel pay rates and
deductions and institute procedures to ensure that such documentation is
maintained on a current basis.

Further, we recommend that the Commissioner evaluate the technical
proficiency and experience of existing staff under the cro to determine
specific staff needs for effectively addressing Customs’ financial
management problems.

In commenting on a draft of this report, Customs agreed with our
recommendations and stated that it plans to take action in every area
noted in the report. Customs also discussed corrective actions that it has
implemented or planned, most of which are identified in this report. In
addition, Customs stated that it recently established (1) an executive-level
CFO Steering Committee and cro Working Group to address its financial
management problems and (2) a task force to evaluate the way in which it
manages and conducts its undercover operations.

While the efforts described in Customs’ comments appear to be designed
to address specific areas of weaknesses identified in our report, it is
critical that they be properly implemented. As stated previously, most of
these improvements involve long-term efforts that will require a significant
and sustained commitment by Customs’ management.
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In closing, we commend the Customs Sexvice for its second-year effort to
develop reliable financial statements. We believe that although a great
many challenges still remain, Customs’ progress to date represents a
significant contribution toward the CFo Act’s ultimate goal of improving
financial management throughout the federal government.

YbA. Bt

Charles A. Bowsher
Comptroller General
of the United States

April 22, 1994
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Message from the Commissioner

The U.S. Customs Service is responsible for
enforcing laws and regulations governing inter-
national traffic and trade. In doing so, Customs
provides a bread spectrum of commercial,
enforcement, and inspection services to the
American public. Customs also serves as an
intermediary in a global trading system that

is rapidly changing. The globalization of the
sconomy, the proliferation of trade agreements,
and the continuing drug threat definss whers
Customs will be focusing its efforts to perform
its mission in the future,

The Chief Financial Officer’s (CFO) Act of 1980,
placed new emphasis on government-wide efforts
to promota better financial management in this
era of change and re-engineering. Customs efforts
to implement CFO requirements have added
impetus to the far-ranging finandal management
improvements begun at Customs in the last
several years. The integrity and accuracy of
Customs financial systems and the adequacy

of the procedures in place to assure responsibility
and accountability for public funds remain

high priorities.

This is the second Annual CF(} Report with
accompanying comprehensive financial statements,
This repart provides an overview of our mission,
goals and accomplishments as well as areas that
need improvement. Racent efforts focused on

the continuing aggressive collection of debt,
implementation of a new core accounting system,

minimiziog late payments, and improving the
accounting for fixed asset inventories. Additionally,
we have greatly expanded the scope and intensity
of efforts to improve management and interna)
contrpls within Customs.

Customs employees made significant contri-
butions to enable us to accomplish our mission
more effectively during Fiscal Year 1893. Together,
we are seeking to maximize compliance with
U.S. trade law by instituting programs to increase
voluntary compliance, improving automated
targeting, and enhancing facilitation of trade. We
have developed a new comprehensive outbound
enforcement program that includes automated
targeting, noo-intrusive inspections, and a
vigorous investigation program. In response to
increased smuggler sophistication, our employeas
are improving port of entry narcotic detection,
strengthening the detarrent to smuggling between
ports of entry, and have enlisted the support of
the trade community in combating smuggling.

1 am proud aof Customs overall mission
accomplishments and our efforts to create an
atmosphere of improved financial management.
Although I realize that our efforts hava yieldad
substantial financial management improvements,
1 recognize that we still need to intensify our
afforts in this area. I believe this Aonual GFO
Report is an excellent vehicle to communicate
our continued progress and commitment in
these areas.

/‘;{,‘7,L /tdm
George |, Weise
Commissioner of Customs
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Mission and Goals of the
United States Customs Service

Background

The 11.S. Customs Service (Customs) is the oldest
federal agency. The work of Customs—inspecting
cargo to determine admissibility and assessing
duty—was one of the original functions of the
federal government and the primary source of its
revenue. Despite the growth in world trade, the
emergence of new threats to America’s public
health, and the impact of technology on import
processing, Customs is still dedicated to ensuring
that trade across our borders is in compliance
with U.S. laws and regulatious.

Customs does its work through three major
programs:
Trade and Tariff—The collection of duty
from imported merchandise, the determi-
nation of admissibility, the maintenance
of trade statistics and the provision of
setvices to the trade community.

Inspection and Control—The inspection
of passengers, cargo and conveyances to
identify smuggled contraband and other
violations.

Enforcement—The investigation of all
violations of Customs and related laws,
and the interdiction of contraband
through land, sea and air operations,

These three programs work together to achieve
the mission of Customs.

Mission and Goaks

The mission of the .S, Customs Service can be
traced to the Constitutional Convention of 1787
which first delegated to the central government
the powar to collect taxes on imports and to
regulate commerce. Since that time, Congress
has added octher responsibilities to the original
mission of Customs because of its unique position
at the nation’s borders. 1n recent times, Customs
has helped American industry compete in a global
sconomy by enforcing laws intended to pravent
unfair trading practices and has pratected public
health by interdicting narcotics and hazardous
goods before they enter the country.

The demands of the future will presant new chall-
enges for Customs. In meeting these challenges,
Customs role as the nation's principal border
agency will remain constant as it has since 1789,
The mission of Customs is to ensure that all
goods entering and exiting the United States do
so in accardance with all laws and regulations,
and includes:

Import Trode

Mission: (1) Assessing and collecting revenues
in the form of duties, taxes and fees on imported
merchandise; (2) enforcing U.S. laws intended to
prevent illegal trade practices; and (3) regulating
the movement of persons, carriers, merchandise
and commodities between the 1.8, and other
nations while facilitating legitimate trade.

Gool: Maximize trade compliance through

a balanced program of informed compliance,
targeted enforcement actious and the facilitation
of complying cargo.

Narcotics and Money Laundering

Mission; (1] lnterdicting narcotics and other
contreband; and (2) protecting the American
public and eavironment from prohibited
hazardous and noxious products.

Goal: (1) Interdict narcotics and dismantle

the smuggling organizations; and (2) identify,
disrupt and dismantle the systems and organiza-
tions that launder the proceeds generated by
smuggling, trade fraud and export violations.

Export Trade

Mission: Enforcing certain provisions of the
axport cantrol laws of the United States.

Goal: Maximize compliance with export
control laws and regulations of the 1.8,
while maintaining facilitation.

In achieving these goals, Customs interacts with
many customers. Customs works with the trade
community of brokers and importers in moving
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over $550 billion of imports into American
commerce, About 450 million travelers also
pass through Customs when entering this
country. Customs is committed to improving
the leve) of service to these customers while
achieving its mission.

Size and Scope of Oparations

Customs processes all imports, passengers and
conveyances entering this country to collect
duties and to ensure compliance with over 600
laws intended to protect domestic industry,
public health and environmental quelity.

The explosive grawth of world trade in recent
years—and expectation for faster growth in the
future—highlight the impartance of Customs
mission. With the growth of trade, the unimpeded
fiow of commerce across the Nation's borders
becomes more critical to the health of the U.S.
economy. However, with this growth comes
increased opportunitias for illegal trade practices
that may damage domestic industry and for the
smuggling of contraband that threatens public
health and safety.

Consider Customs workload:

20

1963 1984 1985

Import Entries
(in millions)

1966 1987 1988 4989 1590 (991 {992 1993

R Forrd EEER informal

Table | Import Entries, FY 1983—FY 1993
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During 1983, approximately $550 billion safety and health provisions of other agencies,
of merchandise was imported into the and intercepting any traveler who may be
United States. Customs processed over carrying contraband.

27 million import entries; targeting poten-
tial trade law violations for inspection;
determining admissibility and compliance
with various trade agreements; assessing
duty and maintaining trade statistics.

In 1993, Customs collected over $21 billion
in duties, excise taxes and fees.

Also, during FY 1993, Customs modified

its procedures and trained its workforce to
accommadata the North American Free Trade
Agreement [NAFTA) which became effective in
January 1994, NAFTA creates new challenges
for Customs. The Agreement immediataly
eliminated tariffs on most goods originating in

Over 451 million passengers 5“"’_""1 the Mexico, and will phase out all tariffs on Mexican
U.S. in 1993, Customs is respun.'nble for goods within 15 years. it also mandates strict
collecting duties on the traveler's foreign compliance with country-ef-origin requirements

purchases, enforcing agricultural, public

Arriving Passengers
{in millions)
500
400
300
200
100
o
1983 1984 1985 1986 1987 1988 1989 (9%Q |99 1992 1993

Tabia 2 Arriving Passengers, FY |983—FY 1993
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1983 1984 {985 (986 1587

Total Collections
(in billions)

1588 198% 1990 [%91 1992 1993

Table 3 Total Collections, FY 1981—FY 1993

and the protection of intellectual property
rights. As the NAFTA. is created, Customs must
continue to improve its systems for effectively
enforcing trade law and facilitating commerce.
The accomplishments prasented in this annual
report describe Customs progress in preparing
for these challenges.

Amount
Source {millions)
Customs Duties $19,132
Excise Taxes 1,179
User Fees 1,153
Fines and Panulities 57
Othar Recelpts )
Total 321,564

Table 4 Collections by Source, FY 1993
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Import Trade

In the future, the growing complexity of inter-
national trade and developments in modern
technology will beighten the challenge that
Customs faces as protector of the nation's borders.
Unless counteracted, predatory and unfair trade
practices will increasingly place lawful importers,
domestic industry and the American public at
risk. In addition, the high speed movement of
goods and the electronic exchange of data and
funds will continue to revalutionize the way that
corporations conduct business and create new
avenues for evading our nation’s trade laws.

To meet this challengs, Customs implemented in
FY 1993 a comprehensive strategy that integrates
all aspects of the organization in enforcing U.S.
trade laws. This strategy focuses Customs efforts
on a small number of clearly defined violations of
trade law. The goal of this strategy is to maximize
the compliance of imports with U.S. trade law.

It has three major compenents:

* Increasing the level of voluntary
compliance;

*» Improving the targeting of trade law
violations through the refinement of
Customs automated systems and the
collection of intelligance; and

* Facilitating the movement of cargo
that is known ta be in compliance,

Voluntory Compliance

Customs does not curreatly bave the capability
to reliably measure the level of compliance of
all imports. However, Customs is developing the
ability to routinely examine randomly selected
sampies of import entries. This practice will
provide information that will enhance Customs
ability to target non-compliance.

Although limited to a small number of ports
and only nine of the over 800 commodity
classifications, compliance data is beginning

to reveal that Customs is relatively effective

in collecting the correct amount of duty owed
to the Treasury, However, other violations con-
ceming the proper dlassification of merchandise,
country-of-origin marking, and accuracy of trade
statistics appear to ocour with greater frequency.
These violations affect Customs ability to ensure
compliance with trade agreements and generate
accurate trade data—both of which are vital in
formulating trade policy in the new global
sconomy. The measurement of compliance

will be incorporated in all ports and across all
commodity classifications, ultimately yielding
a national measure of trade compliance.

Results of Compliance Measurement Studies

Overall
Commodity Compllance
Automobiles %A4X - 990X
Trudks a75% - 95.0%
Auto Parts 616X — 678%
Computers 64.0% T7.2%
ADP Peripherals TA4% - B22%
ADP Parts 644% - 734X
Fibarboard 62T% - T25%
Telephone Equipment 735% - 803%
Steel Pipe 76.9% - 895X

Ravenue Trade Data

Compliance Compliance
99.9% 99.9%
99.9% 99.9%
99.1% 90.8%
9.9% 83.7%
96.7% 9%.8%
38.0% 8l.1%
925% 743%
95.9% BL7X
99.9% 87.3%
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Targeting of Trade i.aw Violations

The huge volume of impaorts prevents Customs
from inspecting all imported cargo and reviewing
all import documentation. Customs selectivity
process compares the attributes of imported
goods against national and local criteria to
target both cargo and documentation for more
intensive review by Customs inspectors and
import specialists. In FY 1993, Customs in
spectors conducted examinations of about 8
percent of all imported cargn. Import Spedialists
reviewed about 45 percent of all entry summary

1993 Cargo Examinations

General

/4%

Unexamined / ™~ Intensive

53% %

1993 Entry Summary Reviews

Reviewed

/ 45%

/

Not Reviewed
55%

documentation for misclassification and duty
assessment errors.

By refining its automated systems and incorporat-
ing intelligence data into the selection criteria,
Customs is becoming more effsctive in targeting
shipments that contain potential trade law
violations. In FY 1993, Customs performed fewer
intensive cargo examinations than in previous
years; but these exams yielded a higher number of
discrepancies. This measure indicates a reduction
in the impediment that Customs imposes on the
flow of commerce and an increase in the efficiency
with which inspectional resources are deployed.

Examination and Discrepancy Rate
600,000

400,000

200,000

1991 1992 1993
IR Intensive Exarns W Discrepancy Rate

Merchandise Seizures and Penalties

1991 1992 1993
Merchandise Seizures nfa* $206M $257M
Penalties Collected $7.9M  $7.6M $10.5M

* Definition changes since |992 make comparisons
1o 199) impossible.

Customs seizes cargo and imposes penalties
when cargo contains a violation of law. [n most
cases, these enforcement actions are the result of
examinations. Although the number of intensive
examinations has dropped, the value of seizures
and penalties has increased over FY 1992 levels.
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The number of seizures resulting from the viola-
tion of intellectual property rights has increased
almost 60 percent over FY 1992 levels corresponding
to the growing threat of copyright and trademark
violations as more foreign-produced merchandise
competes in the American market,

As part of this comprehensive approach to
trade enforcement, Customs has focused more
of its investigative activities on criminal
organizations involved in trade fraud. In one
recent case involving quota, transhipment and
undervaluation fraud from a single country-of-
origin, 34 companies have been accepted for
criminal prosecution and 18 companies and
individuals were charged with Customs
vioiations. As a result of this investigation,

32 U.S. importers have tendered over

$4.5 million in payments to Customs.

Facilitation of Cargo

Customs has continued to expand those programs
that promote the unimpeded flow of trade that

is in compliance with U.S. law. “Line Release”
and “Paperless Release” are automated systems
designed to expedite the release of high-volume,
low-risk cargo. In FY 1993, over 40 percent of all
automated entries processed by Customs were
released through these facilitative programs.

Percent of All Automated Entries

on Facilitative Programs
50

40

30

20

1591 1992 1993
I Line Release EEEEEE Paperless Release

During FY 1993, Customs has initiated the Pre-
Import Review Program (PIRP). This pragram
facilitates the movement of merchandise because
it ensures acceptance at each of the importation
phases. [t provides importers with the certainty
needed for the classification of goods prior to
their importation. As part of the program, Customs
offers the upportunity to be pre-approved for
expedited entry and puperless processing.

Narcotics Interdiction

Customs contributes to the Federal effort to
raduce the national dependency on illegal
narcotics by seizing this contraband while in
transit into the U.S. when it is at maximum
purity and in substantial quantities.

U.S. consumption of cocaine during FY 1992
was estimated by the RAND Corporatior to be
651,000 pounds. Althuugh no estimates are
available for

FY 1993, trends suggest that consumption was
slightly above TY 1992 levels. During FY 1943,
Customs interdiction efforts seized 175,000
pounds of cocaine. This represents a 28 percent
reduction from the previous year. By contrast,
Customs seizures of heroin and marijuana have
increased substantially.

The downturn in cocaine seizures is believed
to be the result of increased sophistication of
the smugglers in concealing narcotics in
manufactured commercial products. To respond
to this threat, Customs has redoubled its efforts
by focusing on three areas of emphasis:

» Improving the detection of concealed
narcotics at the port of entry;

+ Strengthening the deterrent to smuggling
between the ports of entry; and

« Enlisting the support of the trade
community in combating smuggling.

To date, this strategy appears to be producing
positive results. Seizures of cocaine during FY
1994 are currently ahead of FY 1993 levels.
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Customs Seizures of lllegal Narcotics
(000 Ibs.)
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Ml Cocaine Heroin Sl Marijuana

At the Ports of Entry

By better incorporating outside-source
intelligence into the targeting process, the
analysis of advance information and more
widespread use of detection technology
and detector dogs, Customs efficiency in
detecting smuggled narcetics has increased
aver FY 1992 levels.

During FY 1993, Customs searched a smaller
number of arriving passengers than the preceding
year—and these searches were more productive
in detecting smuggled narcotics. Of the 451
million air, sea and land passengers entering
the U.S. in FY 93, 282,600 were searched by
Customs to find contraband; 3.1 percent of
those searches resulted in a narcotics seizure.

Narcotics Detection:
Air, Sea and Land Passengers
Intensive Searches and Seizure Rate

400

300

200

100

1991 1992 1993
W (ntensive Searches WM Seizure Rate

During FY 1993, Customs also improved its
ability to target larpe loads of concealed narcotics
in commercial cargo. The seizure of these loads,
which generally exceed 500 pounds of cocaine,
have the greatest impact on the smuggling
organization. During FY 1993, 64,800 pounds
of cocaine were seized in commercial cargo—

a 12 percent increase in the amount seized—
although only 9 percent more containers

were examined.
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Narcotics Detection: Commercial Cargo

1992 1993
Containers Arrived 7.8 million 8.40 million
Containers Examined  1.05 million 1.1 4 million
Cocaine Seized 57,700 Ibs. 64,800 ibs.

Between the Ports

Customs maintains a deterrent to narcatics
smuggling between the ports through its air
and marine interdiction program and an active
investigative program aimed at disrupting
the smuggling organization,

The threat posed by the air smuggling of narcotics
is estimated through an analysis of air traffic
patterns and local interdiction actions, The
deterrent provided by the air program is cal-
culated as the extent to which that threat has
been reduced from 1982 levels, the year of the
program’s initiation. In FY 1993, that threat was
estimated to be at 26 percent of baseline 1982
level. This is a slight increase over the 1991

level of 25 percent,

Customs investigative activity is aimed at
disrupting the criminal organizations that
smuggle narcotics, During FY 1983, Customs
agents worked 17,800 active narcotics cases.
This investigative activity produced more arrests
and convictions than the preceding year. More
important, however, is Customs emphasis on the
small number of impact cases that represent those
investigations focused at the higher levels of the
smuggling organization, The execution of these
cases will have the most debilitating effect on the
criminal organization. Reflecting this increased
focus, Customs reduced the number of “Impact”
cases in FY 1993 to 252 (from 292 in FY 1992)
by more stringently considering the probable
outcome of these cases.

Une example of a successful Impact case
completed in FY 1993 is the investigation

of a major narcotics smuggling organization
operating in several Southwestern states with
links to Europe, Canada and Mexico with direct
ties to the Colombian cartels. This organization
was responsible for the illegal importation of
over 27 tons of cocaine in the U.S. during the
past 5 years, with plans in place to import larger
amounts in the future. As a result of Gustoms

Narcotics Investigations

20,000

15,000

10,000

5,000

0

1991 1992 1993
I Active Cases Arrests EERB Convictions

investigation, the arganization has been
completely dismantled, several major co-
conspirators have been arrested and assets
valued at aimost $5 miilion have been seized.

Support of the Trade Community

During FY 1993, Customs enlisted the support
of the trade community in the effort to deter
smuggling. Through the CARRIER INITIATIVE
program, Customs provides incentives for carriers
to strengthen their security procedures at the
originating location to detect concealed narcotics
in conveyances. Through this program, Customs
often receives notification when the carrier
suspects concealed narcotics aboard a U.S.
bound conveyance. During FY 1993, about 10
percent of the cocaine seized in air cargo was
the result of information supplied by the trade
commuunity through this program.

Career Initiative Program

1991 1992 1993
Carrier personnel trained 747 675 878

Referrals to Customs 40 €5 83
Resulting seizures
Cocaine (Ibs) 234 903 1,103
Marijuana (Ibs) 453 618 697
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Money Laundering

The Customs Service has established the goal

of dismantling the criminal organizations that
launder the proceeds generated by smuggling,
trade fraud and export violations. Targeting the
financial activities of the smuggling organization
is one of the most effective ways to disrupt
smuggling. Customs is the Treasury Department’s
agent in combatting moody iaundering abroad
and assists other nations in develaping anti-
money-laundering programs.

During FY 1893, Customs seized $134 million
in smuggled monetary instruments and secured
the farfeiture/seizure of $356 million in illegally-
gained assets. As a point of comparison, the
OMfice of the National Director of Drug Control
Palicy estimatas that about $30 billion in
narentics-related criminal proceeds were
laundered in the U.S. in FY 1992,

Money Laundering Seizures,
Forfeitures and Arrests
1991 1992 1993
Money Selzed $206M  $194M  $134M
Assets Forfeited/Seized  $ 92M  $280M  $356M
Arrests 1,050 1,075 1.F7S

During the past fiscal year, Customs has
strengthened its abifity to combat money
laundering through an approech that emphasizes:

* Aqninvestigative program aimed at the
highest level of the money laundering
urgagizations;

* A nationwida asset removal program; and

» [nternational training to combat a world-
wide problem,

Investigative Progrom

Customs inventory of active money lauadering
cases graw during FY 1993, as did the number of
arrests and convictions associated with mouney
laundering. But, as with narcotics investigations,
Customs continued to focus a growing portion of
its investigative resaurces on those small number

of cases that will have the greatest impact on
money laundering and the smuggling activity
that it supports.

Active Money Laundering Cases

6,000
5,408

5,230

4,000

2,000

1991 1992 1993

The potential magnitude of the Impact cases

is best highlighted by the recently completed
investigation concerning $800 millica in money
laundering involving a single japanese criminal
organization, That cass resulted in Customs
seizure of over $63 millicn in illegally-
obtained assets.

Asset Removal Progrom

During FY 1993, Customs prototyped an asset
removal concept that assists Customs agents

in identifying the full range of tha violator’s
iliegally-gained assets before an enforcement
action is initiated. By increasing the impact

of asset forfeiture, this technique enhances the
overall praductivity of Customs investigative
activity, This technique will be implemented
on a natiunwide basis during FY 1944,

Intsmational Training

Money laundering is a global problem. By
praviding training sessions with Customs
foreign counterparts, Customs has developed
salid warking relationships that have improved
the flow of intelligence betwaen international
ageacies and increased Customs effectiveness.
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Foreign Agents Trained by Customs
(Agents/Police)
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Outbound Enforcement

Because of its position at the border, Customs

is responsible for enforcing U.S. laws governing
exports. Customs enforces trade sanctions in
suppaort of U.S. foreign policy and prevents the
outbound shipment of weapons of mass destruction,
technology critical to the national interest and
chemicals used in production of illegal narcotics.
Customs also collects export statistics and fees
for the maintenance of U.S. harbors.

During FY 1993, Gustoms intercepted over 730
shipments containing cargo in violation of U.S.
export control laws and arrested 255 individual
violators. There are no reliable estimates of the
total amount of export violations against which
to compare these numbers. Nonetheless, the
number of seizures represents a general increase
over preceding years.

During FY 1993, Customs formulated a strategy
defining its approach to outbound enforcement.
In previous years, Customs had undertaken a
number of activities enforcing its outbound mission.
But, FY 1993 was the first year in which Customs
formulated a comprehensive program of outbound
enforcement. This program includes the develop-
ment of automated systems to permit the targeting
of suspect outbound shipments, to install tech-
niques to permit the non-intrusive inspection of
autbound shipments, and to undertake a vigorous
investigative program, Significant progress was
made in each of these areas during FY 1993,

Seizures from Export Violations
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I Munitions/Arms  [C2) Technology 88 Other

Automated Systems

During FY 1993, Customs completed the pilot
test of the prototype Automated Export System
[AES) in Charleston, South Carolina. This pilet
provided insight into the complexity of dasigning
a system that will serve the multiple purposes
of collecting export reporting requirements for
other government agencies, ensuring the uniform
collection of harbor mainterance fees, the
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targeting of suspect shipmants while at the
same time facilitating the free fiow of legitimate
commerce. The knowledge gained during the
Charleston prototype is being Incorporated
into the concept of the new AES that will
begin design in FY 1994,

Inspection of Outhound Shipments

Customs bagan to deploy currency-detecting
dogs to inspect outbound shipments in high-
threat ports during FY 1993.

Investigative Progrom

The inventory of cases involving export violations
being worksd by Customs agents grew during FY
1993, although the number of arrests and convic-
tions declined 20 percent. As in the other areas,
Customs continued to refine its investigetive
program on that smal! number of cases that will
have the greatest impact on the expart violators.
During FY 1893, Customs maintained 71 active
Impact cases. In one case, Customs officials
identified over 60,000 rounds of ammunition

QOutbound Investigations
1991 1992 1993
Active cases 2891 2,408 2,895
Asrests 153 in 255
Convictions 132 212 185

and 31 bandguns concealed in vats of honey
bound for Yemen.

Customer Service

In achieving its mission, Customs interacts
with two general types of customers. The trade
community (comprised of customhouse brokers,
importers, shippers and port authorities) are
intermediaries responsible for moving cargo
through Customs and into American commercs.
The second, the traveling public, is inspected
by Customs when entering this country through
airports, land border crossings and seaports.
Customs conducts survays of these two types
of customers to assess their perceptions of the
quality of service.

The Trode Community

Customs interaction with the trade community
is primarily through the automated systems that
process import documentation, targst suspect
cargo for examination and assass duty.

Shippers, port authorities and import sérvice
centets file carga manifest information with
Customs prioz to arrival to securs release of
cargo into American commerce. Customs uses
this information to target suspect shipments.
Manifest information is transmitted to Customs
through the Automated Manifest System (AMS)
for gver 33 percent of all entries. A survey of
AMS users in 1991 found the following levels
of satisfaction:

AMS has increased service to customer s

AMS results in fuster cargo release

AMS has reduced documentation costs

Automuted Manifest Systam (AMS)
(Percent agreeing strongly)
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Although the survey shows high levels of satis-
faction, a significant portion (48%) of the brokers
indicated that they had not yet recovered the
investment that they had made to establish the
electronic linkage with Customs.

Custemhouse brokers file entry summary docu-
mentation with Custems for the payment of import
duties. Most brokers have automaled interfaces
with Customs; over 95 percent of all import
entries are received from brokers in automated
form. Two surveys of these brokers, conducted

in 1989 and 1891, found the following levels

of satisfaction:

Automated Broker interface {ABI)
(Percent answering yes)

100

80

60

10

20

1989 1991
E ABI has increased service to customers
ABI has increased customer base
IR ABI has increased productivity

Although the survey results indicate relatively
high, and increasing, levels of satisfaction with
their interface with Customs, a majority of
brokers (59% in 1991) had not yet recovered
their investment in automated technology to
establish this interface.

The Traveling Public

[n 1993, 47 million passengers passed through
Customs at America's international airports.

A survey of air travelers at three major airports

in August 1993, revealed the following level of
satisfaction with the Customs inspection process:

Although these results are limited to three
airports during a 1 month period, they suggest
that the air traveler feels that the Customs
inspection process is courteously conducted
and unobtrusive. The more interesting finding,
however, was that a significant portion of the
travelers (44-72%) felt that the inspection
process was perhaps too brief. Similarly, a fair
number of travelers (21-33%]) suggested that
the current inspection process may not be an
adequate deterrent to smuggling. Currently,
Customs is expanding the use of this survey
to more airports to obtain a broader cross-
section of travelers’ reactions and a better
understanding of how travelers perceive the
Customs inspection process.

Percent passing through
inspection in 1-5 minutes

Percent who felt this
delay as too long

Percent who felt Customs
conduct "Professional”

Air Passenger Survey
(Percent response)

20

40 60 80 100
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The Resources of Customs

Total funding from all sources for Customs
operations was $2.353 billion in FY 1643,
Funding was provided through nine different
appropriations and included new direct
authority, transfers, available unobligated
halances, recoveries of prior year obligations
and reimbursements to appropriations. For FY
1993, Salaries and Expense appropriation funds
were $1,923 million including $190 million in
user fees collected and approximately $226
million in reimbursements. Funding for all
ather activities, including those associated
with the air and marine interdiction operaticns,
was $430 million including 7 million in
reimbursements.

Direct obligations of $1.497 billion incurred
in the salaries and expense appropriation is
presented in terms of three program activities:

Tariff and Trade—The collection of duties
from imported merchandise, the determination
of admissibility, the reporting of trade statistics
and the provision of service to the trade com-
munity. In FY 1993, Tariff and Trade represented
$317.8 million or about 21 percent of Customs
S&E appropriation.

Inspection and Gontrol—The inspection of
passengers, cargo and conveyances to identify
smuggled contraband and other violations is
the core activity of this program. In FY 1993,

Reimbursements —
$226

User Fees
$190

Sources and Amounts of Funding
{in millions)

Reimbursements—Other
$7

/

AN

S&E appropriation
$1.507

Total: $2,35IM
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Inspection and Control represented $708.0
million or about 48 percent of Customs S&E
appropriation.

Enforcement—Customs enforcement activities
cover investigation of all violations of Customs
and related laws and the interdiction of contra-
band through land, sea and air operations.
Enforcement also provides research and
development support and strategic/tactical
intelligence to the other operational areas of
Custems. [n FY 1993, the enforcement activity
represented $471.0 million or about 31 percent
of Customs S&E appropriation.

Salaries and Expense Appropriation
(in mitlions)

Tariff and
Enforcement ” Trade
71\ $3178

“~.. Inspection
and Control

$708

The Organization of Customs

Customs employed approximately 19,000
individuals to perform its mission during FY
14993. Employees are located in the Headquarters
Office in Washington; 7 Regional Offices, which
are responsible for overseeing the operations

of 44 District/Area offices and 300 ports of entry;
29 Special Agent in Charge Offices overseeing
the operation of 131 Special Agent Enforcement
Offices; 24 fereign offices and 7 Field Laboratory
locations,

.

Customs employees at the port of entry
(located at seaparts, airports and land border
crossings) are responsible for the inspection
of cargo, conveyances and passengers,
accepting entry documents, and the release
of merchandise into general commerce.

Customs District or Area offices supervise
all Customs activities in the District or Area,
review import documentation and ensuring
the proper assessment of all duties, assessing
fines and penalties in compliance with
Customs and other Federal regulations.

Special Agent in Charge Offices manage
investigations within their areas and bring
cases to the U.S. Attorney relating to the
violation of Customs laws. Special Agent
in Charge Offices report directly to the
Assistant Commissioner (Enforcement)

in Headquarters.

The Regional Commissioners and Special
Agents in Charge represent and act for
the Commissioner of Customs, and are
responsible for implementation of all
policies and programs established by the
Commissioner within their geographical
area of responsibility.

Customs Headguarters in Washington
houses the Commissioner, Chief Counsel,
and Assistant Commissioners who are
functional heads for enforcement, com-
mercial operations, inspection and control,
management and information systems,
public affairs and organizational effective-
ness. Headquarters establishes all policies
for the operation of the Customs Service,
and issues all legal commercial rulings for
the importing community. Headquarters is
also responsible for providing centralized
administrative support to all Customs
field locations.
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Financial Highlights and Analysis
of Financial Performance

During FY 1993, Customs collected $21.6 billion
as a custodian for other federal agencies and
governments. Duties collected accounted for

B89 percent of the $21.6 billion; excise taxes
represented 5 percant. Of this revenue, 99 percent
was returned to the Treasury, state, local, and
other federal agencies and other governments.

Total operating expenses were approximately
$1.3 billion. Persounel compensation and beoefits
totatled approximately $1.2 hillion or 64 percent
of the total operating expenses. Approximately
$4.9 million of unfunded annual leave costs
were included in the parsonnel compensation
and benefits expense. Contractual service
expenses were approximately $181 million

or 10 percent of total opsrating expenses.

Custodial assets account for approximately

$1.1 billion or approximately 44 percent of the
total assets of Customs, Custodial receivables of
approximately $914 million primarily represent
receivables relating to duties ($765 million or 84
percent). Overall, custodial assets represent those
assets that will be distributed to Treasury, other
fedearal agencies and other governments.

Operating assets account for approximately

$1.4 billion or 56 percent of the total assets of
Customs, Operating assets consist primarily of fund
balances with Treasury and cash (approximately
$662 million ar 26 percent of tota) assets) and
property, plant and equipment (approximately
$519 million or 20 percent of total assets).

Analysis of Financlal Performance

In FY 1993, efforts were undertaken to improve
financial management and ensure compliance
with sound financial practices. Areas in which
efforts ware focused related to the continued
aggressive collecting of accounts receivable,
implementing a new core accounting system,
minimizing amounts paid in late payment
interest, and reconciling property, plant and
equipment activity.

improved Menag of Definquent Debt

In FY 1892, Customs forinally established a
central Accounts Receivable Department to
collect delinquent debt (debt over 80 days)
relating to duties, excise taxes, reimbursable
and miscellaneous receivables. An automated
debt collection module was developad in the
Customs Automated Commercial System and
implemented on December 1, 1993, This system
provides Customs with on-line information to
identify delinquent debt and assist in the collection
of the debt. The Accounts Receivable Department
continued their efforts in FY 1983 to verify the
accuracy of individual receivable accounts, initi-
ats efforts to resolve the debt focusing on direct
contact with the debtor and surety collection
efforts, and monitor bankruptcy activity, Collec-
tion actions for all other receivables are initiated
in Custorns field offices. The follawing chart
shows an aging of Customs custodial accounts
receivablas [net) at September 30, 1993.

Financial Highlights
(in thousands)
1993 1992

Custodial r llected $21.564.375 $20,156,684
All of custodial r collected $21.526267 $20,037,142
Total openating expentes $ 1,820,748 $ 1,736,325
Total personnel compensation and benefits xpense $ 1,164,579 $ 1060294
Personnel compensation as a percent of total 4% 6%

operating expenses
Total invested capital $ 625624 $ 769809

(inventories, property, plant and equipment}
Total custodial future funding requirements $ 142334 3 34444
Total operating future funding requirements $ 111,500 $ 108,695
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NET RECEIVABLES
MAGNITUDE AND AGE OF DELINQUENT DEST

<90 DAYS 91-365 DAYS 1-2 YRS 2-3YRS >3 YRS

Qutstanding As Of Sept. 30, 1993

B DUTY R TAXES B USER FEES O FINES & PENAL B INTEREST |
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Accounts receivable recorded in the greater
than one year categories are comprised of debts
for which Customs is currently involved in
litigation of the debt, bunkruptcy cases or the
debt is in the approval pracess for write-off.
Accounts receivable recorded in the less than
80 day aged category include accrual amounts
squalling $784 million for which collection was
received as of November 1, 1993, These duty, tax
and fee amounts are for goods and merchandise
from foreign countries that were released into
the United States prior to Octaber 1, 1993, and
for which paymsent wes not received until

after September 30, 1993.

Reducing Late Payment intarest

Customs exceeded the Department of the
Treasury standard relating to the jate payment
of invaices in FY 1993. The Treasury acceptable
frequency rate for incurring prompt payment
interest is 2 percent. Customs bad a frequency
rating of 6,39 percent paying $193,992 in late
payment interest. This compares with a frequency
rate of 2.46 percent and interest payments of
$120,981 in FY 1992,

The increase was caused directly by the imple-
mentation of Customs new core accounting
system in October 1992, and the subsequent
period for conversion of data, adaptation of
procedures and familiarization. The first two
quarters of FY 1993, resulted in an average
frequency rate of 10.06 percent with late
payments of $155,533. The frequency rate

and late payments made during the jast two
quarters of FY 1993, reduced substantially to an
average of 2.72 percent and $44,459, respectively.

Usage of Electronic Funds Transfer

Customns usage of BFT is limited to payrol! direct
deposit activity. Customs made EFT payroll
payments to an average of 17,8383 individuals
each pay period during fiscal year 1993, compared
to an average of 20,021 individuals during FY 1992.

The percentage of emplayees utilizing direct
deposit remained constant at 84 percent from
fiscal year 1992 and increased from the 79
percent reported for FY 1991, Customs is
currently evalusting the possible usage of
EFT for its commercial invoices, travel and
duty ralated payments.

Reconciled Property and Accounting Systems

During FY 1993, Customs reconciled $284 million
of property activity, representing the gross activity
between the general ledger and its property
management systems. The monthly reconcilia-
tion procedures developed during FY 1992 were
cootinued during FY 1993. In addition, Customs
converted a portion of its reconciliation process
to fit the data requirements of the new general
ledger system. As a result of the reconciliation
effort, Customns was able to identify and resolve
approximately $80 million of erroneous entriss
to the general ledger system, and idantified
approximately $6.5 million of property that
required proper recarding in the property system.

Financial Statements

The financial statements prasented as part of
this total package present the financial position,
results of operations and cash flows of the U. S.

" Customs Service for the years ended September

30, 1993 and 1992, pursuant to the requirements
of the Chief Financial (Mficer’s Act of 1880, It
should be noted that the financial statements
differ from the financial reports used to monitor
and control budgetary resources. Also, the
financial statements should be reviawed with
the realization that they are for & sovereign entity,
e.g- unfunded liabilities raported in the finandel
statements cannot be liquidated without the
enactment of an appropriation and payments

of &ll liabilities, other than for contracts, can

be abrogated by the soversign entity.
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FMFIA Program Summary

Description of Customs FMFIA Program

Under the Federal Managers' Financial Integrity
Act (FMF1A), a government-wide system for
reviewing managament controls and confor-
mance with Comptroller General standards was
implemented through OMB Circulars A-123 and
A-127. Mare recently, the Chief Finandal Officess
{CFO) Act re-emphasized the requirement
originally stated in A-127, that Federal agencies
develop and maintain integrated agency account-
ing and financial management systams, including
finandial reporting and internal contraols.

Customs is continually working to improve the
agency's Management Controls Program. Regular
evaluations of controls at both Headquarters and
regional levels are being conducted in accordance
with OMB guidelines, Coordination of both
Section 2 (program controls) and Section 4
(accounting systems) of the FMFIA is vested

in the Management Contrals Division, which

is part of the Office of the Camptraller, Office

of Management,

FY 1993 Review Findings

Customs FY 1993 FMFIA review process leading
to the Annual FMFIA Report and Assurance
Letter brought out significant new findings,
based on the CFO's audit conducted by GAO,

as well as the FMFIA, Section 4 reviews of fiscal
and administrative systems, and other internal
FMFIA reviews, program reviews, and audits
conducted within Customs.

The CFO review process identified weaknesses
considered material by GAQO in a number of areas.
These included problems in ensuring adequate
reporting and accounting for revenues (accounts
receivable issues), the lack of integration of
financial systems and related problems with data
integrity, inadequacies in property management
and particularly management of seized property,
problems in accounting for receipt of goods and
services and deobligation of funds no longer
needed for contracts, and lack of adequate review
of data input into the Fines, Penalties, and For-
feitures module of the Automated Commercial
System (ACS), The CFO audit also pointed to
continuing problems in the controls over
administration of Customs Drawback and
in-Bond Programs. Finally, the CFO audit also

reported deficiencies in Customs FMFIA review
process for identifying and correcting control
weaknesses in its programs. These dsficiencies
were consistent with Customs internal assessment
and recommended improvements were consistsat
with the improvements already underway. The
major criticism was that Customs managers were
not well trained to parform adequate reviews of
their controls and, as a consequencs, the revisws
of program controls had not revealad, through
FY 1892, the presence or true extent of material
deficiencies.

Customs Section 4 reviews of fiscal and
administrative systems and other internal
FMFIA revisws also identified new material
prablems in property management, the quality
and accuracy of data in seized property accounting
systams, and In the collections and liquidation
processes. The intemnal Customs reviews found
that lack of compliance with established pro-
cedures played an important role in many of
tha deficiencies identified by both CFO and
Customs reviews in FY 1993.

The number of material weaknesses reported

by Customs increased to 16 in its 1893 FMFIA
Annual Report and the report is more campre-
hensive in its treatment of actual or potential
deficiencies than in previous years. While the
identification of a numbes of these deficiencias
may be traced to the in-depth analysis parformed
in the CFO audit, credit must also be given to the
expanded and more rigarous reviews of Customs
systems done in the FMFIA, Sectlon 4 process,
and to Customs coordination with GAO, the Office
of the Inspector General, and the Department to
assure that ail relevant review results are reported.

Summary of FMFIA Accomplishments

It was reported in FY 1989, that Customs
financial management system was not in
conformance with the Comptroller General’s
standards. Since that time, Customs has
been more aggressive in identifying and
pursuing completion of material weaknesses
and actions to improve controls in Customs
and began to build over ime a more effective
structure and process for implementing the
FMFIA Program.
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Customs initiated several efforts to
standardize and improve regional
management control review programs
including an automated reporting and
review system for compliance reviews.
In addition, work is progressing to
standardize critical checklists used

by the regions to do these reviaws.

A major effort was begun to raise
management awareness of problems
through production of management
control “red flag” reports from axisting
records in Customs ACS and sarly warning
reports from financial and administrative
systems. Some reports are in production
and others are under development.

Managemernt control training has been
revised and training efforts intensified.

A management control review coutse was
developed to provide managers the tools
and concepts needed to do effective reviews
of controls in their pragrams. Initial training
sessions took place ia FY 1993 and more
courses were scheduled for FY 1994,

Mors aggressive follow-up bas been
instituted to ensure effectiveness of
corrective actions. A validation process
for correction of material deficiencies has
been developed that identifies validation
criteria, validation methodologies, and
caordinates validation efforts of Customs
affices with those of external organizations.

Customs has instituted training in Business
Process Improvement {BPI) as a way of
promaoting a better understanding of work
processes and procedures amnong managers
and other staff and providing them the
capability to redesign these processes
whare appropriate.

Customs has implemented formal end-
of-year operating procedures, and daily
monitoring of the status of resources at
the end of the year.

Customs enhanced its financial manage-
ment organization in preparation for fully
implemanting the CFO Act by reorganizing
its financial management organization and
filling vacaacies with highly qualified
management and staff.

» Customs has familiarized its managers
with techniques for developing, selecting,
and utilizing performance indicators in
evel uating their programs, as required
under the CFO Act.

+ Initiatives are underway to enhance
axtensive pans of the ACS and to further
develop the Asset Information Management
System. The resulting improved systems
will improve controls over accounting, cost
information, and raconciliation activities.

Issues and Concerns
Quality of Reviews

The adequacy and quality of both program
procedural reviews and compliance reviews
performed by Customs staff continue to be
of concera. It is important that program staff
have the training or skills to analyze program
processes and procedures ar grasp the rele-
vance of management controls in assuring
mission accomplishment. The management
control review course and training video
developed by Customs are intended to
enhance the quality of these reviews.

Design of Control Processes

The assurance of effective controls is based

upon an understanding of the work processes
involved in implementing a program and how
design or redesign of those work processes will

affect the desired control. Customs initiative
ta train staff in process mapping is designed
specifically to heighten the awareness of the
inter-relationships between work processes,
control, and expected results or quality

of products.

National Perf Review Conclush

This emphasis on understanding the relation-

ship between management control and work
processes and systems is consonant with the

findings and recommendations of the National

Performance Review (NPR). The NPR recom-

mends a systems redesign approach to simplify

and streamline internal controls, encourage
innovation, and eliminate excessive internal
regulations and reporting burdens. It alsa
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favors giving greater priority to evalustion
and redesign of systems and processes to
achieve greater sffectiveness and efficiency
than to merely auditing compliance with
established controls.

Compliance Issues

Although new thinking on management
controls places more emphasis on adsquacy
of process or procedures rather than campli-
ance issues, Customs has found in its review
processes that lack of compliance continues to
be a major factor in determining the efficacy of
its existing controls. Deficiencies in Customs
accounting, financial data integrity, property
management, collections, entry liquidations,
and other processes were often due as much to
fallure of staff to follow established procedures
as to inadequacies in the systems or procedures
governing the work processes. The correction
of these problems must invalve management
initiatives to communicate and reinforce the
importance of correctly executing instructions
and guidance for mission accomplishment.
Otherwise, improvements in work processes
or systems will not achieve desired results.

Unresolved Deficiencias
HMigh Risk Areas

Inodequate Collections/Accounting Systems
for Revenues on Imports: The slements of this
high risk area involve automated systems as
wall as the procedures through which entries
are processed and collections are mads and
deposited. it reflects a general concern regard-
ing effective collection and accounting for
revanues and receivables and having good
cost information for management purposes.
There is also a concern that subsidiary systems
do not provide accurate data on financially
related mattars,

The corrective action plan for this high risk area
includes a wide range of interrelated initiatives
which will span the next five years. These include
planning and ipitiation of Customs Automated
Revanue Accauating (CARA) project which
enbance revenue accounting capabilities and
the quality and accuracy of data transmitted to
the General Ledger on revenues. It also includes

improving the accessibiiity of data in ACS for
use in General Ledger accounts through the ACS
Financial Core project, and a major redesign and
improvement of the ACS system itself through
the FACET projact. Cost accumulation capabilities
are also to be improved through implementation
of new cost medels and project cost accounting,
The process for liquidating entries is to be made
more effective through streamlined procedures.
An intograted financial accounting and reporting
system is planned by October 1, 1997.

Controls over Obligatsd and Unobligated
Balances for Customs QOperations end
Maintenance (Q#M) Account: Custors
has experiancad problems in determining
actual O&M account balances due to
inadequacies in tracking obligations and
expenditures associated with interagency
agreaments and related contracts.

Corrective actions to address these problems
have been taken. In the summer of 1992,
Customs hired the accounting firm of KPMG
Peat Marwick to review the account balances

of the air/marine program, and they complated
a review and issued a draft report with recom-
mendations. Recommendations of Treasury’s
own study team were coordinated with the Peat
Marwick recommendations and corrective actions
were implemented to improve the account’s
internal controls. The Inspector General has
contracted a review of the effectiveness of these
efforts and a draft report has been issued. The
question of whether corrective action to date
has addressed the materiality of the original
deficiency is now baing decided through
consultation with the Department based
upon validaticn findings.

Other Material Weaknesses

At the beginning of FY 1993, Customs com-
pleted action to better manage the allocation

aof expenditures for inspectars’ overtime and

to reconcile property values recorded in both
Customs property management system [PIMS)
and its old accounting system (CAMIS). The
actions taken in both cases have been overtaken
by events, however, as Congress has significantly
changed the inspectors' overtime system and
CAMIS has been succeeded by a new core
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accounting system {a new material weaknsss

has also been identified in the property manage-
ment area which partly involves reconcillation
issues again).

Customs thus carried over into FY 1894 seven
weaknessas. These were related to difficulties in:

(1) Properly aging accounts receivable for
reporting purposas;

{2) ensuring correct and timely Liquidation
of entries;

{3) assuring that trade enforcement efforts
are effective and efficient through a
coherent Trade Enforcement Strategy:

(4) effecting improved compliance
with existing controls over seized
property;

(5) making appropriate adjustments of
accounts receivable to reflect deferred
tax payments and delayed payments
of Harbor Maintenance Fees in
FY 1992; and

(6) putting in place ar adequate cost
accumulation mechanism at Customs.
The seventh {discussed as a high risk area
above) related to a need for impraved
tracking of obligations and expenditures
associated with interagency agreements,
permitting easier determination of correct
balances for the Operations and
Maintenance Account.

Nine new weeknesses wete reparted in Customs
1993 FMFIA Annual Report. The first six were:

(1} Lack of adequate coatrols in Customs
In-Bond Program;

(2) deficiencies in controls over Customs
Drawback process;

(3) deficiencies in Customs Property
Management System;

(4) inaccurate estimation of accounts payable
due to delays in Teporting recetpt of goods/
setvices and failure to timely deobligate
funds no longer needed for contracts:

(5) Customs collections procedures
not being followsed by field units: and

(6] data in Seized Property Accounting
systams are unrellable,

The other three al! relats to Customs second high
risk area described above [collections/accounting
systems far revenuss), They were:

(1) Financial systems do not provide complete
and accurate information.

(2) Accounts receivable are not properly
identified and accounted for.

(3) Data in Customs FP&F files are inaccurate
due to systems deficiencies and lack of
supervision over data input.
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Financial Management
Systems Initiatives

Plans for Financial Management
Systems Improvements

Customs financial systems plans are in twe major
areas. These are:

* Financial systems
* Revenue systems

Financial Systams

Customs prior core financlal system, CAMIS was
purchased off-the-shelf, customized and installed
in 1980, In recent years, it became apparent that
the system had several shortcomings, including
not meeting the JFMIP requirements and Customs
increasing requirements. In addition, through
FMFIA reviews and GAD audits, Customs
financial systems were found to have significant
deficiencies.

Customs determined that CAMIS should be
replaced due to the problems mentioned above
and the fact it was nearing the and of its system
life cycle. As a result of this decision, the Asset
Information Manegemsnt System (AIMS) project
was begun. AIMS is a broad based project to
improve the quality and effectiveness of financial
management, accounting and budgeting systems,
practices and procedures. It will provide Customs
with a financial system that will resoive FMFIA
deficiencies and meet JFMIP Core Requiremants
as well as modarnizing and streamlining Customs
administrative systems and procedures.

The abjective of tha AIMS project is two-fold:

(1) To implement a modern financial system
which carrects current deficlencies
and is compliant with federa! financial
systems reguirements.

{2) To integrate and upgrade ancillary
administrative systems.

The first goal was met in Phase [ of the AIMS
project. A new core financial system was
implemented oo October 1, 19982, Customs used
off-the-shelf softwara for the core system and made
only essential changes ta the vendor package.
The system oparates in Customs current computsr

operational environment, in addition to being
upgradeable to the DB2 relational database
technology should Custams decide to do so,
Customs current ancillary systams were interfaced
into the core system and only assentig} changes to
the systems ware made.

The second goal will be met in Phase II of the
AIMS project. Customs plans to integrate the
ancillary systems inta the core system to update
the core on-line, reduce redundant files and
minimize reconciliation efforts. ln addition,
Customs plans to expand and enhance all
ancillary systems to add increased functionality,
streumline systems and proceduras, move towards
a mare paperless environment and provide timely,
raligble information useful in effective resource
managemant.

In both phases of the AIMS praject, Customs
lntends to use off-the-shelf software where
appropriate. Custorns also intends to work with
other Treasury agencies to share system related
work efforts. The possibility of taking the lead
in developing Treasury-wide systems will be
avaluated.

Revenue Systams

The ACS was developed with operational needs
s the major concern and at & tims when Customs
financial programs were regionelized. Most of
the financial related aspects of ACS are amang
the older parts of the system. ACS does not fully
support the [FMIP requirements or the audit
requirements of the CFQ legislation. GAQ's report
of financial management in Customs points out
that the financial systems do not adequately
account for and control resources.

Customs determined there is a need to improve
the automated revenue programs and systems
due to the problems mentioned above, As a result
of this decision, CARA was begun, in which
Customs iotends to redesign and enbance the
financial aspects of ACS through a long term effort.
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The goals of the CARA project are to:

+ Provide better control over Customs
collections.

* Bring revenus systems into compliance
with GAO, CFO and JFMIP requiremants.

Software enhancements will be custam developed
and will be part of Customs overall redesign of
the ACS system. There are no known off-the-
shelf software packages available to meet Customs
unigue commercial operations ang revenue require-
ments. Software will be daveloped following
standard life cycle development procedures. This
includes: analysis. user requirements, functional
requiremants, system design, programming,
system testing, documentation and training.

The overall redesign of ACS, of which CARA
is the financial portion, is comprised of three
projects: the Future Automated Commercial
Environment Team {FACET]), the Selectivity
Redesign project and the CARA project.

Current Status of Financlal
Management Systems

The first goal of the AIMS projact was met

in Phase [, where a new core financial system
was implemented on schedule October 1, 1992.
The second goal will be met in Phase I of the
project. Some Phase II projects were completed
in Fiscal Year 1993 and others are now underway.
Highlights of AIMS and other Customs major
systems projects this fiscal year are presanted

in the foliowing paragraphs.

implamantation of the New Core

Financlol System

After analyzing the options, Customs concluded
to use off-the-shelf software for the core system.
The Federal Financial System (FFS), developed
by American Management Systems, was solected,

¢ This supports Customs and the govern-
ment’s goal of using off-the-shelf software
to the extent possible.

¢ FFS is fully compliant with JFMIP Core
Financial System Requirements and GAO
accounting requirements.

Improved Reports Copabilities

As part of the AIMS praject, Customs recognized
the nsed to place additional focus on reports from
the new system.

+ Customs and the software vendor devaloped

Cont Accounting

Alsa as part of the AIMS project, Customs will
be developing a cost accounting system, which
it currently does not have,

* This will resolve a current, long standing

s A labor distribution system was custom

FFS provides system generated external
reports to meet Treasury and OMB
requirements.

FFS modernizes Customs processing by
providing on-line edit and update.
Customs worked with the vendor to
configure FFS and develop interfaces
to ancillary systems.

The core system was implemented on
the scheduled date of October 1, 1992,
Customs completed the full annual cycle

with the successful clasing of FY 1993
on December 1, 1993.

an easy to use, automated reports system
known as tha Reports Management System
(RMS).

RMS provides users with reliabie and timely
information from the AIMS system.

All essential reports were implemented

in the first quarter of FY 1993,

Advanced ad hoc capabilities were
implemented in November 1993,

Reports for the Project Cost Accounting
System were also implemented in
November 1993.

FMFIA deficiency.

developed and implemented in April 1992,
as part of the Treasury-wide initiative to
convert to the Agriculture payroll system.
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« Customs implemented a project cost account-
ing system on October 1, 1993, utilizing off-
the-shelf saftware (the FFS Project Cost
Accounting System), It provides project
budgeting and costing, plus tracks reim-
bursable agreements, receivablas, obligatioris,
and expanditures at the detail level.

.

Customs developed requirements for cost
accumulation and distribution and began

a limited test on Qctober 1, 1983. The test
results will be evaluated and a plan with
milestones for full Customs implementation
will be developed. Currently it is estimated
the sarljest the full system would be
available is FY 1995,

Funds Controf

As part of the implementation of the Project
Cost Accaunting System, Customs enhanced the
automated funds control functions of the core
financial system.

e |n October 1993, implemented on-line
funds control edits in the ancillary
systems at thz project level,

* Also in October 1993, implemented
on-line edits {n the ancillary systems
at the appropriation and quarterly
apportionment level.

Relocation Processing

As part of the second phase of AIMS, Customs
plans to impilement PRIME, a PC-based relocaticn
processing system developed for the Internal
Revenue Service ([RS) by American Management
Systems.

+ PRIME is used to racord authorization,
advances and vouchers related to
relocations, and to prepare the required
tax forms for employess whao relocate,
PRIME interfaces data to the core financial
system nightly,

Customs implementsd PRIME in January
1994,

Customs works with the [RS and tha
veador to share costs and ensure the
same software is usable by both agencies.

Annual Financial Statements

Customs was one of the pilot agencias under-
going financial statemant audits of the FY 1992
financial statements.

» Requirsments identified by Customs audit
team and the outside auditors were address-
ed to the extent possible when the new core
system was implemented October 1, 1992,

» Customs intends to meet all requiremonts
in the second phase of the AIMS project.

+ When final report requiraments are
published by OMB, they will be integrated
into FFS by the vendor and Customs will
implement the upgrade when it is available.

Automated Travel

In August 1993, Customs implemented a
modification to its custom developed automated
travel system [(CATS) to include temporary duty
trava! in the U.S. possessions.

Other AIMS Profects

Other projects under the second phase of AIMS
wers initiated in FY 1993, but are not yet
implementad. Some of the major projects are:

s Electronic Data Interchange (EDI)—
Customs is now developing an EDI
strategy, which will include Business
Process Redesign (BPR), Joint Application
Davelopmant (JAD) sesstons and con-
ferencas with vendors,

Bankcard—Customs has implementeod a
program of using hankcards for small
purchases and is now custom developing
an autornated system to support the various
processes end interface data to the core
financial system.

Budget Exscution—Customs is modifying
its custom developed automated Budget
Execution System to accommeodats changss
required by the October 1993 consolidation
of all Treasury forfeiture fund operations
under one Treasury office.

*
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+ Automated Receiving—Customs is modi-
fying its custom developed Automated
Receiving Report System (ARRS) to auto-
matically pay invoices less than $2,500.
Invoices will be statistically sampled
after payment for correctness and receipt
of goods.

R Sy Imp e
Customs, through the CARA project, will improve
the automated revenue programs and systems by
redesigning and enhancing the financial aspects
of the ACS. This is being dons as part of Customs
overall redesign of ACS which is comprisad of
three projects: FACET, the Selectivity Redesign
project and the CARA project.

The CARA project:

« Brings Customs revenue systems into
compliance with GAQ, CFO and JFMIP
requirements.

.

Provides better control over Customs
collections.

Provides for better measures of performance
in the collections and receivables areas.
Was initiated in the last quarter of FY 1892
and has been divided into 25 revenue
related subsystems.

Completed its data gathering in December
1993; the results are now being analyzed
using BPR software.

A prototype of one subsystem (deposit processing)
through all phases is now being performed, This
includes the analysis through BPR and code
generation using a Computer Aided Software
Engineering (CASE} tool. During FY 94, Customs
to complete the BPR analysis and input of
functional specifications into the CASE tool

for the following subsystems:

Automated Clearing House

¢ Banking Lockbox

* Cash Link

Debit Vouchers

» Electronic Funds Transfer

Harbor Maintenance Fee

Mail Entry

PC Cash Register Related Subsystems
— Credit/Debit Card

— Miscellaneous Collections

— Serially Numbered Forms-Decals

.

ACS Financlal Core

As part of the CARA praoject, Customs initiated
the ACS Financial Core project in order to make
short term improvements and address issues
identified in the audit of the FY 82 financial
statermnents. Requirements are now being
developed and implementation is expected to
begin in late FY 1994. The ACS Financial Core
project includes:

« Modifying the current ACS/AIMS intar-

face to ensure receivable, collection and
dishursement data originating from revenue
activities is properly recorded in the AIMS
general ledger.

Providing a method of tracking the integrity
of data between the ACS and AIMS data and
raference files.

Providing a means to automatically pro-
duce and provide approval for the SF-220
Schedule 8, Report on Accounts Receivable
and Loans Due from the Public.

Providing the ability to automatically
estimate the collectibility of accounts
receivable for financial reporting purposes.

L]
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Department of the Treasury, United States Customs Services

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
as of September 30, 1993 and 1992

are an Intergral part of this scatement.

(Dollars in Thousands)
1993 1992
Custodial assets
Undistributad funds wich Treasury (Note 5) $ 133289 $ 203,706
Receivables, net of uncollectible amounts of
$226,800 and $72,687 (Noce 2) 914268 827,895
Forfeited property and currency (Note 3) —_ 74,157
Orher 1807 6,050
Seized property and currency (Note 4) — —
Total custodial assets to be distributed 1,050,364 1,121,908
Fund balance with Treasury - refunds and drawbacks (Note 5) 60,841 9
Total custodial assets 1111206 1,121,917
Operating asssts
Financial resources
Fund balinces with Treasury and cash {Note 5) 661,690 687,005
Receivables from reimbursable services and user fees,
net of uncollectible amounts of $668 and $7,789 (Note §) 42,003 44,493
Intragavernmental receivables Tt021 71910
Qther receivables 1,120
Non-fimancial resources
Advangﬁ 18,336 19.828
Aircraft and marine parts and materiak 106,901 60,191
Property, plant and equipment (Note 7):
Alrcrafc 389,248 349,322
Other 29,485 36029
Total operating assats 1,419,804 1,593,045
Total assats $ 2,531,010 $ 2,714,962
The accomparying notes 1o the lidated M
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Department of the Treasury, United States Customs Services

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
as of September 30, 1993 and 1992

{Dollars in Thousands)
1993 1992
Custodial Habilities
Custodial assets to be distributed $ 1,050,364 $ 1,121,908
Accrued refunds and drawbacks (Note 8) 73977 34,443
Trade Wtigation payable (Note 11) 68,357 -
Capital laase obligation — 1
Total custodial liabllities % 1,192,698 $ 1,156,352
Custadial net position (Note 9)
No-year appropriations 60,942 9
Future funding requirements {142.334) (34,444)
Total custodial net position (81,492) {34,435)
Total custodial labilities and net position 1,111,206 1,121,917
Opersting Nabilitias
Funded operating l(abilities:
Accounts payable 87843 73413
Accrued payrol| and benefits 39,394 81,442
Intragovernmental liabilities 19,465 8,079
Other 11,142 11,700
Total funded operating labilities 157844 174,634
Unfunded operating liabilities:
Accrued annual |eave 72,740 67,839
Caphtal lease obligations {Note 10} 9,579 16,993
Acarued workers' compensation awllo 23863
Other . H —
Total unfunded operating thabllities 141,500 108,695
Commitments and Contingencies (Note | |} - —
Tota! operating llabilities 269,344 283,329
Operating net position (Note 14)
Authorized retained capital (Note 1) — 238
Agpropriated funds with Treasury:
Unliquidated obligations 290,494 6] 444
No-year and other appropriations 92,236 68,735
Reserve for advances and prepayments 13,463 7724
Invested capitak:
Airaraft and marine parts and materials 106,901 60,191
Property, plant and equipment 518732 709,618
Cumuhtive results of operations 240,13 210,459
Future funding requirements (111,500) {108,695)
Total operating net position 1,150,460 1,309,716
Total operating llabilities and net position 1,419,804 1,593,045
Total liabilities and nat pasition $1,531,010 $ 1,714,962

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
are an intergral part of this statement.
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Department of the Treasury, United States Customs Service
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Operating Net
Position for the years ended September 30, 1993 and 1992
(Dollars in Thousands)
1993 1992
Custodial activities
Revenues collected:
Duties $ 19,131,936 $ 18301,802
Excive taxes 1,178,680 1,081,670
User fees 1,152,874 531,308
Forfeited property and currsncy -_ 166,033
Fines sivd penalties 56.660 42,608
Interest and others 44,225 21,263
Total revenues collected 21,564,375 20,156,684
Allocations of r e ead
Deparament of the Traasury (Note 12} 21,352231 19,898819
Department of Agriculurs (Note |2) 47802 40,891
Other Federal agencies and other Governments 126234 97,432
Total aliocations of revenues callected 21,526,267 20,037,142
Net revenues collected (Note |3) 38,108 119,542
No-ysar appropriations expended for refunds and drawbacks 919,470 775,325
Refunds and drawbacks expense 919,470 775,325
Net revenues collected and available to offset funded operating exp 38,108 119,542
Oparating activities
Financing zources:
Appropriations expanded for operations 1,447,064 1,335,156
Relmbursable services and user fees retained 348,925 307072
Other 446 —
Total financing sources 1,796,635 1,642,228
Oparating expsnsas
Personnel compensation and benefits 1,164,579 1,060,294
Travel and transportation 41,620 50477
Rent, communications and utilicies 184,293 155,942
Printing and reprodsction 3714 5,250
Purchases of evidence and information 4,489 49,659
Contractual services 180,543 260,502
Raepalirs and maintenance 206,373 108,258
Intarest and other 35137 45,743
Total aperating expenses 1,820,748 1,736,328
Lass unfunded operating expenses 19,584 15,793
Total funded operating expenses 1,801,164 1,720,532
Excess of financing sources over funded operating expenses 33,579 41,218
Operating net position, beginning of period 1,309,716 1237912
Other changes in operating net position (Note 14} {192.835) 30.566
Operating net position, end of period $ 1,150,460 $ 1,109,716
The accompanying notes 1o the didated f lal
are an intargral part of this statement.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Aow
Department of the Treasury, United States Customs Services
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
for the years ended September 30, 1993 and 1992
(Dollars in Thousands)
1993 1992
Custodial Operating Custodial Operating
Cash flows from oparating activities
Excess of financing sources over funded
operating expenses $ — $ 33571 $ — § 41238
Adjustments affecting cash flows from
operating accivities:
Appropriations expensed (919.470)  (1.447,064) (775,325)  {1,355,564)
Decreass (increase) in custodial and
operating receivables (B6,373) 2,259 (135031) 28,331
Decrease in forfeited property and currency 74257 — 17295 -
Decrease (increase) in aircraft and
marine parts and materfals — (45,710) -— 20,408
Decrease (increase) in advances — {3.575) {1,052) 13,971
Decrease In custodial assets ta be distributed {71,544) — {2.090) —_
Increase in trade litigation payable 68,357 — - —
increase {decrease} in funded
operating labilities — (8.574) - 39,019
Increase n accrued refunds and drawbacks 39,534 — — —
Other, net 3242 2,805 —_ 11,912
Unidentifled differences® 413 99,522 —
Net cash used by operating activities (891,564)  (1,374,058) (896,203)  (1,200,684)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of invested capital — {63,592 — o4
Nat cash used by Investing activities - (63,592} — (204,772)
Cash flows from financing activities
Appropristions (current warrants) 872,000 1,472,559 742298 | 456,409
Return of “M"™ year funds to Treasury - (29,663) _ (5,334)
Payments on capital lease obligations — (9,327) — (10,754)
Transfer to the Treasury Forfeiture
Fund (Note |} — (21,234) — —
Net cash provided by financing activities 872,000 412,335 742298 1,440,321
Net (decrease) Increase In cash and
cash equivalents (19584)  (25315) {153.905) 34,865
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 213,715 687,005 367620 452,140
Cash and cash equivalents,
end of period $194,131 $668i,690 $213,715 $687,005
2 The ts shown a5 unidenttied differences indicate that Customs was unable 1o fully account for the changes In
cash between fiscal years 1992 and 1993. Customs plans to continue to resolve identiflable differences to enable ic
o prepare the 1994 statement without such an adfustment.
The accompanying notes to the consolidited fnancial satements
are an intargral part of this statement.
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Department of the Treasury, United States Customs Service

Consolidated Statement of Budgetary Resources and Actual Expenses
for the year ended September 30, 1993

{Dollars in Thousands)
BUDGETARY RESOURCES ACTUAL EXPENSES
Obligations SF-133 Accrual
Program Name(s) Resources Direct Raimbursed Basis™ Basis®
Inspection and Control $ 94777 § TO79T7 & 113980 $ 7557 8 -
Enforcement 536,471 470,989 55,342 512,678 _
Tarif and Trade 401,288 317,839 56917 314,348 _
Total Sajaries &k Expenses 1,922,536 1,496,805 226,239 1,542,597 1,614.297%
Opanation & Maintensnce Air
and Marine Interdiction Programs 181,888 112,538 (1.314) 84436 151,546
Oparation and Maintenance, P-3
Drug Interdiction Programs 28,000 24,481 — 11,338 14,664
Customs Faclliies, Construction }
improvements & Related Expenses 35,950 10,157 — 1,502 1,643
Alr and Marine Interdiction
Programs, Procurament 34,695 16811 7,780 1,794 2,278
Puerto Rico Trust Fund 135,344 126,752% 297 126,327 24,126
Services at Small Airports 1,764 835 —_ 649 7%
Refunds Erroneous Collections and
Budget Clearing Expenses —_ — —_ —_ 2,160
Refunds, Transfars & Expenses;
Uncisimed & Abandoned Goods 12,858 8,006 —_ 8,080 9,241
Totals $2,353,033 31,796,465 $233,002 31,775,912 31,820,748
Budget Reconcliation
A Total Expenses $ 1L,775923 § 1820748
B. Add: Capital Acquisitions 142,903 63,592
C. Less: Expense Not Covered By Avallable
Budgetary Resources
(1) Unfunded Annual Leave Expense —_ 4,901
(2) Other Unfunded Expenses — 14,683
D. Accrued Expenditures 1,918,826 1,864,756
E. Less Reimbursements 115,991 161,798
F. Accrued Direct $ 1,002,835 $1,702,958

n Includes $101,306 transferred to Puerto Rico under 48 USC 740.

b. Customs uses the accrual basis of accounting to record Its operations; however, Treasury requires agencies to close
their books in sarly November prior to submission of the Year-end Closing Statement This column represents
amounts reported to the Department of the Treasury on Customs SF-133, Report on Budget Exacution.

€. Amounts shown in this column reflect adjustments for additional accounts receivable and accounts payable that
ware not recorded prior to dosing the books.

d. Customs aannot report its Salaries and Expanse appropriation activity by program as sufficient cost data was not
obeainad during Customs efforts to Idencify year-end accruals.

The accompanying notes to the consolidatad financial stataments
wre an intergral part of this statement.
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Consolidated Financial S

Department of the Treasury
United States Customs Service

Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements

1. Surmimary of SignHicant Accounting Policies

Banis of Presentation

The Chief Financial Officars Act of 1930 (CFO
Act) requires exacutive agencies of the Faderal
government to prepare and have auditsd financial
statements and related fontnotes fur all agency
activities and funds. The financial statements
ara prepared in conformity with applicsble
generally accepted accounting standards and
principles for Federal entities, as well as Office
of Management and Budget (OMB) Bulletin No.
94-01 which deflnes the form and content of
financial statements of executive depariments
and sgencies. Thess standards, principles and
other guidance used to prepare such financial
statements ara a comprehansive basis of account-
ing other than generally accepted accounting
principles. Cartain modifications and variations
1o the principles and guidelines described above
have been made to the accompanying financial
staternents in order to more clearly present the
financlal position and results of oparations of
11.5. Customs Service (Customs}).

The accorapanying consulidated financial state-
ments include the accounts of all funds under
Customs' control or which Customs’ activities
impact, cunsisting of thirty-four (34} custodial
funds and nine [9) operating funds. All inter-fund
balances and transactions have been eliminated.

Reporting Entity
Customs, with headquarters in Washington, D.CC.,
was created in 1780 and is now a part of the
Dapartment of the Treasury (Treasury]. Customs
is primarily responsible for administering the
11.5. Trade Program and tha U.S. Narceitics
Enforcement Program. Customs primary
responsibilities include: (1) enforcing the
laws gaverning the flow of merchandise ur
commerce across the borders of the United
States; (2) assessing and collecting dutiss,
excise taxes, user fees, fines, and penalties
due on imported and other goods and services;
and {3) enforcing drug-related and other laws
and regulations of the United States on behalf
- uf Federal agencies and/or in conjunction with

various state, local and other Faderal agencies
and foreign countries.

Currently, Customs s second only o the Internal
Revenua Service in the collaction of revenues for
the Federal gavernment. Similar tn other Federal
agencies, funding for Customs operations is pro-
vided principally through annual congressional
appropriations.

Consolidated Rnanciof St tx Presented

Substantially all of the revenuas collectad by
Customs are remitied to the Treasury. Treasury
further distributes these revanues to other Federal
Agencies in accordance with various laws and
rogulations. Customs remits the remaining revanue
{generally less than 2 percent of revenues collectad)
to variaus nther Federal agencies, State and Local
Agencies and other Governments (i.e., Puerto
Rico, Virgin Islands). These activities reflect the
custodial/fiduciary responsibilities that Customs,
as an agency nf the Fedaral government, has
been authorized by law to enforce.

The financing suurces to cover the uperating and
other costs incurred from the activities described
above are provided principally through congres-
sional appropriations on an annual, multi-year,
and a no-year basis. Accordingly, operating costs
incurred and, therefore, recorded as expensas are
offset by an equal amount of appropriated funds
that are recorded as financing suurces.

The form and content of the Consolldatad State-
ment of Financial Position, as suggested by OMB
Bulletin Nn. 94-01, has been adjusted to present
custodial assets w be distributed (and an offsetting
liability) for revenues collected or to be collected but
nnt yet distributed o the various entities expected
10 racaiva these funds. Principally all of thesa
revenues are not considered as financing sources
(revenues) avallable for the operations of Customs.

To more accurately present the results of its
principal activities (i.e., custodial/fiduciary
respansibilities} and the funding of such, Customs
has presented for 1993 and 1992, “Consuolidated
Statements of Operations and Changes in Oper-
ating Net Prsition”. The form and content of the
statement, as suggested by OMB Bulletin No. 84-01,
has heen mndified to present custodial activities
saparately from the nparating activities of Customs.
The custodial activities represent the fiducial
responsibilities of Customs in contrast to the
upeating activities where the financing sources
are provided principally through congressional
appropriations.
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Revenue and Expense Recognition

Revenuse generated from Customs® custodial
activities is recognized when tha cash is
cotlected. The significant types of revenues
collected, related expenses and a description
of these include:

+ Duties: amounts collected on imported goods;

User fees: fees associated with services par-
formed by Customs agents or other officials
within port authority, for the harbor main-
tenance and other miscallaneous fee programs;

*

Exclse taxes: taxes collected on imported
distilled spirits and liquor;

Fines and penalties: amounts collected for
violations of laws and regulations;

Forfeited currency and property: revenue
collected from forfeited currency, sales and
distributions of forfeited property, and pay-
ments tn lieu of forfeiture as a result of Customs’
crimminal and other investigations; and,

Refunds and Drawbacks: refunds include
payments to importers for averpayments,
duplicate payments, eic., made by them.
Drawbacks are paymants to importers and
other claimants for a portion [up to 98 percent)
of the initia) duties and taxes coilected on
imported gaods typically where the goads

are subsaquently exportad to foreigh markets.

Customs allocates custodial revenues collected
to othar gavernment agencies based on estab-
lished laws and regulaticns. Generally, amounts
returned to Treasury are further distributed to
other federal agencies, as required by law, to
fund specific programs ar other operating activi-
ties. For axample, Customs collects user fees for
the Departmant of Agriculture and transfers these
fees directly to Agriculture. Whereas 30 percent
of duty collections collected by Custums are
remitted to Treasury who subsequently disburses
these funds to Agriculture under 7 1).5.C, 612c.

Financing sources from appropriations expended
relating to refunds and drawbacks and operating
activity are reccrded as revenue when the ralated
cost is incurred and recorded as an expense.
Operating revenues from reimbursable services
and user fees to be retained (19 U.5.C. 58C) are
recorded as earned when the service is provided.

Expenditures for operating costs are recorded
as expenses when goods are received, inventory
used, or the services are incurred.

Custodial Assets and Liabliives

Custodial assets consist principally of undistri-
buted funds with Treasury and recetvables which
are to ba distributed primarily to the Treasury,
other Federil agencies, and other governments.
Because substantially all of the custodial assets
are not considered financing sources (revenues)
available to offsat operating expenses of Customs,
a corresponding liability (s recorded and pre-
sented as “Custodial Assats 1o be Distributed”

in the Consolidated Statament of Financial
Position to reflect tha custodial nature of
Customs’ activities.

Customs receives annual increases to its no-year
appropriation balance with Treasury to fund
refunds and drawbacks of duties and taxes paid
during the fiscal year. Accrued refunds and draw-
backs in excess of these appropriated funds are
unfunded and are included as “future funding
requirements” within Custodial Net Posltion.

The presentation of custodlal assets, liabilities
and net position in a separats, self-balancing
set of accounts ensures that financial and non-
financial resources of Customs present only those
resources which will be consumed in current
or future operating cycles while the custodial
categories contain resources relating to Customs’
custodial/fiduciary activities.

Custodial Undistributed Funds with Treasury

Undistrlbuted funds with Treasury represents
custodial monles to be distributed to various
Federal agencies. The monles held represent
the timing differances between when the
monies are received and Identifled to the
specific revenue type and when the distribution
of the funds oocurs.

Custodial Recelvables

Receivables included as a component of custadial
assets consist of duties, user fees, axcisa taxes,
fines and penalties and interest which have
besn billed or accrued and remain uncollected
as of September 30, 1943, These receivables are
net of amounts deemed uncollectible which
were judgmentally determined by considering
the debtors current ability to pay, the debtors
payment record and witlingness to pay, and the
probahle recovery of amounts from secondary
sources, such as sureties, and a detalled review
of aged balances.
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Forfeited Property end Currency

Forfsited property and currency reparted in 1092
were generated from the forfeiture of currency
and other monetary Instruments and real and
personal property selzed by Customs under the
Tariff and Trade Act of 1884 and the Anti-Drug
Abusae Act of 1988. Forfeited property was
recorded at estimated net realizable value
based on historical sales experiences.

Proceeds from these activities, net of authorized
administrative and enforcement expensas allowed
by the Tariff and Trade Act and the Anti-Drug
Abuse Act, amounts allocated to state, lacal and
other fadaral agencies, $15 million retained for
tuture funding needs, unliquidated obligatiens
and reserve for advances and prepayments at the
end of each fiscal year, were recorded as custo-
dia] aseets to be distributed for payment to the
general fund of the Treasury. As of Septamber
30, 1992, the ramaining $238 thousand balance
that, by law was not remitted, was considered
as “Authorized Retained Capital”, the net of
which was prasented ag a separats component
of operating net position In the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position.

In October 1992, the Treasury Forfeiture Fund
Act of 1982 (Section 638 of P.L. 102-383) estab-
lished the Department of tha Treasury Forfsiture
Fund (the Treasury Forfeiture Fund). The Treasury
Forfslturs Pund succeeds the Customs Forfelture
Fund. All flacal year 1082 amounts presented in
the accompanying financial statements are thosa
previously reported for the Customs Focfaiture
Fund. Beginning October 1, 1992, actlvity formerly
reportad in Customs Forfeiture Fund is reported in
the Treasury Forfeiture Fund and is not included
in Customs’ annual financial statements.

Seized Proparty and Currency

Salzed property and currency result principally
from enforcament activities. These itams are not
considersd assets of Customs, hawever, Customs
does have a stewardship responsibility until the
dispogition of the seized item is detarmined, i.e.,
judicially or administratively forfelted ar returned
10 the entity from which it was seized.

Operating Fund Bolences with Treasury ond Cosh

Operating Fund balances with Treasury are the
amounts remaining as of fiscal year-end from which
Customs |s authorized 1o make expenditures and
pay liabilities resulting from operational activity.

Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows, cash Includes: custodial undistributed
funds with Treasury, a custodial fund balance
with Treasury and operating fund balances with
Treasury and cagh.

Recalvables from Reimbursable Services

and User Fees

Receivables from reimbursable sarvices and user
foes represent amounts due from various parties
for services performed which Customs, by law,
has the right to collsct.

tntrag ol Receivables and Liabilities

Intragovernmental receivables and liabilities
rapresent amounts due from or to various other
Federal agencies under contractual agresments or
other arrangements for services or other activities
performed for or by Customs.

Advances

A reserve for advances, a separate component

of Customs consolidated operating net pasition,
is increased (credited) for the amount of appro-
pristed funds spent, but not yet obligated. These
funds consist principally of advances to sgants for
use in conducting certain investigative operations.
Upon Incutrence of the related expenses and,
therefors, the recording of an operating expense,
the related reserve for advances is decrsased and
appropriations expended for operations, a financ-
ing source, is increased.

Alreraft and Marine Parts and Materials

Aifrcraft and marine parts and materials are stated
at the most recent purchase cost which approxi-
mates replacement cost. This method does not
approximate acquisition cost, consequently, the
reparting of these items is not in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles,
As of September 30, 1893, alrcraft and martne
parts and matacials cansist principally of matecjal
and supplies hald for future consumption. Invested
capital, a separate component of Customs’ operst-
ing net positian is increased (credited) for an
amount equivalent to the cost of the invantory
with a corresponding decrease (debit) to Customs
appropriated funds. When ultimately used in
Customs' operations, an operating expense
(reducing inventory) and a financing source
(reducing investad capital) equal to the cost

of this inventory are recorded.
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Property, Plont and Equipment

Purchased property, plant and equipment and
transferred property from other Federal agencles
with & value of $5.000 or greater s capitalized
and recorded 2s an asset. The invested capital
account is increased (credited) for an amount
equivalent to the capitalized cost of the purchased
asset with a corresponding decrease {debit) to
Customs’ appropriated funds.

Upon legal transfer or doration of property, plant
or equipment and receiving appraval for disposal,
the asset and corresponding invested capital
account balance is removed from the Consoli-
dated Statement of Financial Position.

Expenditures for normal repairs and maintenance
are charged to expensa as incurred. Expenditures
groater than $5,000 for lmproving or rebuilding
an existing asset that extends its useful life ara
capitalizad.

Depreaciation expense and amortization is not
racorded bacausa it does not provide meaningful
information to the management of Customs and
most other Federal agencies in determining
capital expanditures needs.

Funded ond Unfunded Operating Liabilitles

Funded operating liabilities are those liabllIties
Incurred for which Congress has appropriated
funds during the current or prior fiscat year.
Unfunded operating liabilities result from goods
or services received in the current or prior pariods
in excess of available Congressional appropriated
amounts. The liquidation of the unfunded llabili-
ties are depsndent on Future Congressional
appropriations. The expensas associated with
these unfunded operating llabilities are recorded
as operating expenses in the Consolldated State-
ment of Opsrations and Changes in Operating
Neat Position. The unfunded expenses are deduct-
ed from total operating expenses to arrive at
total funded operating expenses.

Total unfunded operating liabilities in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
agrees to the total of Future Funding Require-
ments presented as a separate component and
as a reduction of Custorns’ operating net position.

Accrued Annudd, Sick and Other

Leave and Compensatory Time

Annual leave and compansatory time is accrued
as an axpense whean earned. To the extent current

or prior ysar appropriations are not avallable to
fund annual leava and compensatory time earned
but not taken, funding will be obtained from future
funding sources. The accrual is presented as a
camponent of unfunded operating liabilities in
the Consolidated Statement of Financlal Position
and is adjusted for changes in compensation rates
and reduced for annual leave taken. Sick and
other types of leava are expensed as taken and
are not accrued when earned.

Retirement Plans

The majority of Customs’ employees participats
ip the Civil Service Retirement System (CSRS),
to which Custorns makes matching contributions
squal to seven percent (7%) of pay, or seven and
a half percent [7.5%) for those personnel classified
as law enforcement agents. Customs does not
report CSRS assets, accumulated plan benefits, or
unfunded liabilities, If any, applicable to retire-
meni plans 25 the accounting for and reporting
of such amounts is the responsibility of the
Office of Personnel Management.

On January 1, 1887, the Federal Employee Ratire-
ment Systern (FERS) went into effect pursuant to
Public Law 99-335. Most employees hired after
December 31, 1983, are automatically covered by
FERS and Social Security. Employees hired prior
ta January 1, 1964, can alect to aeither join FERS
and Social Security ar remain in CSRS. A primary
featurs of FERS |s that it offers a savings plan to
which Customs automatically contributes one
percent of pay and matches any employea con-
tributions up to an additional four parcent of pay.
For most employees hired after December 31,
1983, Customs also contributas the employer’s
matching share for Soclal Security.

Contributions of $92 million and $82 million
were made for fiscal year 1993 and 1982,
respectively, related to these plans.

Approprioted Funds with Trwasury

Appropriated funds with Treasury represants
the amount of Customs’ unexpended spending
authotity as of Bscal year end, that is unliquidatad
ot is unobligated and has not lapsed, been
rescinded, or been withdrawn,

Consolidated St of Budgetary
Rascurces and Actual Expenses

The Consolidated Statement of Budgetary
Resources and Actual Expenses provides a
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cumparison of Customs current fiscal year significant trends in the financial pasition and
transactions reported nn Customs “Report results of oparation of Customs. The auditors

on Budget Execution” (§F-133), and expenses disclaimed an npinion on Customs’ fiscal year
reported on Customs Consnlidated Statsment 1992 financial statements. The amounts reported
of Operations and Changes In Operating Net on the fiscal year 1992 financial statements have
Pusition. Accrual basis expenses by program for ont been restated or adjusted to reflect any prioe
the salaries and expense fund are not shown as period or subsequent events, Customs has
Customs was unable to determine such amounts. modified the presentation of fiscal year 1993

Statement of Budgetary Resources and Actual
Expenses from the Statement of Reconciliation

Comparutive Presentation Bodg e L in floe] "
. . to Budget presentad in fiscal year 1992. However,
This s the second year in which Customs Customs elected not to prepare a fiscal year 1992
management ?reparad ﬂnar'xclal staternents in Statement of Budgetary Resaurces and Actual
accordance with the provisions of the CFO Act. Expenses in the same format as was done for the
Comparative financial statements are presentad in fiscal year 1983 activity )

order to pmvide a better understanding of and the

2. Custodiat Receivables

(ustodial recelvables as of September 30, 1893, and 1992, censist of the following (in thousands):

1993 1992

Receivable Category Federal _ Non-Federal Total Federal  Non-Federal Total
Duties $ 21§ 765043 § 765364 § 1,801 § 748,400 $ 75020|
Excise Taxes _ 55,973 55,973 —_ 69,434 £9,434
User Fees - 92162 92,162 - 54,515 54,515
Fines/Penalties — 108,440 208,440 — 26,070 26,070
Interest I5 19,102 19.017 - - —_
Other -— 12 12 — 362 362
Totals 6 1,140,732 1,641,068 1,801 898,781 900,582
Less Amounts deemed uncollectible [ (226,800)  { 226,800) (~) { 72,687) ( 72,687)
Net Recelvables $ 336 $913,932 $914,268 $ [,80]1 $626,004 $827,89%

In the fiscal year 1992 Cunsolidated Statements, Customs included intarest receivable amounts in the
corraspunding raceivable category (i.e. duties} instead of as a separata component of accounts receivable.
Customs elected not to restate the fiscal year 1992 disclosure to saparately disclosa interest receivable amounts,

An aging of custodial receivables as uf Saptembar 30, 1993, is as follows (ir thousands):

AGED PERIOD
1 days-
<=9 days | Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years 3+ Years Total
Duties $ Fid476 § 11188 § 8704 § 6985 § 25001 $ 765364
Excise Taxes 54,839 645 77 &0 352 55,973
User Fees 85,594 1o13 2,533 3017 5 92,162
Fines/Penalties 88,554 31,633 16,640 36,823 34.7%0 208,440
Interest 615 1073 1,603 1422 14,404 19.017
Other 12 — — - — 12
Totals 943,090 45,552 29,557 48,307 74,562 1,141,068
Less Ammounts deermned uncollectible  { 82,382) ( 35,628) { 20.868) {35,871} (51991}  (226,800)
Met Rocoivables $860,708 § 9,864 $ 8,689 5 2,426 § 22,571 $914,268
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Accounts receivables recorded in tha less than
80 day aged category include accrued amounts
equalling 5764 milllon for which collection was
received as of November 1, 1993, Customs assesses
lmporters duties, taxes, and fees on goods and
merchandise brought Into the Unitad States from
foreign countries. At the time importers bring
merchandise into the United States, they are
required 1o file Customs entcy documents which
disclose the merchandise importod value. Within
10 working days after Customs releases the
merchandise into U.S. commerce, the importer
is to submit an entry summary document with
payment of estimated duties, taxes, and fees.

A receivable was recorded for 408,347 entries for
which merchandise was released into commerce
prior to or on September 30, 1993, for which
payment was hot received as of September 30,
1983, There was an additional 3,075 entries for
merchandise released into commerce, but a
recaivable amount could not be determined
because the entry summary documentation
describing the type, quantity and value of the
merchandise has not been received from the
importers, It is Customs policy to track and
demand payment of unpaid estimated dutles,
taxes and fees raceivable amounts by astablish-
ing liquidated demage cases which generally
result In a fines and penaltias typa receivable.
As of September 30, 1993, Customns established
liquidated damage cases for 2,327 of the 3,075
relaased entries.

[r addition to the above reporting and related
payments, import specialists raview selected
entry summaries to detarmine whether importar’'s
estimates of duties, taxes and fees wers accurate
or whether additional (supplemental) amounts
are owed and should be billed. Customs
regulations allow the importsr 90 days from the
bill date In which to file a protest challenging
the assessment of supplemental duties, taxes
and fees. Consequently, supplemental accounts
receivable balances are only recorded on
outstanding clalms when the 80-day protest
period alapses or when a protest decislon has
bean rendered in Customs favor.

Receivable amounts recorded above do not
include unliquidsted entries related to Vessal/
Alrcraft Forelgn Repair or Equipment Purchases
[vesse} repair entrias). Regulations state that the
lisbility for the declaration, entry and payment of
duties accrues at the time of the first arrival of the
vassel in a port of the U.S., however, payment of
the duty is not due until liquldation of the entry.

Liquidation results in billing of the amounts

due, and these amounts can be protested. Thus,
receivable amounts are recorded whaen the protest
period elapses or when a protest decision has
been rendersd {n Customs favor. There were 1,000
vessel repair entries remaining unliquidated at
Septamber 30, 1893, with an estimated receivable
balance of approximately $27 million. The duties
were estimated based an actual subsequent liqui-
datad amounts or an sverage liquidstion amount
based on historical data for the past four years.

Customs recorded a duty recelvable of approx-
imately $11 million for “actual loss of duties”
owad which were tracked as part of valid {non-
petitionable) fines and penaities cases because
the related entries had reached final liquidation.
Normally, actual loss of duties results from a
misclassification or undervaluation of merchandise
Imported into the U.S. and is discovered as part
of an audit of the importer by Customs’ Office

of Regulatory Audit. As a result of the audit,

a panalty Is assessad for violation of Customs
laws and regulations. The penaity is usually not
mitigated (relief grantad) untl| the outstanding
luss of duties are paid. Customs identified an
additional $84 million which was not recorded
s a duty receivable as of September 30, 1802,
but is being tracked by Customs as part of the
outstanding fines and penalty cases as stated below.

When a violation of import/export law is
discovered, a fine or penalty case is established.
Customns asaesses & llguldated damage or penalty
for these cases 10 the maximum axtent of the
law. The importer or surety then has the opticn
aRer receipt of the natice of assessment ta
petition that assessment. Thae importer or surety
is allowed 80 days to file such petition for relief
or make payment of the assessed amount. If a
petition is recaived and Customs determines
there are extenuating circumstances such as an
incorrect assessment which warrants mitigation,
relief is granted as prescribed by Customs
mitigation guidelines and directives. Customs
bad 3,085 recsivables related to fines and penalty
cases for the period ended September 30, 1993.
Customs was tracking an additional 17,523 cases
for which a recalvable was not established
becausae (1) the petition period had not explred;
or {2) Customs had not reached agreement {relief
granted or denied or court settlement) with the
importer or surety as to the amount of damages
[fines) or pepalties owed.
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3. Forfelted Property and Currency

The Customs Forfsiture Fund was established by
the Turiff and Trade Act of 1984 and re-setablished
in 1988 by the Anti-Drug Abuse Act. Seized and
forfeited currency and any proceeds beyond the
expenses of seizure and forfeiture of merchandise
were deposited Into this account to fund certain
administrative and enforcement expenses.
Customs trapsferred all funds and cbligations

of the Fund to the Treasury-wide asset forfeiture
fund established for all Treasury law enforce-
ment organizations and the U.S. Coast Guard
created by the Treasury Forfeiture Fund Act of
1892 (Public Law 102-583). That law required
that, beginning with fiscal year 1883, Customs
deposit into the Treasury Forfaiture Fund all
currency forfeited and all proceeds from for-
feiture under any law enforced or administerad
by Customs. During fiscal year 1883, Customs
actad as the executive agent on behalf of the
Departmant of Treasury for handling Treasury
Forfeiture Fund transactions and performed

all duties nacessary to suppart the day-to-day
operation of the Treasury Forfeiture Fund.
Howaever, all decisions regarding the dispositlon
of forfaited assets along with the incurrence

of administratlve and enforcemsnt expenses

of the Fund must ba approved by the Fund’s
mansgement and not Customa.

Funds and abligations transferred to the Treasury
Forfeiture Fund in fiscal ysar 1993 were as
follows (in thousands);

Amount
Toral assets $129,525
TYotal limbilties 105,140
Totsl squity 24,385

During tha fiscal ysar 1883, Customs contributed
to the Treasury Forfaitura Fund the following
forfeited currency and property which was
seized by Customs and subsequently forfeited
{in thousands):

Amount
Currency and other mohetary instruments  $112,957
Property
General property 17,854
Real property 13813
Vessels 3,760
Areraft 6815
Vahicles 4,694
159,893
Lass
Mortgages and clalms {2,039)
Refunds {2215)
Total $155,639

Forfeited currency and property as of September
30, 1992, conslsted of the following
{in thousands):

Amount

Currency and other monezary instruments $ 63272

General property 2,709
Real property 4,200
Vessehs 934
Adreraft 1,410
Vehicles 1,732
10,985

Total 374,257

The estimated value of destroyed forfeited property was approximataly $18 million for fiscal
year 1992. The estimated value is determioed by management and the outside contractor.
Property destroyed consisted primartly of drugs and drug paraphernalia, and general property,
such as {Jlegal weapons and counterfeit merchandise. it is Gustoms’ policy to not value drugs
and drug paraphernalia as they will not be relessed into cammarce or resold.
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4. Seized Property and Currency

Customs did not hava reliable records of the
volume or assessed value of seized property

and currency on-hand nor the value of additions,
mitigations, forfeitures and other activity during
fiscal years 1993 and 1992. Therefors, selzure
actlvity for these fiscal years Is not presantad. In
an effort to kmprove the raliability of the records,
Customs conducted a complete inventory of
seized currency and property as of Fabroary 11,
1894. This inventory should establish a baseline
from which to establish procadures for proper
valuation and accountability of seized currency
and property in the future. The amounts con-
tained in the following schedule are based on
the physical inventory as of February 11, 1894.

Seized property and currency as of February 11,
1994, consists of the following (in thousands):

Amount
Currency and ather
monetary instruments $69814
General property 153,297
Real property 24,146
Vessels 5914
Aircraft 7,028
Vehicles 8,426
Total ssized property
and currency $268,025

Saized property and currency result principally
from Customs’ criminal investigations and
passanger/cargo processing. These assets include
caontraband and counterfeit/prohibited items such
as drugs and weapons that have no recarded
valus and are not legally owned by Customns
until judicially or administratively forfeitad and,
accordingly, are not reflected as custodial assets
in the Statement of Financial Position. Customs
has ftduciary responsibility for these assets upon
saizure. Substantially all seized property, axcept
drugs and weapons, is managed and maintained
under a contract with an unrelated entity, and

is disclosed at a value estimated by Customs’
officials or, in some cases, an independent
appraiser. Seized currency is either daposited

or stored in a vault in a financial institution

or stored in a vaull or safe at Custems offices.

5. Funds with Treasury and Cash

Funds with Treasury and cash as of September
30, 1903 and 1892, consist of the following
(in thousands):

1993 1992
Custodial Assets:
Undistributed funds $100656  $150,071
Other - suspense® 25471 63,635™
- budget clearing
account 7,160 —
Total undistributed
fumds with Trossary __$123,269_$312,708
Pund balemces with
Treasury - refunds }
and druwbacks $ 2 $9
Openting Assets/Agency Finandial Resources:
Fund balances with Treasury and Cash
1993 $i31,92¢ % _—
1992 32270 97235
1991 45,831 54,551
1990 16,873 18,424
1989 21,781 21,564
Multi-year 3,925 11,975
No-year 394,430 443,117
Merged-year - 31,418
Other 10,739 3926
Imprest cash balances 3,918 4,785
Total fund balances
with Treasury
and cash 3661,690 3637,005

{(a) The suspanse and budget clearing accounts were
reported at a combined amount in fiscal year 1992,

Custodial funds in Customs suspense znd budget
claaring accounts are generally funds held by
Customs that may or may not result in custodial
revenue. ltems in the suspense account typically
include: (1) amounts held by Customs collected
from bankrupt entities; {thess amounts will be
re-d|stributed according to flnal determination
of bankruptey pracedures), (2) offers made by an
importer/broker who violated a law or regulation
and is attempting to mitigate the penalty or fine
amount; the offer will become revenue if acceptad
or be rafunded to the importer/broker if rejocted)
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and (3) cash held by Customs from an Importer/
broker in lieu of the importar/broker filing a
surety bond; (these amounts are returned to the
importer/brokar when the importing activity
ceases, nel of any amounts owed relating to
duty, taxes or fees.) Custarms is in the process
of reviewing the itamas in the suspensa account
and reclassifying them to appropriate general
ladger accounts. The items comprising the
September 30, 1993, suspense account balance
hava not yet been identified far reclassification.

Amounts in Customs budgst clearing account
generally represant custodial revenue received,
howaver, the amounts received were not
accompanied by sufficlent documentation to
identify the specific revenue classification, i.e.,
duty, tax, fee, etc. Upon proper identification of
the amount received the funds are reclassified
appropriataly and revenue recognized.

§. Recejvables from Reimbursable Services and User Fees, Net

Recelvables from relmbursable services and user feas, net as of September 30, 1893, and 1992, cansist of the

following {in thousands):

1993 1992
Federal Non-Federal Total Federat  Non-Federal Total

Relmbursable Services s 75 $ 1,135 § 1210 § 77 %8 4267 s 4,244

User Feas — 41,461 41,461 — 47,938 47,938
Subtotal 75 $ 415% $ 42671 § 77 $§ 52205 § 51182
Less amounts

deemed uncollectible — 648 468 — 7,789 7.78%
Recolvables from

reimbursable

services and

user fess, net $ 7S $41,928 $42,003 77 S$44,416 § 44,493

The amounts deemed uncollectible for fiscal
year 1992 were hased on prior years collection
efforts. The fiscal year 1993 amount was
based on a statistical sample of selected
receivables to determine collectibility based
on various factors including the debtors
current ability 1o pay.

Receivables from reimbursable services
are amour:ts of money to be collected for
commodities, work, or services provided to
another governmant agency or to a private

party-in-interest, which by law can be credited
to the appropriation accounts from which the
telated expanses or cosls were paid.

Usex foes ara collected for inspectional processing
of air and sea passengers, and processing of
Inzded railroad cars. Receivables accrue for these
airline and vessal fees on a quarterly basis, and
for railroad fees on a monthly basis. Payment is
due 30 days subsequent to the end of the quarter
for airline and vessal fees, or 60 days subsequent
to the and of the month for railroad fees.
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Property, plant and squipment 14 of Septerber 30, 1003, and 1002, snd an snalysis of the changes for Flscal Ysar 1983, are as follows

(in thousands):
Balance Bolanca
Septamber 30, Saptember 30,
Gatagory L i Addwions _Deleion; Adysmena L. ;L.
Units Yuhua Unies Value Unvies Valwe Unis Yok Units Value
Areraft 113 3 39,312 I § 41254 ) 3 (JNge — $ 4510 119 9 W14
DOther Property
Vahickes Purchased
Afeer 1989 L145 12,544 174 5032 {3 e — [ 1208 17250
ADF Mairframes "% L) " (34  @Anme - 0 i sa
Al Other t
Land B © 7] - -~ —- - - 4 «© -
Bulidings & Structures 74 41,943 - - - - -— H1M3) ™ -
Laasshold Improverment
To lnd owned by others 47 - ’ 5,204 - —_ — {1.208) 5 -
To lensad office space 105 1327 n? 1700 - —_ — — m 4007
ANl Other Yahickes Fre sa9i4 219 27454 #42) (45 —  [5T0) 844 -
Vassah m 0545 7 2,500 ) (raes¢ -_ (24,160 p ] _—
Ocher 5210 103,455 01 (1299 [{L1)} [ RIE) - (111.540) 58H -
Caphaiized Loasad Assets 302 951 1y %0 n oy —- - 4o a0
Construction In Progress | [0 — 1654w N {6546 — — —
Total Othur Propurty 12382 § 362948 195§ 4516 1) _(33034) — (5245041} 13,050 § 130034
Tetal Praparty, Mant
i ] 4 3712270 [} {7 7,279) fd %) lllll' £lm
Custodial Astas — $ 1452 134 § 5¢
Oparsting Aseats —  fovsle 13035 51870
Total 313,498¢ 3712270 13,169 _s3is82
a. Amounts reporied for Suplmllbnt 30, 1992, Includa costs for all 0. These itsms rep deletions of property for which supporting

property, plant and s ded in Customs prop
scoountabllity vecards 1s of that dats. Many of thess racorded
uxhwmnot or P -ndlnckcd deg

d lon (Le., ices). Thasa do
nat include the fellowing ltems omitted from the flacal your
1902 financial statements:

Loatrahold nprovements

eo Land $36,572
AN Other Vihicies 5,350
Yosiels 1240
Ochar Equipment

(ncluding ACP mainframes) 14776

b. The adjustments (sxcept for alrcrdt) represent a decreane thal
could not be supportad by documentation.

[ Dmnvm determined that it was not cost baneficla! to ressarch the
1 support those property, plant snd egui
Items that shaw an adjustad balance of 5¢ a2 of 5 ber 30,

1983, The bal d for Septemb 30, 1993, Includ only
thoss Itams for which cost Info I aduquateiy d d

d. Thess Stetns tapresant additions of property foc which supporting
cost d was 1labl

cust documentation was unavallable,

{. This sdiustment is required to scjust the beginning belance of
aireraft to walues etated (n property socountsbifity records.

§: Customs spent $17 million to complets snd place an alrcrak unit

in operation.
b. These vehicles were ired through means othu !!mn pumbln
from GﬂAlﬂlrlhu!!ﬂrlm. luding p
transfor and donetion.
1. The untu nf petty pllm and equl wara not clessified
[} L or assats M S bar 30, 1093,

L) b

Computst Softwars Costs—Prior to Scphmh-r 30, 1993, Custorns
sxpended an satimated $162 million to develop computer saftware.
Customs bas elacied to sxpanse thase costs rather than caplialise
these cosls s3 mowt businesses sxpense atl costs of devaloping
softwars, und 1t has been concluded by the American Institute of

Certiflad Publlc A that this predomi) be is not
Improper. Customs is unable to nupplm the -!!mlud coats and
in developing procsduces to for in-by

devalopment costs for all ongoing activities.
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AR aging of proparey, plant snd equip [1a rumbar of units) as of Septembar 30, 1099, ix as follows:
1949 and
Catamry N 1192 199} 2% Prior. Tl
Awcrak 7 ] 9 -_ 100 L
Othar Praperty
Al Vihicies 1™ 40 " 0 asio 5952
ADP Munframe T 5 4 2 “ m
Lardd - - 1 - 9 L]
Sulidings and Serueturas - - I 3 70 el
Veusels u 1 [} 5 234 ]
Othar ¥ 454 70 ms sa7 a4 saie
Copiealizad Lonsad Assets A M " 1 112 4i0
8 1207 133 k18 7253 12,86
Custodial Assets f H 7 (L] o7 1M
Oporsting Assets &80 1202 1,822 (1 7146 12146
1] 1,287 1,820 1,319 7,253 13,000
Customs replacemant policy is based on modal years {rather than soquisition year) W detmrnine year in which the asset will be replaced.
Theesfore, the quantitiss shown for flecal year 1093 wiil not agres with the additions foe the year.
This schedul Judws 278 itams of lessahold imp sincs the uselul lifs of the improvements are depsndent cpun terms of sach lease.
Customs policy for the sstimsated useful lives of the major sssats la:
Unehd Life
Assat Clons {in yonrs)
Arersk [ ]
Viahicies 6
Vasteh 1]
ADP Malrdrame H
Other Equipment H
Suidings, Structires and Facilities 3
Capitaiired Lassed Asvets $

Thie line sxcludes 382 itams locatad #t the Secv-alr facility (aging Information for these Items it not svailable) valued at $4 milllon and
129 Hema incated at the Loral Defensa Systsms Paciiity in Atizona valued st $30 million [Customs does not intend 1o replace these

ftams In the future.)
b. Data for 1993 aiso includes model ysar 1964 vehicles.
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The d ||fa and repk cost by category of property, plant and squipment as of Septembat 30, 1003, is as follows:
Estimated Raplacemant Costs
[in thousands)
1997 and
Category 1994 1995 1996 therseker
Undes Value Units Value Units Valua Units Yalue Units Valus
Aircrak 77§ SN 6§ 3244 5§ 230 381999 1y $ T442s
Other Property
Vehicles anr 50334 m 13,453 440 .04 1,502 2413 5951 94,652
ADP Mairframes “ 5731 2 % « 102463 &% 17,503 n 34,459
Land — — — —_— — — ®© 1.547 4 1.547
Bulldngs wd Structures — - — -_ - - L] 20,958 74 20,958
Verseh 3 [TR1 1 ¥ 4,651 2% 155¢ 155 17334 203 a2
Other ™ 14 .60 sar 14673 s 13,200 1124 17205 530 7N
Capitalized Lansad Astes 12 14,793 ” 15,05% N 4052 1] 8186 410 900
158 1,547 378,137 1580 872,280 3,109 siey.521 13,380 silau540
The sbove schedule was d using ¢ 1963 repl costs which that the aseets will be replaced st the end of their eatimated

useful Jife at 1903 fiscal ;“r-— end prices. Replscemant cost ls the amouat Custorns would have to pay to replece tha productive capacity of the asset.
Assots that continue to be used beyond theic estiowted usstul lives (1.s., 8 10 year lifs on sittea) sre Included |n the 1094 column.

In addition, as of Saptessher 30, 1993, Customs had a total of 32 sirces®t on loan from the Depariment of Defanse valusd ot an astimated raplucement
cost of $140 million.

n. Although thia chart implies that Custams will replsce $510,842 milllon In alrcraft during FY 1994, Custorns can only replace sirarsh when speclfic
funding has been provided by Congress. No funding for alrcreft purchasses wis pravided by Congrees for FY 1084,

b. Thesa ltama sxclude 382 Itsma located at the Serv-sir facility since replacament cost daia was unavallabis. [t alec excludes 120 units of idle
property ot the Loral Defenss Systams Facility In Arizone. Thess 1290 ters were transferred from the Air Fores during 1992, and had an sstimated
valua of $30 miltion pur Air Porce's transfer documents. Thess iterns will not ba replaced by the Customs Service and will be scheduled for transtee
1o ather agencles In the future.
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8. Accrued Refunds and Drawbacks

Refunds include payments to importers/exportars
for overpayments, duplicate payments, etc., made
by the importers/exporters, while drawbacks are
payments to claimants for a portion of duties
and taxes collected an imported goods where
typically the goods are subsequently exported to
a foreign market. Drawbacks consist of two types;
acceleratad and non-acceterated. Acceleratad
drawbacks are where the amount paid ta claimants
who, based on Customs’ experience, have con-
sistently complied with Customs’ requirements.
These claimants receive payment within three
weeks after filing. As of September 30, 1993, tha
liability for accelerated drawbacks and refund
claims filed but not paid was approximately
$74 million. This liability has bean recorded
on the Consotidated Statement of Financial
Pasition. Non-accelerated drawbacks occur
when the approval to apply for an accelerated
drawback has not been granted. [n the non-
acceleratad situation, the claimant has three
years to file the claim. Non-accelerated drawbacks
are paid after Customs verifies and approvas the
claim. Customs is not able to predict the dallar
volume of the non-accelerated refunds and draw-
backs. Any required payments are made in the
notmal course of business and are paid from the
congressional appropriation specifically received
far refunds and drawbacks.

9. Changes in Custodial Net Position

Changes in custodial net position for the year
ended September 30, 1993 consisted of the
following (in thousands):

Future
MNe-Tear Funding
Appropriations Reguiremants
Balance
Ocrober |, (992 s 9 ($34444)
Appropriations for
fiscal year 199 872,000 -
Appropriations disbursed for
refunds and drawbacks-
fiscal year 1993 (B11,167) -
Net change in unfunded
refunds and drawbacks — (39533
Net, change in unfunded
trade litigation payable —  (68,357)
Balancs

September 30, 1993 $60,042 $(141,334)

10. Leases

Operating Lense Obligations

Customs leases various facilities and equipment
under ieases accounted for as operating leases.
Lease expense under these arrangements totaled
$105 million and $108 million for the years endad
September 30, 1993, and 1992, respectively. Assets
held under these leases consist primarily of
offices, warehouses, vehicles and other equipment.

Much of the office space occupied by Customs
is either owned by the Federal government or is
leased by the General Services Administration
from commercial sources. In either case, the
space is assigned to Customs by GSA based upon
current needs. Customs is not committed to
c¢ontinue to pay rent to GSA beyond the period
occupied. However, it is expacted that Customs
will continue 1o accupy and lease office space
from GSA in future years, and that the lease
charges will be adjusted annually to reflect
operating costs incurred by GSA. Lease expense
paid to GSA during fiscal years 1993 and 1992
weta $102 miilion and $99 million, respectively.

As of September 30, 1993, future minimum lease
commitments under noncancellable operating
leases for equipment are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Amount
1994 $ 17
1995 55
1996 and thersafter 15
Total future minimum
lease commitments s 1ar

Capital Lease Obligations

Customs has a number of capital lease agreements
primarily involving mainframe computer equip-
ment and other office equipment. Ali assets
acquired under the capital lease agreements have
been capitalized and the related obligations are
reflected in the accompanying financial state-
ments based upon the present value of the future
minimum lease payments. As of September 30.
1993, the aggregate acquisition costs of the
mainframe computer equipment and other office
equipment still subject to lease payments are $20
mitlion. These capitalized items are included
in the total capitalized leased asset amuount

of $49.8 million. Certain leases are cancelable
upon certain funding conditions.
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Future minimum leasa payments under the
capitalized losses and the present value of tha
minimum lease obligation as of September 30,
1993, are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Amount
1994 $ 4997
1995 1915
199¢ 1856
1997 and thereaftar 443
Total future minimum

leass paymants $11.201
Less: Imputed interest (1,622}

Total not present value

dgﬂh‘nom so,sn

Substantially, all of the net presant value of
capltal lease obligetions Is axpected to be funded
from future sources and is presented as a com-
ponant of unfunded operating liabilities on the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

(LCommitmants and Contingencies:

Customs is a party to various administrative
proceadings, legel actions, and claims brought
by or against it. Any financial unfavorable court
decislons will ba funded from an appropriatlon
within the Depariment of Justice or from the
Customs appropriation for refunds and drawbacks
axcept as notad in the following paragraphs. In the
opinion of Customs’ management and legal coun-
sel, the ultimata resolution of these proceadings,
actions, and claims will not materially affect the
financial position ur results of nperation of Customs.

At Septamber 30, 19583, Customs legal counsel
was processing over 450 actlons against Customs,
totalling uver $210 million. Customs counsel bas
identified approximately $1 million as a probabla
liability, approximately $76 million as a remote
liahility, and the remaining casee totalling approx-
imately $138 million as still in process. Additien-
ally, thare are cases filed against Customs relating
to trada litigation with a probable lability of
approximately $88 million, a possible liability of
appreximately 542 million, and a remate liability
of approximately 32 million, These amounts ars
to ba funded by Customs Refund and Drawback
apprupristion and those ammounts deamed prubable
af Nability are presented as a compunent of
custudlal 1labilities on the Consulidated
Statement of Financial Position and Refunds

and Drawbacks Expensa on Consulidated
Statement of Operations.

In July 1992, legal action was brought against
Customns for eligibtlity of uvertime compensation
for certaln grades of employees. Customs has agmed
in principal to the claim and is in the process of
determining the amount of compensation to be
paid. The debt is worth spproximately $80 million
dollars. Tha claim will be fully funded by the
Department of Justice Judgement Fund.

Custom {s generally liable tn the Department of
Defense for damage or loss to aircraft on loan to
Customs from the Departmant of Defense and has
incurred such cnsts in the past. Customs currently
has 32 loaned atrcraht valued at $140 million,

Public Law 101-510, enacted November 5, 1990,
requires faderal agencies to automatically cancel
obligated balances on appropriated funds after
specific future time periods, even though the
agency remains contingently liable for payment
of valid contraclor invoices under contracts
signad In the year of obligations. Custums paid
out a negligible amount in fiscal year 1993 funds
for prior year obligations that were cancelJed.
Custams estimates obligations related to cancel-
led appropriations that will be paid out of futura
appropriations will not exceed $1 million.

An independant raview of Customs’ Operations
and Malntenance program identified a possible
refund uwed to the Air Force relating to the
construction of an aerastat. Customs lagal counsel
is stil} evaluating the review recommendations
and is unable at this time to reasonably estimate
tha likalihood of Customs having to pay this refund.

2. Allocations of Ravenues Collected
to Treasury and Agriculture

Customs collects duties, taxes and fees for other
government agenclas and subsequently transfers
the funds to Treasury for further distribution
hased on various laws. In figcal year 1993, Custums
collected approximately §6.4 billion which was
transferred to Treasury and subsaquently author-
ized to other agencies. Of the $6.4 billion, $5.8
billion was transferred to the Dopartment of
Agriculture and $588 milijon was made availabla
to the Carps of Engineers. [n addition, $48 milllon
of user fees was collected by Customs for the
Departiment of Agriculture. Since the $48 million
was remitted to the Departmant of Agriculture
directly by Custums, this amount is separately
shown as an allocation of revenues on the
Cuonsolidated Statement of Operations and
Changes in Operating Net Position.
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3. Net Ravenues

Customs is authorlzed by 48 USC 730 and 740

to collect duties, taxes and fees for Puerto Rico.
This law allows Customs to retain the costs of
collecting these amounts before returning any
excass to Puerto Rico. Customs is also authorized
by 48 USC 1406h to collect all duties, taxes, and
fees for the Virgin [slands. This law also permits
Cusloms to retain the costs of caliecting thess
amounts bafore returnlog any excess 1o the
Virgin lslands.
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K. Changes in Operating Net Pesition

Changes in oparating net position for tha yssr snded September 30, 1093, istad of the following (In th de):
\pprop Funds with Tressury
Authorized No-Year Towl Cumubtive Feare
Retained Undiquidered and Other Rearws Iwested Randes of Funding
Copial Obligw Appeop for Ady Capital Oporations  Raguirernants owl
Salances a3 of
Octaber |, {992 $1e $361,444 ST $7726 ST sito 4y S(100495)  SLIMTIE
Becms of fnencing sources
over finded cparsting
pa — - —_ — - 1351 —_ 1357y
e 61444 8,735 N TE990% 144008 {109.695) 130295
for
focal yoar 1991 - - 1,471,559 - - - - 1,472,559
Appropristions axpanded
for opwations —_ - {1.447.064) - mnin) - -— (). 964.204)
Appropristions ind other
wnowts epended for
inrested capital —-— — {167.431) -— 150,652 - [y, ) —
Nat changs for (993 - 54519 165,437 13,463 3 P.0s) — 120549
Dispossls of ivvested capital  — — — — @n.rap - - @n.rse)
Futre funding requiremencs
apanded - - - - - - (19509 (in584)
Tratwlerred to Tr
Fortelters Fund e (el - {724 - - - ey
Total sther changes (AW {70950 1,501 $.137 (144173) (3.995) _ {2.00%5) {In.03})
Salances ma of .
—Septomber 30, 1993 3 — 9190404 | ] 36 1) 218,834 $248,.188 111 [N ]

s. The balancss included in the net changs for 1063 can aot be supported and were derived W maka the Operating Net Position acoounte balance.

b. Disposals of I d Capital {

dude those

for di

suppoiting documentation foc racordad costs was Insufficient o unavailabls.

and s d of §245 million for the valus of property In which
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Chinf Firancial Officer’s Anrual Report—1993

Supplemental Financial and
Management Information

AEPORTABLE FUNDS

CUSTODIAL FUNDS

General Fund Recelpt Accounts
Budget Clearing Account

Proceeds of Sals, Personal Property
U.S. Customs Service

Deposit in Transit Differences (Suspense)

Geperal Fund Proprietary Receipts
Not Otherwise Classified
All other (Charges for Testing, Inspecting
& Grading)
Department of Health & Human Services

Ovartime Service
Federal Communhnications Commission

General Fund Proprietary Interest
Not Otherwise Classified

Fines, Panalties, and Forfeitures
Not Otherwise Classified
(Departrment of Health & Human Resources})

Duties on Imports

Genera! Fund Proprietary Receipts
Not Otherwise Classified, All Other
U.S. Customs Service

Excise Taxes

Miscallanaous Taxes
Not Otherwlise Classified

Contributions to Consclence Fund

Fines, Penalties & Forfeitures
Agriculture Laws

Fines, Penalties & Forfeitures
Customs, Commerce and Antitrust Laws

Forfeitures of Unclaimed Money and Property

Fines, Penalties, and Forfeitures
Not Otherwise Classified

Overtime Service, Marine Inspection and
Navigation, Treasury, Transportation

Customs User Fea Account

Fines, Penalties, and Forfeitures
Immigration and Labor Laws

General Fund Proprietary Receipts
Not Otherwise Classified, All Other
(Consumer Praduct Safety Commission)

Othar Repayments of Investment and Recoveries

Fines, Penalties, and Forfeitures
Not Otherwisa Classifiad
PDepartment of Justice

Ganeral Fund:

Rafunds & Drawbacks
U,S. Customs Service
Indefinite

Deposhk Funds

Suspense, Public Debt
Government Accounts Serles

Duties Collected for the Virgin Islands
Government, U.S. Customs Service
Treasury Department

Suspense
U.S. Customs Service

Return of Deposits to Secure Payment
of Fines and Passage Money
Immigration and Naturalization Service

Assessments on Imports of Beef and

Pork Products
Agriculture Marketing Service

Special Funds
Customs Forfeiture Fund

Refunds, Transfers and Expenses of Operation
Pueno Rico, U.S. Customs Service

Refunds, Transfers and Expenses of Operation
Virgin Islands, U.S. Customs Service

Payments from Forfeited Assets
U.8. Custorns Service

Customs Merchandise Processing Foe
U.S. Custorns Service
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30% of Customs Duties, on Woal
Retmbursement for Costs of Natlonal
Wool Act

import Dutles on Arms and Ammunition
Immigration User Fees

Agricultural Quarantine Inspection User
Fees Account, Animal and Plant Health
Inspection Service

Trust Funds

Harbor Maintenance Trust Fund

Refunds, Transfers and Expenses

Unclaimed, Abandoned, and Selzed Goods
U.S8. Customs Service

AGENCY FUNDS

General Fund Recelpt Accounts

Unavallable Check Cancellations and
Overpayments (Suspanse)

Undistributed and Letter of Credit
Differences (Suspense)
General Funds

Salaries and Expenses
U.S. Customs Sarvice

Operation and Maintenance, Facilities
and Construction
U.8. Customs Service

Operation and Maintenance, Alr
Interdiction Pragram
U.S. Customs Service

Alr and Marina Interdiction Programs
Procurement

Speciol Funds

Customs Services at Small Airports

Customs User Fees Account
1J.S. Customs Servica
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Objectives, Scope, and Methodology

Management has the responsibility for

preparing the Principal Financial Statements in conformity with applicable
accounting principles,

establishing and maintaining internal controls and systems to provide
reasonable assurance that the broad control objectives of FMFIA are met,
and

complying with applicable laws and regulations.

In undertaking our audit of Customs, we planned to conduct an audit of its
Principal Financial Statements and of internal controls over safeguarding
of assets, assuring material compliance with budget authority and with
laws and regulations we considered relevant, and assuring that there were
no material misstatements in the Principal Financial Statements. To assist
in the review of controls over access to computer programs and data, we
contracted with the public accounting firm of Price Waterhouse and a
systems consulting company, Janus, Inc. We determined the scope of the
contractors’ work, monitored their progress at all key points, and
reviewed the related workpapers to ensure that the resulting findings were
adequately supported. We also planned to test Customs’ compliance with
laws and regulations we considered relevant. But, we did not plan to
evaluate all intermal controls relevant to operating objectives as broadly
defined in FMFIA.

As stated previously, we were unable to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the Principal Financial Statements are reliable (free of
material misstatement and presented fairly in conformity with applicable
accounting principles).

We were able to evaluate internal controls in the following areas:

revenue transactions (including cash receipts and refund and drawback
payments);

treasury funds;

accounts receivable;

expenditures;

seized assets;

property, equipment,and inventory;

budget; and

computer general controls.
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We also obtained an understanding of internal controls over the reliability
of performance measures reported in the Overview and Supplemental
sections of Customs' report and assessed whether information in the
Overview and Supplemental sections was materially consistent with the
information in the Principal Financial Statements.

We tested compliance with selected provisions of the following laws and
regulations:

Antideficiency Act;

Chief Financial Officers Act of 1990 (Public Law 101-5676);

Federal Managers’ Financial Integrity Act of 1982 (Public Law 97-2565);
National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 1991 (Public Law
101-510);

Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938;

Civil Service Retirement Act of 1930;

Civil Service Reform Act of 1978 (Public Law 95-454);

Federal Employees’ Compensation Act;

Federal Employees’ Group Life Insurance act of 1980 (Public Law 96-427);
Federal Employees’ Health Benefits Act of 19569 (Public Law 86-382);
Prompt Payment Act (Public Law 97-177);

Federal Acquisition Regulations;

Title 19, United States Code; and

Title 19, Code of Federal Regulations.

Except for the limitations on the scope of our work described in this
report, our work was done in accordance with generally accepted
government auditing standards and oMB Bulletin 93-06, “Audit
Requirements for Federal Financial Statements.”
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Status of Fiscal Year 1992 Financial Audit
Recommendations

The results of our efforts to audit Customs’ fiscal year 1992 principal
financial statements were presented in our report entitled Financial Audit:
Examination of Customs’ Fiscal Year 1992 Financial Statements

(GAO/AIMD-93-3, June 30, 1993). The significant matters identified in that
report and recommendations to correct the internal control problems

were detailed in the six internal control reports listed below.

We determined the status of the following recommendations based on our
audit work at Customs during fiscal year 1993 and on our discussions with
Customs officials. Our assessments of Customs’ actions for the most
significant recommendations are discussed under the significant matters
section of this report. However, we have not fully assessed the
appropriateness or effectiveness of all of the responses identified in the

following table.

Reports/Recommendations

Action
complete

Action
in progress

Action in planning
or planning No specific action
complete pianned

Financial Management: Control
Weaknesses Limited Customs’ Ability to
Ensure That Duties Were Properly
Assessed (GAC/AIMD-94-38, March 7, 1994}

Develop and implement a strategy for
inspecting cargo from both high- and low-risk
carriers to help provide reasonable assurance
that all cargo delivered is accurately and
completely identified on manifests and entry
documents. Carriers undergoing such
inspections should be randomly selected to
ensure that they are representative of all
carriers.

Obtain reliable data on carriers’ use of the
Automated Manifest System as a percentage
of all manifest submissions so that expanded
use ot the system can be more accurately
monitored.

Consider requiring all documents, including
manifests, to identify goods in a uniform
manner, such as through the use of
harmonized tariff codes.
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Recommendations
Action in planning
Action Action or planning No specific action
Reports/Recommendations complete in progress complete planned

Monitor implementation of the new procedures
for accounting for in-bond transfers to ensure
that they address the weaknesses that have
been identified. In conjunction with this effort,
provide personnel involved in maintaining data
on in-bond transfers with clear and detailed
guidance and adequate {raining on complying
with the new procedures.

X

Require district offices to maintain perpetual
inventory records of goods heid in bonded
warehouses and FTZs that they are
responsible for overseeing.

Enhance ACS so that the district offices could
use this system to maintain perpetuat records
of merchandise quantities at each warehouse
and FTZ,

Emphasize to district offices the importance of
spot checks of bonded warehouses and
monitor this activity to ensure that districts
comply with headquarters directives.

Require district offices to periodically spot
check all FTZs that have not been audited or
surveyed for over a year.

Provide more detailed guidance on the use of
spot check worksheets so that they will
capture complete information on these
inspections.

Develop a means of automatically entering
information needed to verify drawback claims
into ACS so that liquidators can use the
system to automatically verify drawback
claims.

Until a means of automatically entering
information needed to verify drawback claims
into ACS is implemented, require that
liquidators use representative sampling
procedures for reviewing drawbacks that
relate to multiple entry summaries.

Enhance ACS so that historical information on
drawback claimants such as accelerated
claim privileges, excessive claims previously
filed, overdue receivables, and regulatory
audit results, are available to liguidators in a
national database.
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Status of Fiscal Year 1992 Financial Audit

Recommendations

Reports/Recommendations

Action
complete

in progress

Action in planning
or planning No specific action

complete planned

Once ACS is enhanced so that historical
information on drawback claimants is available
to liquidators in a national database, require
that liquidators review this database 1o ensure
that special privileges such as accelerated
drawback payments are granted only to
claimants who have consistently complied with
Customs’ claim filing requirements.

X

Enhance the bond liability modute to monitor
the sufficiency of bonds pasted for drawback
transactions, including the ability to alert
liquidators when coverage is exceeded.

Financial Management: Customs Lacks
Adequate Accountability Over lts Property
and Weapons (GAO/AIMD-94-1, October 18,
1993)

Complete the integration of property and
accounting systems as planned.

Conduct physical inventories of capitalized
property items other than equipment every 3
years as required.

Modify the procedures for periodic inventories
of equipment to require that all capitalized
equipment is counted.

Train local property officers and cther
employees involved in the physical inventory
process.

Revise the responsibilities and duties of local
property officers to provide adequate
separation of duties.

Develop procedures for accurately and
adequately documenting equipment values
recorded in PIMS by (1) requiring appropriate
references to source documents in each
property file in PIMS, (2) reviewing
procurement documents for those items with
estimated values and entering corrections,

and (3) properly identifying property items not

in use or damaged.

(mx

(3)X

(2)x?

QOversee Customs efforts for ensuring that the
costs of ongoing ADP software development
efforts are properly recorded and are
complete and accurate.

Monitor steps being taken in response to the
IG's report, including the design of the new
WICS, for addressing identified system
deficiencies.
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Status of Fiscal Year 1992 Financial Audit

Recommendations

Reports/Recommendations

Action
compiete

Action in planning
or planning
complete

Action
in progress

No specific action
planned

Develop and implement procedures for
effectively performing annual physical
inventories of weapons at field locations,
properly resolving discrepancies, and
appropriately adjusting inventory records.

X

Financial Management: Customs Did Not
Adequately Account for or Control Its
Accounts Receivable (GAOQ/AIMD-94-5,
November 8, 1993)

Develop policies and procedures to record
and report all substantiated accounts
receivable at a gross amount. The procedures
should alsc provide a detailed methodology
for deriving the accounts receivable balance,
including a description of the relevant sources
of needed data.

Require Customs’ personnel to review fines
and penalties assessments recorded in ACS
and correct any inaccuracies before transfer
1o the redesigned system.

Require supervisory personnel to review the
work of staff responsible for updating and
changing information in ACS to ensure that all
assessments are accurately and completely
recorded.

Develop and maintain an integrated
accounting system that can capture accurate
and reliable information on all types of
assessments (including duties, taxes, fines,
and penalties) from assessment through
collection of any related amounts.

Modify Customs’ methodology for assessing
the collectibility of its receivables based on the
asset and liability standard recommended by
FASAB and recently approved by GAO, OMB,
and Treasury by analyzing individual debtor
accounts to assess their ability to pay, basing
group analyses on categories of assessments
with similar collection risk characteristics, and
considering current and forecast economic
conditions, as well as historical collection data,
in analyses of groups of assessmenits.
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Recommendations

Reports/Recomniendations

Action
complete

Action
in progress

Action in planning
or planning
complete

No specific action
planned

Use statistical sampling to analyze collectibility
of accounts on a group basis, in addition to
separately analyzing individual accounts.
Such sampling should consider factors that
are essential for estimating the level of losses,
such as historical loss experience, recent
economic events, and current and forecast
economic conditions.

X

Include a separate allowance amount relating
to billed fines and penalties cases in Customs’
allowance for uncollectible accounts balance.

Implement procedures o ensure that entry
summaries are reviewed and liquidated within
| year or provide documentation why this time
frame cannot be met for specific cases.

Monitor Customs' efforts to resolve protested
supplemental duty cases in a timely manner.

Requite that supporting documents, such as
the entry summary and surety bond, are
maintained in the fieid offices for ali
outstanding receivables untit they are
collected.

Use all debt collection toals available to
Customs, such as sanctioning importers and
personally contacting debtors who are
delinguent in paying their bills.

Develop performance indicators to measure
the effectiveness of Customs' fines and
penaliies program.

Financial Management: Customs’
Accountability for Seized Property and
Special Operation Advances Was Weak
(GAD/AIMD-94-6, November 22, 1993)

Enforce existing policies and procedures for
(1) safeguarding seized property,

(2) maintaining accurate financial data on
seized property inventory, and (3) controlling
special operations advances and
safeguarding related documents.

(1)X
2 x

(3)xe

Report to the Commissioner on progress to
enforce these policies and procedures.

Work with the Office of the U.S. Attorney to
develop guidelines on the amount of monetary
instruments, particularly cash, to be held as
evidence.
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Recommendations

Reports/Recommendations

Action
complete

Action in planning
or planning
complete

Action
in progress

No specific action
planned

Expand the use of videotaped evidence as an
alternative to holding large quantities of seized
cash and drugs at Customs’ facilities.

X

Require that at least two seizure custodians be
present when accessing seized property in
district vaults.

XC

Improve CPTS information so that all seized
propertty, especially cash and drugs, are
timely and accurately reflected in Customs’
inventory records and financial reports.

Require that the independent external
auditors’ recommendations to improve
accounting and control over special ocperation
advances be promptly and fully implemented.

Financial Management: Customs’
Accounting for Budgetary Resources Was
Inadequate (GAO/AIMD-94-23, December 14,
1993)

Revise Customs’ systems and procedures to
properly account for the receipt of goods and
services. Specifically, (1) modify the
accounting systems for ARRS transactions to
automatically liquidate obligations and post
related entries in the proprietary accounts
immediately upon receipt of goods and
services, {2) develop and implement a
mechanism for nan-ARRS transactions to
acknowledge and transmit receiving data and
use such data to post appropriate budgetary
and proprietary accounting entries, and (3)
expand the use of the Report on Obligations,
as a short-term measure, by instructing
program office persannel to review the report
and notify the National Finance Center when
goods and services have been received.

{3y x

()X

(2) X

Clarify guidance on the coding of obligating
documents for goods or services obtained for
Customs’ use under interagency agreements
to require that they be classified by the types
of goods or services ardered.

Amend the recently approved procedures for
processing interagency agreements for the
Operations and Maintenance Fund to require
that a budgetary receivable be recorded to
offset related obligations. Aiso, these
amended procedures should be applied to all
interagency agreements to help ensure that
they are properly recorded in the future.
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Status of Fiscal Year 1992 Financial Audit

Recommendations

Action
complete

Action
in progress

Action in planning
or planning No specific action

complete planned

Reports/iRecommendations

Review all outstanding intragovernmental
receivables as of September 30, 1992, in
order 1o confirm that they are valid receivables
and adjust the balances to correct any
misstatements.

X

Review all interagency agreements in order to
identify the unliquidated obligations amount for
agreements in which no budgetary receivable
has been recognized and then record a
budgetary receivable equal to the amount of
unliquiciated obligations.

Review the documentation and accounts for all
interagency agreements in order 1o identify
recorded earned reimbursements which
exceed amounts expended and adjust earned
reimbursements 1o equal amounts expended.

Financial Management: Customs’
Self-Assessment of Its Internal Controls
and Accounting Systems Is Inadequate
(GAO/AIMD-84-8, October 27, 1933)

Develop guidance for assessing control risk in
Customs' operations.

Develop adequate tools to perform FMFIA
reviews.

implement a comprehensive FMFIA training
program to be attended by all staff involved in
performing FMFIA reviews.

Review corrective acticn plans to ensure that
they address the underlying cause of the
problem.

Promptly test the effectiveness of corrective
actions implemented to ensure that the
weaknesses are corrected before they are
removed from Customs' FMFIA assurance

letter.

Have the Management Controls Division
obtain and systematically review the detailed
results of the agency's seli- assessments for
accuracy and completeness.
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Status of Fiscal Year 1992 Financial Audit
Recommendations

sWhile action was initiated for purchased assets, a policy and methodology for valuing forfeited
and transferred assets still needs to be developed.

bProcedures for controlling special operations advances and safeguarding related documents
have been implemented, but they are weak and further improvements are needed to adequately
complete action on this recommendation.

¢In response to this recommendation last year, Customs pointed out that some districts had only
one seizure custodian, but stated that it could assign vault duty to another Customs officer at
those districts that do not have two seizure custodians. While the Commissioner of Customs
directed the Assistant Commissioner of Commercial Operations o require that appropriate
personnel be present while accessing seized property and district vaults, Customs does not have
controls in place to ensure that this directive is being followed.
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Comments From the U.S. Customs Service

THE COMMISSIONER OF CUSTOMS
June 2, 1994 WASHINGTON, D.C.

Mr. Gene L. Dodaro

Assistant Comptroller General
Accounting and Information Management
General Accounting Office

Washington, D.C.. 20548

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on your draft
report entitled Financial Audit: Examination of Customs'

Dear Mr. D

.

We find that the report fairly representg the status of
implementation of the Chief Financial Officers' Act during
FY 93. We also appreciate the constructive approach GAC has
used to help Customs identify solutions to serious financial
management concerns and develop a blueprint for sound
management of resources in the future.

Customs took GAQ's FY 92 reports on financial
management and internal controls as a call to action. As
you point out in your report, the changes needed to address
systemic problems will require long-term efforts. However,
as you alsc note, there is a strong commitment in the
Customs Service to meaningful improvement. This commitment
extends from my personal resolution to bring about the
necessary change, through all Customs executives and
managers. To build on this commitment, we have instituted
an extensive educational program for our executive
management, field managers and employees, designed to help
them understand the requirements of the CFO Act and its
relationship to their operational responsibilities.

In addition to hiring a highly gqualified chief
Financial 0fficer, who will report directly to me, I have
also recently established an executive level CFO Steering
Committee. The Committee's charter is to oversee the
improvements in our financial and operational systems which
are necessary to integrate CFO requirements into our daily
operations, provide reliable and accurate financial
information and ensure effective internal controls. The
Steering Committee is supported by a CFO Working Group,
composed of representatives from field and Headguarters
offices, which is conducting the in-depth analyses to
understand the root causes of problems, and recommend
solutions to the Steering Committee.

REPORT DRUG SMUEGGLING TU ENITED STATES COSTOMS SERVICE. L-bkHE-3LER]
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Several new and promising initiatives are now in
progress in Customs, many of which vou note in your report:
we have embarked on an ambitious program to measure trade
compliance, and we are expanding that program in FY 95; we
are undertaking a number of major reviews of long-standing
problemn areas, including in-bond shipments, seized property
and undercover operations; we continue to make significant
progress in reporting and managing accounts receivable and
fixed assets.

As we pursue these long-term changes, we intend to
build on the partnership between GAO and Customs that has
developed over the last year. Our constructive relationship
has been a key slement in establishing the framework for
important improvements. For example, we have already called
upon GAC auditors to advise and assist the CFO Working Group
and the task forces established to study and address our
most serious problems. Their knowledge and help have been
invaluable. We propose to continue this arrangement, and
seek GAC's advice to the Steering Committee, the Working
Group and our new Chief Financial Officer, as we move
forward in the implementaticn of the many changes now
underway.

We are in general agreement with the recommendations
for FY 93, and will continue our efforts to respond to GAO's
recommendations for both FY 92 and FY 93. Although we plan
to take action in every area noted in the draft report, a
few areas warrant specific comment:

- Undercover operations. A task force comprised of
experts from inside and outside of the Service has
recantly been appointed to examine the way in which
Customs manages and conducts its undercover operations.
The task force's work is expected to be completed by
September and will include a review of the accounting
syatem. We agree in concept with GAO's recommendation
to develop a secure accounting systems for undercover
operations, but plan to defer a final decision on the
specifics of such a system until the task force
finishes its work.

- Budget clearing and suspense accounts. <Customs has
developed plans for recenciling and reducing the
backlog of amounts posted to the budget clearing
account (BCA) and suspense accounts. After all offices
have identified the reascn an amount was posted to the
BCA or suspsnsa account, amounts that can be removed
from these accounts will be posted to the appropriate
collection account or be refunded. Action will also be
taken to propose for write-off any identified
unreconcilable amounts. A review will be conducted to
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identify why items are posted to the BCA or suspense
account to determine if procedural changes or system
enhancements can reduce the number of initial postings.
Guidance will also be issued to identify the
transactions that would be appropriate to post to the
BCA or suspense account to ensure that the two accounts
are being used properly.

Streamlining procurement reviews. Both Customs and
Treasury have taken a number of actions since the end
of FY 93 to streamline the procurement process. These
include elimination of certain reviews by the
Department as well as the Customs Procurement Review
Board, reducing legal review requirements, and using
business process improvement technigues, reducing lead
times dramatically for small purchases and major ADP
contracts. We plan to continue applying these
techniques to bring about further improvements.

Seized property. Customs has worked closely with GAO
over the last several months to address accountability
and stewardship over seized property. As noted in the
report, Customs undertoock the first nationwide 100
percent physical inventory of all seized assets,
including currency, narcotics and merchandise. We
intend to maintain this baseline through monthly
raconciliations of inventory records and conducting an
end-cf-year inventory in September 1994, Recognizing
the naed for long=-term and systemic improvements, I
have recently commissioned a senior management, multi-
discipline task force to review the seized property
program in its entirety.

Drawback payments. Overall, Customs agrees with GAO's
observations and previous recommendatijons regarding the
drawback program. We also recognize the validity of
GAO's concerns that the implementation of palicy
changes and long-term modifications to the automated
drawback system may require an extended time period,
and that other remedial actions are necessary in the
near term. Therefcore, by the end of FY 94 we intend to
implement representative sampling procedures for
reviewing drawback claims. This methodology will be
used until such time as the drawback process is fully
automated. Concurrently, we are expediting the
automation of critical aspects of the program as
identified by GAD, i.e., decrementing import entries,
tracking bond sufficiency, and verification of approval
for accelerated drawback payments.
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- controls over foreign trade zones (FTZs). While
Customs does net plan on conducting any compliance
measurements of FTZs in the near future, we do plan to
reemphasize compliance with existing control
mechanisms, i.e., annual risk assessament and spot
checks. Following the compliance measurement test of
warehouse operations, its results will be evaluated to
determine applicability and usefulness in FTZs.

- Manifest Accuracy and Closure. Customs is developing
and implementing compliance measurement tests of
manifest and bill of lading information. The first
tests in the vessel envircnment began November 1993.

It is anticipated that in FY 95 nationwide compliance
measurements for both vessel and air carriers will be
performed. 1In the interim, the Assistant Commissioner
for Inspection and Control will remind all regions of
the importance of maintaining accurate and up-to-date
data in the Automated Manifest System and routinely
investigating all shipments that have not been released
by the end of the lay order peried. In addition,
customs is currently consulting with representatives of
the trade community to determine their interest in
forming a joint task force to address manifest
improvement.

- Technical proficiency of CFO staff. Custons is
actively recruiting for additional staff to supplement
current resources dedicated to CFO activities. The
recruitment is targeted to candidates with strong
accounting backgrounds, many of whom will be Certified
Public Accountants. At least 12 new employees are
being hired, with the first half on-board by the end of
FY 94; the second group will be hired during FY 95. 1In
addition, with the appointment of a new Chief Financial
officer, we plan to review the entire Customs
organization for CFO Act implementation, inciuding
field responsibilities, We also intend to seek GAO
advice and assistance as we pursue this and other
initiatives.

In closing, I would like to reiterate both my
commitment to improved financial management in the Customs
Service, and my appreciation to GAO and its auditors for
their constructive help as we move forward. We look forward
to continuing our close and cooperative working
relationship.

Sincerely,

[t

George J. Weise
Commissioner
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Major Contributors to This Report

Accounting and
Information
Management Division,
Washington, D.C.

Gary T. Engel, Senior Assistant Director
Jean H. Boltz, Assistant Director
Lution B. Hill, Assistant Director
Wilfred Holloway, Assistant Director for Design and Methodology
Roger Stoltz, Assistant Director
J. Lawrence Malenich, Senior Audit Manager
Deborah A. Taylor, Senior Audit Manager
Donald R. Baiardo, Audit Manager
Maria A. Cruz, Audit Manager
Sabrina L. Jones, Audit Manager
James A. Douglas, Auditor-in-Charge
Lynn M. Dudley, Auditor-in-Charge
R. Patrick Lagos, Auditor-in-Charge
Sandra N. Ranck, Auditor-in-Charge
Margaret A, Sherry, Auditor-in-Charge
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Raymond M. Wessmiller, Senior Computer Specialist
Cynthia Jackson, Computer Specialist
Ligia I. Rodriguez, Computer Specialist

Atlanta Regional
Office
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Rathi Bose, Auditor-in-Charge
Lisa M. Warde, Auditor

Boston Regional
Office

Robert Krailo, Audit Manager
Walter S. Dunbar, Auditor

Cincinnati Regional
Office

Wenona Johnson, Audit Manager
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Russ Keeler, Auditor-in-Charge
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Elizabeth Jones, Auditor
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Treasury Inspector
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